TOWN OF LOOMIS PLACER COUNTY, CALIFORNIA



CONTRACT BOOK

Concrete Repair Project

August 2022

NOTICE INVITING BIDS
PROPOSAL
AGREEMENT
SPECIAL PROVISIONS
AND
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
PLAN SHEETS

Contact:

Merrill Buck, Town Engineer 3665 Taylor Road Loomis, California 95650 townengineer@loomis.ca.gov (916) 824-1518

BID OPENING: September 1, 2022 (Thursday) at 10:00am

Deliver Bids To: Town Offices - Town Clerk's Office

3665 Taylor Road Loomis, CA 95650

If you choose to mail your Bid Proposal, both the outside and inside envelope should be clearly marked as: **CONCRETE REPAIR PROJECT**

Concrete Repair Project

DESIGN CERTIFICATION

The Plans and Technical Specifications contained herein have been prepared by, or under the responsible charge of, the following registered person(s):

Prepared by:

MERRILL BUCK, TOWN ENGINEER

Public Works Department

Town of Loomis

3665 Taylor Road, Loomis, CA 95650

(916) 824-1518

Date

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Notice Inviting Bids

Bid Proposal

Contract and Contract Forms

Contract

Faithful Performance Bond

Labor and Materials Bond

Town of Loomis Certificate of Insurance

Contractor's Certificate Relating to Worker's Compensation Insurance

Certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance

1-Year Guarantee

General Provisions

Section 1 – Terms and Definitions

Section 2 – Proposal Requirements and Conditions

Section 3 – Review of Bids, Contract Award and Execution

Section 4 – Scope and Control of the Work

Section 5 – Changes in the Work

Section 6 - Control of Materials

Section 7 – Utilities

Section 8 - Prosecution and Progress

Section 9 – Responsibilities of the Contractor

Section 10 - Measurement and Payment

Section 11 - Guarantee

Special Provisions

Section 12 - Bid Item Descriptions

Section 13 - General Construction

Technical Specifications

Section 14 - Temporary Traffic Control

Section 15 - Earthwork

Section 16 - Clearing and Grubbing

Section 17 - Concrete Curbs, Gutters, Curb Ramps, Driveways and Sidewalks

Section 18 - Cold Planing

Section 19 - Loop Detectors

Section 20 - Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA)

Section 21 - Adjust Utility Frames, Covers and Grates

Section 22 - Traffic Striping, Markings and Markers

Section 23 - Roadway Signs

Appendix

Plan Sheets and Details (9 pages)

TOWN OF LOOMIS PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

Concrete Repair Project

INSTRUCTION FOR SUBMITTING BIDS

The Town of Loomis is soliciting bids from qualified Contractors to complete the project described herein.

- 1. **Qualifications:** Contractor shall possess either a valid Class A (General Engineering) or C-8 (Concrete), California Contractor's license and a Town business license at the time the contract is awarded.
- Project Description and Location: Work consists of removing and replacing existing concrete improvements along with constructing new concrete improvements and curb ramps. At one location, the intersection of Taylor Road and Horseshoe Bar Road, work also includes milling, repaving and restriping the adjacent travel lanes.
- 3. <u>Cost Estimate and Duration:</u> The estimated cost for the work is \$250,000. The duration of the project is 60 working days.
- 4. **<u>Bid Package:</u>** Plans and specifications are available free of charge. A copy can be obtained from the Town's website or by e-mailing the Town Engineer at the email address listed below.
- 5. **Pre-Bid Meeting:** A pre-bid meeting has not been scheduled, nor is one anticipated for this project.
- 6. Staff Contact/Questions: Merrill Buck, Town Engineer

Town of Loomis 3665 Taylor Road Loomis, CA 95650 Phone: (916) 824-1518

E-mail: townengineer@loomis.ca.gov

- 7. **Prevailing Wage:** As a "Public Works" project and pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates for Placer County shall apply to this contract.
- 8. <u>Bid Opening/Reply Format</u>: All forms in the "Bid Proposal" Section shall be completed and returned to the Town Clerk at the Town Hall, 3665 Taylor Road, Loomis California by the bid's due date. Bids are required for the entire work described herein.
- 9. **Bid Due Date:** Bids are due on Thursday, September 1, 2022, at 10:00am
- 10. <u>Bidder's Security</u>: Bids must be accompanied by a proposal guarantee amounting to ten percent (10%) of the total bid as described in the specifications. Said guarantee shall be forfeited to the Town in case the bidder depositing the same does not, within seven calendar days after written notice that the contract has been awarded to him (1) enter into a contract with the Town and (2) furnish Performance and Payment Bonds and the required Insurance, as described in the specifications.
- 11. <u>Bid Award</u>: The bid will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder at the discretion of the Town Council. The Town reserves the right to reject any and all bids, or to waive any errors, discrepancies or irregularities.
- 12. <u>Firm Prices:</u> All bid prices will be held firm for a minimum of sixty (60) calendar days after the due date for submitting bids.

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS MAKE UP THE BID PROPOSAL AND ARE TO BE SUBMITTED AS PART OF THE BID

BID PROPOSAL

Concrete Repair Project

Bid To:	Town of Loomis 3665 Taylor Road Loomis, CA 95650	
Bid From:		
	Bidder's Company Name:	
	Contact Person:	
	Business Street Address:	
	Town, State, Zip Code:	
	Phone No.:	()
	E-mail:	
	Contractor's License Class	s:No.:
	Contractor's License Expir	ration Date:

I, as bidder, declare that I have satisfied myself as to the actual conditions and requirements of the proposed work by careful examination of the location and by examination of the contract documents. The failure or omission to examine any location, equipment, form, instrument or document shall in no way relieve the bidder from any obligation in respect to this bid.

I hereby certify that this bid is genuine and I have not in any manner sought by collusion to secure for myself an advantage over any other bidder.

I agree that if this proposal is accepted, I will contract with the Town of Loomis in the form of the agreement proposed, will provide all bonds and insurance certificates as required under the agreement and will furnish all equipment, materials and perform all labor required to complete the work in accordance with the contract documents for the prices set forth in the Bid Schedule.

I have carefully checked all of the calculations in the Bid Schedule and understand that the Town shall not be responsible for any errors or omissions on my part in making up this bid.

I agree that this bid may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the date of the bid opening and that the Town reserves the right to reject any or all bids or waive any irregularity or informality in the bids received.

BID PROPOSAL

Concrete Repair Project

BID SCHEDULE

Bids are to be submitted for the entire work. All applicable taxes, patent rights or royalties, freight, permit fees and other costs deemed incidental to the work shall be included in the prices quoted. All blanks for unit price and extension shall be completed. Any discrepancy between the unit price and the extended price or total bid shall be resolved by using the unit price.

Item No.	Item Description	Estimated Quantity	Unit	Unit Price	Item Total
1	Mobilization	1	LS	\$	\$
2	Remove Concrete or Asphalt	4,700	SF	\$	\$
3	Dirt Excavation and Clearing and Grubbing at Webb Street	1	LS	\$	\$
4	Allowance for Irrigation Repairs	1	LS	\$ 2,500	\$ 2,500
5	Curb Drain	1	EA	\$	\$
6	Concrete Curb and Gutter - 24" wide (with AB)	130	LF	\$	\$
7	Concrete Curb and Gutter - 36" wide (with AB)	600	LF	\$	\$
8	Concrete Driveway (with AB)	430	SF	\$	\$
9	Concrete Sidewalk - (with AB)	500	SF	\$	\$
10	Concrete Sidewalk (without AB)	1,700	SF	\$	\$
11	Curb Ramp - Case C (without AB) (Includes truncated domes and retaining curb. Curb and gutter adjacent to ramp paid separately)	3	EA	\$	\$
12	2-inch Asphalt Cold Planing (Area estimated at 560 SY)	1	LS	\$	\$
13	Hot Mix Asphalt Plug (Adjacent to curb and gutter)	1,000	SF	\$	\$
14	Hot Mix Asphalt Overlay (2")	70	TON	\$	\$

15	Adjust Loop Detector Pull Box to Grade	1	EA	\$ \$
16	Induction Loop Detector - Type D	2	EA	\$ \$
17	Induction Loop Detector - Type E	6	EA	\$ \$
18	Striping – Remove Existing Thermoplastic	170	SF	\$ \$
19	Striping – Detail 38 (8-inch w/ reflectors)	75	LF	\$ \$
20	Striping – Detail 39 (6-inch)	250	LF	\$ \$
21	Striping – Crosswalk and Stop Bar (12-inch White)	15	LF	\$ \$
22	Striping – Miscellaneous Legends	122	SF	\$ \$
23	Striping – Curb Paint - Red	190	LF	\$ \$
24	Signpost (Breakaway style)	2	EA	\$ \$
25	Sign	2	EA	\$ \$
26	Install Salvaged Sign	1	EA	\$ \$

Total Base Bid Amount:	¢
I Oldi Dase Diu Allioulil.	J)

Notes:

- 1. The Contract will be compared and awarded on the basis of the Base Bid Amount.
- 2. All items on the Base Bid Schedule must be bid. Partial bids will not be accepted.
- 3. The Town reserves the right to reject all bids for any reason whatsoever.
- 4. Issuance of the "Notice to Proceed" will constitute the beginning of the Contract as it pertains to compliance with the contract duration.

DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS

The Contractor shall perform work equaling at least 30 percent of the value of the original total bid with the Contractor's own employees and equipment.

In accordance with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act, Public Contract Code sections 4100 *et seq.* (the "Subcontracting Act"), the Bidder hereby certifies and submits, as required by law, the following concerning subcontractors:

- 1. The portion of the work, which will be done by each such subcontractor; and
- 2. The name, address and license number of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor, fabricate a portion of the work or improvement according to detailed drawings in the project plans, or render service to the Contractor in or about the construction of the work in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the Contractor's total bid.

<u> </u>	Portion of Work to be Performed by Subcontractor	Subcontractor Name, <u>Address and License Number</u> (Subcontractor's License No. Required under AB 44)	Registered with DIR? ✓ check if yes
1.			
2.			
3.			
4.			
5.			
6.			

(For additional Subcontractors, attach copies of this sheet as necessary)

✓ DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS REGISTRATION REQUIREMENT

In accordance with Labor Code Section 1725.5, all contractors and subcontractors listed on a public works bid proposal must be registered with the DIR.

STATEMENTS, QUESTIONNAIRE AND NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

The following Statements, Questionnaire and Non-Collusion Affidavit are being made a part of this Proposal. By signing the signature portion of the Proposal, the contractor certifies that under penalty of perjury, the responses are true. Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution.

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10285.1 STATEMENT In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 (Chapter 376, Stats. 1985), the bidder hereby declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the bidder
Has Has Not (Bidder to check one)
been convicted within the preceding three years of any offenses referred to in that section, including any charge of fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy, or any other act in violation of any state or federal antitrust law in connection with the bidding upon, award of, or performance of, any public works contract, as defined in Public Contract Code Section 1101, with any public entity, as defined in Public Contract Code Section 1100, including the Regents of the University of California or the Trustees of the California State University. The term "bidder" is understood to include any partner, member, officer, director, responsible managing officer, or responsible managing employee thereof, as referred to in Section 10285.1.
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10162 QUESTIONNAIRE In accordance with public Contract Code Section 10162, the bidder shall complete, under penalty of perjury, the following questionnaire:
Has the bidder, any officer of the bidder, or any employee of the bidder who has a proprietary interest in the bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or completing a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or safety regulation?
YES NO (Bidder to check one)
If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the space below:

PUBLIC CONTRACT SECTION 10232 STATEMENT

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10232, the Contractor, hereby states under penalty of perjury, that no more than one final un-appealable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has been issued against the Contractor within the immediately preceding two year period because of the Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a federal court which orders the Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER STATEMENT

We participate in the Affirmative Action Program of the Town of Loomis and accept the following operating policy as an equal opportunity employer:

"It is the policy of this company to assure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, religious creed, color, sex, age, national origin or ancestry. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, employment upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship training and on-the-job training."

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 7106 TITLE 23, UNITED STATE CODE, SECTION 112 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

In accordance with Title 23, United States Code Section 112 and Public Contract Code 7106 the bidder declares that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS

The following statements as to the financial qualifications and experience of the Bidder are submitted as a part of this Bid and the Bidder guarantees the truthfulness and accuracy of the information. Pursuant to Public Contract Code 10165, financial statements and experience questionnaires are not public records and are not open to public inspection.

Reference is hereby made to the following bank or banks as to the financial responsibility of the

bidder		-	
	NAME OF BANK	<u>ADDRESS</u>	
Experi	ence Data		
The B	idder has been engaged i		der the present business name fo at covered in this Bid extends ove
		never failed to satisfactorily co ceptions and reasons therefor	emplete a contract awarded to him e):
The fo	along with a brief descript		ne person's knowledge, ability or er is awarded the Contract, it is sed by one of these persons.
	List of Personnel	Knowledge/Skills	<u>Experience</u>

BIDDER'S REFERENCE

List three (3) major projects which the Bidder has performed comparable work within the last three (3) years. Provide a contact person and description of the project, or other such information that will demonstrate the ability to vigorously prosecute the work. Attachments containing the information requested below may also be provided, in lieu of using this form.

LOCATION TELEPHONE NO. DR MANNER OF EXECUTION LOCATION	YEAR COMPLETED FINAL CONSTRUCTION COST
OR MANNER OF EXECUTION	
LOCATION	
LOCATION	
LOCATION	
LOCATION	
	YEAR COMPLETED
TELEPHONE NO.	FINAL CONSTRUCTION COST
OR MANNER OF EXECUTION	
LOCATION	YEAR COMPLETED
TELEPHONE NO.	FINAL CONSTRUCTION COST
OR MANNER OF EXECUTION	
	LOCATION

SIGNATURE PAGES

The terms and conditions of the final Construction Agreement, when executed, shall control and supersede anything herein to the contrary or inconsistent with such contract.

The bidder states that he has inspected the site of the propose work in order to satisfy himself, by personal examination, or by such other means as he prefers, of the location of the proposed work and as to the actual conditions of and at the work site. The bidder hereby offers to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, transportation, and services necessary to complete the work on this project in accordance with the Contract Documents and to complete all requirements of the Contract Documents for the sums quoted in this Bid.

Addenda: (if any) bidder has received and examined all addenda issued during the bid period and agrees that all addenda shall be made a part of the Contract Documents. The bidder acknowledges receipt and incorporation of all impacts resulting from all addenda issued by inserting the number of each addendum below OR by signing and submitting with the bid proposal the signature page from each addendum.				
Addendum Nos,,,				
Bidder's Guarantee:				
In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 20170, accompanying this Bid is (insert the word "Cash", "Cashier's Check", "Certified Check" or "Bidder's				
Bond" as the case may be) made payable to the Town of Loomis in the amount of				
at least ten percent (10%) of the total amount of this bid. This amount is given as a guarantee that, in case the undersigned defaults in executing a contract and/or furnishing the necessary bonds after contract award, the said guarantee and the money payable thereon shall become and remain the property of the Town as liquidated damages.				
Company Profile: The names of all persons interested in the foregoing bid as principals are as follows: (Note: If the bidder is a corporation, state the legal name of the corporation and the names of the president, secretary, treasurer and manager thereof. If the bidder is a partnership, state the true name of the firm and the names of all individual partners composing the firm. If the bidder is an individual, state the first and last name in full).				
Firm Name:				
Business Address:				
Names and Titles of Company Officers:				
1				
2				

<u>Statements, Questionnaire and Non-Collusion Affidavit</u>: The Statements, Questionnaire and Non-Collusion Affidavit included in this proposal are to be made a part of the Proposal. By signing the signature portion below, the contractor certifies that under penalty of perjury, the responses are true. Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution.

Proposal Execution:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, as bidder, represent and warrant that they have the right, power, legal capaTown and authority to enter into and execute this document on behalf of the Bidder, and have executed this document by setting hereto their names, titles, and signatures. The representations made herein, including but not limited to the above contractor's license, expiration date and name of bidder, are true and correct, shall be complied with and are made under penalty of perjury.

IF SO	LE OWNER , sign here: I sign as sole owner of the business named abo	ve:	
	Social Security Number:		
	Employer Identification Number:		
IF PA	RTNERSHIP, sign here: The undersigned certify that we are partners in this proposal with full authority to do so. (one or		
	By	(Title)	
	By	(Title)	
	Federal Tax Identification No. (FEIN):		
	State Tax Identification No.:		
IF CO	RPORATION, execute here: The undersigned certify that they sign this propo	osal with full and proper authorization to do so	0.
	Corporate name		
	By	(Title)	
	By	(Title)	
	Incorporated under the laws of the State of		
	Federal Tax Identification No. (EIN):		
	State Tax Identification No.:		

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE EXECUTED BY THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER FOLLOWING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT

CONTRACT

At L	Loomis, California , this day of _		, 2022, the TOWN OF
LO	OMIS, a municipal corporation, in Placer C		
and			ONTRACTOR" hereby agrees:
1.	That into this contract, as though fully set of		
	Proposal Forms, General Provisions, Spec		
	addenda, if any, and such other writing set		t document entitled Contract Book for
	Concrete Repair Project dated August 20		
	That CONTRACTOR shall perform and be		
	• • •	•	nerewith shall perform and complete in good
	and workmanlike manner the Concrete Re		
	specifications on file in the office of the To	0	
	That for such performances TOWN shall p		
			Book, at the time and in the manner set forth
	in the Contract Book. CONTRACTOR sha		•
			factory completion, as measured by the bid
	items, in the quantities of actual work perfo		
	CONTRACTOR shall accept such paymer	nt in full satis	sfaction of all claims incident to such
	performances.		
	That in no case shall any department, Cou		
			Council or officer thereof be liable for any of
	the work performed by said CONTRACTO		
	That, in accordance with the provisions of		
	State of California, in any arbitration, whether	•	·
			supported by law and substantial evidence.
			emnify and hold harmless TOWN, its officers,
			em, from and against all actions, damages,
		•	on to which they may be subjected or put, by
	reason of, resulting from the performance		
	loss or expense is attributable to bodily inju		
	destruction of property, whether upon or o		
			ssion of the Contractor, subcontractor, anyone
		•	ne for whose acts any of them may be liable,
	whether or not it is caused in part by a par	ty indemnifi	ed hereunder.
Apı	proved as to Form:		
	•		
By:	Town Attorney, Town of Loomis	By:	Town Manager, Town of Loomis
	Town Attorney, Town of Loomis		Town Manager, Town of Loomis
Αp	proved as to Sufficiency:		
By:		By:	
•	Town Engineer, Town of Loomis	· -	Contractor

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, the	at	, as Principal, and
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, the California and organized and existing under a	a corporatio	n authorized to do business in the State of
California and organized and existing under a	ind by virtue	of the laws of the State of as
Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the To		
Placer, the State of California, in the sum of \$) naid ta tha T	tor the faithful performance of a
certain contract hereinafter referred to, to be p well and truly to be made, the said Principal a		
singularly, their heirs, administrators, executo		
by these presents.	13, 30000330	ors and assigns, jointly and severally, lifting
by those presents.		
Signed by us and dated this day of _		2022.
WHEREAS, the said Principal has entered int	to the annex	ed contract with the Town of Loomis to
perform and complete, in strict conformity her		
Capital Improvement Program Project, in acco		
the office of the Town Engineer of the Town of	of Loomis.	
NOW THEREFORE the conditions of the ab	ove and force	agoing obligations are such that:
NOW, THEREFORE, the conditions of the ab	ove and fore	egoing obligations are such that.
If the said Principal shall faithfully perform the	said contra	ct, then the above obligation with respect to
the faithful performance of said contract shall	be void; oth	erwise to remain in full force and effect.
And that and Owner for the many		and annual that we always a systematical of
And that said Surety, for value received herek time, alteration or addition to the terms of the	, ,	O .
the specifications accompanying the same sh		•
does hereby waive notice of any such change	•	,
the contract or to the work or to the specificati		
If case suit is brought upon this bond by the T		nis, a reasonable attorney's fee, to be fixed
by the court, shall be paid by Principal and Su	urety.	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Principal a	and Surety h	ave executed this instrument the day and
year first hereinabove written.		
Approved as to Form:		
By:	By:	
By: Town Attorney		Principal (Contractor)
Approved:		
дриочец.		
Rv:	Dv.	
By: Town Manager	ъу	Surety

LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that	, as Principal, and athorized to do business in the State of California and
organized and existing under and by virtue of the and firmly bound unto the Town of Loomis, a mof California, in the sum of \$\frac{1}{2}\$ hereinafter designed to be paid to the Town of \$\frac{1}{2}\$	ne laws of the State of as Surety, are held unicipal corporation of the County of Placer, the State for the benefit of laborers and material Loomis for the payment of which well and truly to be ereby bind themselves and, all and singularly, their
Signed by us and dated this day of	, 2022.
perform and complete, in strict conformity there	the annexed contract with the Town of Loomis to with an in a good and workmanlike manner the 2014 dance with maps, plans and specifications on file in Loomis.
assigns shall fail to pay for any materials, provisupon, for or about the performance of the work thereon of any kind or for amounts due under the work or labor, then said Surety will pay the same hereinabove specified to be for the benefit of labor.	eir heirs, executors, administrators, successors and sions, provender or other supplies or teams used in,
the benefit of any and all persons, companies at Part 4, Title 15 of the Civil Code of the State of their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond stipulates and agrees that no change, extension contract or to the work to be performed thereum in any way affect its obligations on the bond, are extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms.	bond by the Town of Loomis, a reasonable attorney's
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Principal an year first hereinabove written.	d Surety have executed this instrument the day and
Approved as to Form:	
By: Town Attorney Approved:	By:Principal (Contractor)
By: Town Manager	By: Surety
Town Manager	Surety

TOWN OF LOOMIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE General and Automobile Liability

			sworn to before a Nota	
(sign)		()	rpe name)	
Notary Public, this		/ of		022.
SUBSCRIBED AND S	SWORN TO BEFOR		rpe name)	
		Αι	thorized Signatory (sig	gn)
	enalty of perjury that		ign this Certificate on back, on the day of	
Authorized Signature				
Insurance Company		Address of Signa	tory:	
have other insurance insurance only; (2) the against other insured to state that coverage	against loss covere at said additional ins parties; and (3) each shall not be suspen er thirty (30) days p	ed by this policy, the of sured parties are not th insurance policy re nded, voided, cancel rior written notice by Clerk.	ured parties; if said ad other insurance shall be precluded form claim usequired by this clause sed by either party, reducertified mail, returned	e excess under this policy shall be endorsed uced in coverage
 Bodily Injury Property Damage 	9		\$1,000,000 each p \$1,000,000 each p \$1,000,000 each p \$1,000,000 each p	erson ccurrence erson ccurrence
Said policy of insuran periods: COVERAGE	ce provides coveraç POLICY NO.	-	nimum amounts and fo	
issued a policy of insucertain as work of imp general and automob as additional insured,	urance bearing Polic provement generally ile liability policy wh and which insures	cy No to described as the Co ich names the Town said Town, officers a	own of Loomis, Caliform in connection oncrete Repair Project of Loomis, its officers a nd said work of improve h behalf of	ction with a ct, being a certain and employees rement, including

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE RELATING TO WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, HEREBY CERTIFY that, at all times during the performance of any work under contract or agreement with the Town of Loomis (check one of the following):
I will have in full force and effect Worker's Compensation Insurance pursuant to the attached Certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance issued by an admitted insurer. Said certificate shall state that there is in existence a valid policy for Worker's Compensation Insurance in a form approved by the California Insurance Commissioner. The certificate shall show the expiration date of the policy, that the full deposit premium on the policy has been paid and that the insurer will give Town at least ten (10) days advance notice of the cancellation of the policy (an exact copy or duplicate of the Certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance certified by the Director of Industrial Relations or the insurer may be attached).
I have in full force and effect and have attached hereto a certificate of Consent to Self-insure issued by the Director of Industrial Relations (an exact copy or duplicate thereof certified by the Director may be attached).
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and executed on at Loomis, California.
By:
Official Title
On behalf of:
Contractor

NOTE: YOUR CERTIFICATE OF WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE MUST BE ATTACHED AND MUST MEET THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH ABOVE.

PLEASE NOTE THAT IF YOU HAVE ANYONE WORKING FOR OR WITH YOU, YOU MAY BE REQUIRED TO HAVE WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE. FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS.

CERTIFICATE OF WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

FOR THE TOWN OF LOOMIS

admitted Worker's Compensation Insurance, bearing policy number Compensation insurance issued in a fornow in full force and effect. The full de-	nereby certifies to the Town of Loomis, California, that it is an order and that it has issued a policy of Worker's Compensation to Said policy is a valid policy of Worker's orm approved by the California Insurance Commissioner and is eposit on said policy has been paid. The expiration date of said, 2022. The undersigned insurer will give said advance notice of the cancellation of said policy.
Dated:	
	INSURANCE COMPANY
	Address:
	UTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Signature)
	OTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Signature)
A	UTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Type Name)
I declare under penalty of perjury that	the foregoing is true and correct.
Executed at Loomis, California on the	day of, 2022.
A	UTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Signature)
	UTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Type Name)

CONTRACTOR 1-YEAR GUARANTEE

We hereby guarantee the **Concrete Repair Project** improvements which we propose to construct in the Town of Loomis for (1) year in accordance with the guarantee required in the specifications. We agree to repair or replace any or all such work, together with all or any other work which may be displaced in so doing, that may be proven defective in workmanship or material within the period from the date of acceptance (recording of the Notice of Completion) without expense whatsoever to the Town, excluding ordinary wear and tear and unusual abuse or neglect.

We shall provide a 1-year security of 10% of the total completion cost of the project at the time of final acceptance.

In the event of our failure to comply with the above mentioned conditions within ten (10) days time after being notified in writing, we collectively or separately do hereby authorize the Town to proceed to have the defects repaired and made good at our expense and will pay the costs and damages incurred immediately upon demand.

Signed:				
-				
_				
Da	ated:			

GENERAL PROVISIONS TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1	– TERMS AND DEFINITIONS	
1.01	Terms	. 1
1.02	Definitions	. 1
OFOTION	DDODOOAL DEGLEDEMENTO AND CONDITIONS	
	– PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS	_
2.01	General	
2.02	Proposal Forms	
2.03	Qualifications of Bidders	
2.04	Rejection of Proposals Containing Alterations, Erasures, or Irregularities	
2.05	Submission of Bids	
2.06	Approximate Estimate	
2.07	Examination of Plans, Specifications and Work Site	
2.08	Withdrawal of Proposals	. 6
2.09	Proposal Guarantee	
2.10	Disqualification of Bidders	. 6
2.11	Bid Protest Procedures	. 6
2.12	List of Subcontractors	. 7
CECTION 2	DEVIEW OF DIDE CONTRACT AWARD AND EVECUTION	
3.01	REVIEW OF BIDS, CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION Public Bid Opening and Initial Review	8
3.02	Determination of Lowest Responsible Bidder	
3.03	Award of Contract	
3.04	Execution of Contract	
3.05	Status of Contractor	
3.06	Assignment	
3.07	Recognition of Subcontractors	
3.07		
	Return of Bid Security	
3.09	Forfeiture of Proposal Guarantee	
3.10	Contract Bonds	
3.11	Notification of Surety Companies	
3.12	Power of Attorney	
3.13	Insurance Requirements	
3.14	Special Requirements	
3.15	Builders Risk Insurance	
3.16	Certificates	
3.17	Legal Address of Contractor	
3.18	Office of Contractor at Site	. 12
SECTION 4	– SCOPE AND CONTROL OF THE WORK	
4.01	Work to be Done	. 13
4.02	Plans and Specifications	. 13
4.03	Reference to Standards and Codes	
4.04	Authority of the Engineer	
4.05	Contract Documents and Precedence	
4.06	Interpretation of Specifications and Drawings	
4.07	Figured Dimensions	
4.08	Errors or Discrepancies	
4.09	Drawings to be Furnished by Contractor	
4.10	Additional Drawings by Town	
4.11	Lines and Grades	
4.12	Record Documents	
4.12	Record Drawings	
4.13 4.14		
	Reuse of Documents	
4.15	Subsurface Data	
4.16	Right-of-Way	
4.17	Removal of Defective and Unauthorized Work	
4 18	Acceptance of Defective Work	16

4.19	Submittals	_
4.20	Substitutions	17
4.21	Construction Staking Lines and Grades	18
4.12	Inspection of the Work	
4.23	Testing	
SECTION 5 -	CHANGES IN WORK	
5.01	Limited Town Authority to Approve Change Orders	
5.02	Contractor Liability for Unapproved Change Orders	20
5.03	Non-Material Change Requests by the Contractor	20
5.04	Effect of Extension of Time	20
5.05	Letters of Instruction	
5.06	Requests for Information, Inconsistencies and Changed Conditions	
5.07	Extra and Omitted Work	
5.08	Change Orders	
5.09	Disputed Work	
SECTION 6 -	CONTROL OF MATERIALS	
6.01	Materials and Workmanship	24
6.02	Protection of Work and Materials	
6.03	Trade Names or Equals	24
6.04	Inspection of Materials by Town	
6.05	Inspection of Materials by Others	
6.06	Tests of Materials	
6.07	Certification	
6.08	Weighing and Metering Equipment	
6.09	Calibration of Testing Equipment	
0.00	Salistation of Footing Equipment	
SECTION 7 -	UTILITIES	
7.01	Town's Statutory Obligation	27
7.02	Contractor's Obligation to Identify and Protect Subsurface Infrastructure	
7.03	Location	
7.04	Protection	
7.05	Shut Down Notification	
7.06	Removal	
7.07	Relocation	
7.08	Delays	
7.09	Cooperation	
7.00		
SECTION 8 -	PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS	
8.01	Notice to Proceed	30
8.02	Commencement of Work	
8.03	Subcontracting	
8.04	Administrative Duties	
8.05	Baseline Construction Schedule	
8.06	Three-Week Look Ahead Schedule	
8.07	Construction Sequence	
8.08	Recording Existing Conditions	
8.09	Preconstruction Conference	
8.10	Progress Meeting	
8.11	Hours of Construction	
8.12	Prosecution of Work	
8.13	Suspension of Work	
8.14		
-	Default by the Contractor and Termination of Control	
8.15	Contractor's Right to Stop Work or Terminate Contract	
8.16	Town's Right to Terminate Contract	
8.17	Time of Completion and Days Charged	
8.18	Liquidated Damages	
8.19	Delays and Extension of Time	
8.20	Substantial Completion	
8.21	Project Closeout	37

8.22 8.23	Final CompletionFinal Acceptance	
8.24	Risk of Loss	
8.25	Use of Improvements During Construction	20
0.25	Ose of improvements builing construction	30
SECTION 9 -	RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR	
9.01	Contractor's Responsibility for the Work	
9.02	Contractor's Responsibility for Subcontracted Work	39
9.03	Superintendent	39
9.04	Character of Workers	39
9.05	Laws to be Observed	39
9.06	Permits and Fees	41
9.07	Coordination and Cooperation	41
9.08	Use of Premises	
9.09	Construction Staging and Field Office	
9.10	Site Security	
9.11	Construction Water	
9.12	Project Site Maintenance	
9.13	Preservation of Property	
9.14	Protection of Buried Utilities	
9.15	Protection of Bridges	
9.16	Protection of Traffic Signal Facilities	
9.17	Restoration of Adjacent and Existing Improvements	
9.18	Archeological Remains	
9.19	Access to Private Property	
9.20	Traffic Control and Public Convenience	
9.21	Safety	
9.22	Patent Fees or Royalties	
9.23	Advertising	
9.24	Antitrust Claims	
9.25	Audit and Examination of Records	
9.26	Notice of Entrance	
9.27	Additional and Emergency Protection	
9.28	Placing Portions of Work in Service	
9.29	Rights of Way	
	– MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	- 4
10.01	Measurement of Quantities for Unit Price Work	
10.02	Bid Items	
10.03	Bid Quantities	
10.04	Progress Payments	
10.05	Retentions	
10.06	Final Payment	
10.07	Acceptance	
10.08	Extra Work and Work Omitted	
10.09	Compensation for Extra Work Omitted	58
10.10	Compensation to Town for Extension of Time	
10.11	Liquidated Damages for Delay	
10.12	Claims	
10.13	Time Limit on Claims	
10.14	Town Response to Claims	
10.15	Appeal of Engineer's Decision	59
SECTION 11	– GUARANTEE	
11.01	Contractor's Guarantee	60
11.02	Correction of Defective Work During the Guarantee Period	

* * *

GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1 – TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

- 1.01 <u>Terms</u> Unless otherwise stated, the words "directed, required, permitted, ordered, instructed, designated, considered necessary, prescribed, approved, acceptable, satisfactory," or words of like meaning, refer to actions, expressions, and prerogatives of the Engineer.
- 1.02 <u>Definitions</u> Except as amended or supplemented, whenever in the Contract Documents the following terms are used, the intent and meaning shall be interpreted as follows:

<u>Agreement</u> - The written contract documents between the Town and the Contractor covering the performance of the work.

As Shown, As Indicated, As Detailed - Where these words or words of similar import, are used, it shall be understood that reference to the drawings accompanying these specifications is made unless stated otherwise. Where "As Directed", "As Permitted", "Approved", or words of similar import, are used, it shall be understood that the direction, requirements, permission, approval, or acceptance of the Engineer is intended unless stated otherwise. As used herein, "Provide" shall be understood to mean "Provide Complete in Place" that is, "Furnish and Install", "Install" shall mean the installation complete in place of an item of equipment furnished by the Town.

<u>ASTM - American Society for Testing and Materials specifications.</u>

AWWA - American Water Works Association and its Standard Specifications.

<u>Addenda</u> - Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of bids which clarify, correct or change the bidding documents or the Contract Documents.

<u>Bid</u> - The offer or proposal of the bidder submitted on the prescribed forms setting forth the prices for the work to be performed.

<u>Bid Forms</u> - Includes the Bid Schedule, Designation of Subcontractors, Bidders Statement of Responsibility, Bidder's Non-Collusion Affidavit, Bid Security, and all other information requested by the Bid Proposal Documents.

<u>Bidder</u> – Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, or combination thereof submitting a bid for the work, acting directly or through a duly authorized representative. After the Town awards the Contract, the term "Bidder" shall be equivalent to the term "Contractor" for the purpose of identifying the Contractor's rights and obligations under the Contract Documents.

<u>Bidding Documents</u> - The Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals, Instruction to Bidders, Bid Proposal forms and Bidders Bond.

<u>Bonds</u> - Bid, performance, labor and material, and warranty bonds and other instruments of security.

<u>Change Orders</u> – A written order by the Engineer to the contractor making changes in the plans or specifications which is signed by the Contractor and Town authorizing an addition, deletion or revision in the work, with possible adjustment in the contract price or the contract time, issued on or after the effective date of the Agreement. If the change involves items for which there is no contract unit price, the order shall so state and stipulate that the changes shall be performed as extra work or work omitted.

<u>Town</u> - The Town of Loomis acting through the Town Council or any other board, body, official(s) to which or to whom the power belonging to the Town Council has been properly delegated.

<u>Town Regulations</u> - All written laws, rules, and policies established by the Town, including those set forth in the General Plan, Loomis Municipal Code, ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, and Town design documents (including the Standard Specifications, design standards, and relevant Public Facility Master Plans).

Code - The terms Government Code, Labor Code, etc., refer to codes of the State of California.

Contract - See definition for "Agreement".

Contract Documents - See Agreement, Section 2.1, "List of Contract Documents and Precedence".

<u>Contract Drawings or Plans</u> - All drawings which may have been prepared by or in behalf of the Town, as a basis for proposals, when duly signed and made a part of this contract by incorporation or reference, all drawings submitted in pursuance of the terms of this contract by the successful bidder with his proposal and by the contractor to the Town and reviewed by the Engineer; and all drawings submitted by the Engineer to the contractor during the progress of the work as provided for herein.

Contract Price - The total amount of money for which contract is awarded and as amended.

<u>Contract Time</u> - The number of days or the date stated in the contract as the duration for completing work.

<u>Contract Unit Price</u> - The Contractor's original bid for a single unit of an item of work in the proposal.

<u>Contractor</u> - An individual, partnership, corporation, developer, joint venture, subdivider or other legal entity entering into a contract or agreement with the Town to perform the work covered by this contract, and their authorized agents or legal representatives. After the Town awards the Contract, the term "Contractor" shall be equivalent to the term "Bidder" for the purpose of identifying the Contractor's rights and obligations under the Contract Documents.

Council - The Town Council of the Town of Loomis.

<u>Day or Days</u> - Unless herein otherwise expressly defined, shall mean a calendar day of twenty-four hours each.

<u>Defective Work</u> - Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, omitted, incomplete, deficient, or does not conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, directives of the Engineer, or requirements of any inspection, reference standard, test, or approval specified in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged prior to the Engineer's recommendation of final acceptance. See General Provisions Section 6.01, "Materials and Workmanship".

<u>Directive</u> – Any document, signed by the Town, with instruction to the Contractor pertaining to the completion of a project objective; including, but not limited to responses to requests for information, clarifications, letters of instruction, the notice of award and the notice to proceed.

<u>Engineer</u> - The Engineer duly and officially appointed by the Town to represent the Town and to observe the work of construction under this contract, acting personally or through agents or assistants duly authorized by him, such agents or assistants acting within the scope of the particular duties entrusted to them.

<u>Extra Work</u> - Performance or furnishing of work or material found necessary for the proper completion of the improvements, the payment of which is not covered by any item of the bid schedule and for which no means of payment, direct or indirect, has been provided in the contract.

<u>Final Completion</u> - The point at which work has been completed in accordance with the contract documents, plans and specifications to the satisfaction of the Engineer and there are no items of work remaining to be completed. See General Provisions, Section 8.22, "Final Completion".

<u>Force Account Work</u> – Force account work is a method of compensation utilized to pay for extra work typically needed to overcome unanticipated work, resulting from the project work scope, necessary to complete the project work scope that cannot be well defined prior to the start of extra work. General Provision, Section 5.08 "Change Orders" establishes the specific methods of compensation for labor, materials and equipment used to perform the force account work.

<u>Greenbook</u> - The Standard Specifications and Plans written and promulgated by Public Works Standards, Inc., entitled "Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction", and "Standard Plans for Public Works Construction", current editions.

Hold Harmless - Agreement by one party to bring no claim for negligence, breach of contract, indemnity or otherwise against another party. See Agreement Section 17, "Indemnification".

<u>Inspector</u> - The engineering or technical inspector(s) duly authorized or appointed by the Engineer or Town, limited to the particular duties entrusted to him or them.

<u>Liquidated Damages</u> - The amount of dollars assessed for each and every calendar day required to complete the contract in excess of the contract time. See General Provisions, Section 8.18, "Liquidated Damages".

<u>Losses</u> - Any and all losses, costs, liabilities, claims, damages, and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses.

<u>Modification</u> – Modifications to the Agreement are executed by change orders, and may only be issued after the effective date of the contract.

Notice - Any notice allowed or required to be given by the Town may be given by the Engineer.

Notice of Award – The written notice by the Town to the successful Bidder stating that upon completion of required conditions the Town will execute the contract.

<u>Notice to Proceed</u> – A written notice by the Town to the Contractor authorizing the Contractor to proceed with the work and fixing the date on which the contract time will start.

<u>Plans</u> - The contract plans and/or supplemental drawings approved by the Engineer which show the location, character, dimensions and details of the work.

<u>Project</u> - The total construction of which the work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by the Town or by separate Contractors.

<u>Proposal</u> - The offer of a bidder when submitted on the proposal form, properly signed and guaranteed.

<u>Reference Specifications</u> - Those standards, rules, method of tests or analysis, codes, and specifications of other agencies, engineering societies, or industrial associations referred to in the Contract Documents. These refer to the current edition or amendments in effect at the time of advertising the project unless specifically referred to by edition, volume or date. Unless otherwise stated in the plans or specifications, the reference specification in effect shall be that edition which was in effect on the date of the Notice Inviting Bids.

<u>Shop Drawings</u> - All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules and other data which are specifically prepared by or for the Contractor to illustrate some portion of the work and all illustrations, brochures, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, diagrams and other information prepared by a supplier and submitted by the Contractor to illustrate material or equipment for some portion of the work. See General Provisions, Section 4.13, "Submittals".

Special Provisions - Any provisions which supplement or modify these standard specifications.

<u>Specifications</u> – The information, directions, provisions and requirements pertaining to the work, and contained herein including Special Provisions, Technical Specification, General Provisions, those administrative subsections of Caltrans' Standard Specification that are specifically referenced in this Contract and the non-administrative sections (Section 10 through 95) of the Caltrans' Standard Specification dated May 2006.

<u>Standard Plans</u> - The Standard Details of the Town of Loomis, current edition, including the Parks and Streetscape Standard Plans, current edition, identifying construction standards for the various items of work indicated and/or referred to on the plans, specifications or special provisions.

Standard Specifications - The Standard Specifications of the Town of Loomis.

<u>Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction</u> - The Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, "Greenbook", current edition.

State - State of California.

<u>State Standard Plans</u> - The Standard Plans of the Department of Transportation of the State of California, (Caltrans') Standard Plans dated May 2006.

<u>State Standard Specifications</u> - The Standard Specifications of the Department of Transportation of the State of California Caltrans' Standard Specification dated May 2006.

<u>Subcontractor</u> - Any individual, firm or corporation having a direct contract with the Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the work at the site. Unless otherwise specifically provided, the term Subcontractor includes Subcontractor of any tier, suppliers, manufacturers and distributors. See Section 3.07 of the General Provisions.

<u>Substantial Completion</u> – When the work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where it is sufficiently complete and in accordance with the Contract Documents. See General Provisions, Section 8.20, "Substantial Completion".

<u>Superintendent</u> – The executive representative of the contractor responsible for the site supervision of the work at all times during progress, authorized to receive and fulfill instructions from the Engineer and to accept orders for changed and extra work.

<u>Surety</u> - Any individual, firm or corporation, bound with and for the Contractor for the acceptable performance and completion of the work, and the satisfaction of all obligations incurred.

Surveyor - A land surveyor licensed in the State of California.

Unbalanced Bid - See Materially Unbalanced Bid and Mathematically Unbalanced Bid.

<u>Work</u> - The construction and services required by the Contract Documents as amended by contract modifications, whether completed or partially completed, including all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services provided or to be provided, by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor's obligations. The work may constitute the whole or a part of the project

Working Day – Any day except Saturday, Sunday, Holidays observed by the Town, or days in which the Contractor is entitled to an excusable delay. Holidays observed by the Town are: Thanksgiving, day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, and Veteran's Day. See General Provisions, Section 8.19, "Delays and Extension of Time".

SECTION 2 – PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

- 2.01 <u>General</u> Bidders may obtain complete sets of the Contract Documents, including the proposal forms to be used for bidding, at the location designated in the Notice to Bidders. Bidders shall use complete sets of Contract Documents in the preparation of bids. The Town makes copies of the Contract Documents available, on the above terms, for the sole purpose of obtaining Bids for the work and does not confer a license or grant permission for any other use of the Contract Documents.
- 2.02 <u>Proposal Forms</u> The portion of the Contract Documents entitled "Bid Proposal" focuses the Bidders attention on the requirements for submitting a proposal, including the Notice to Bidders, and the Bid Proposal Forms.

Bids are required for the entire work described herein and shall be submitted on the blank forms prepared by the Town and provided herein. The Bid Proposal submitted to the Town shall consist of the completed Bid Schedule, Designation of Subcontractors, Bidders Statement of Responsibility, Bidder's Non-Collusion Affidavit, Bidder's Qualifications, Bidders References, Signature of Bidder, Bid Guaranty, and all other information requested by the Bid Proposal documents.

All proposals shall type or print legibly in ink the proposed prices both in writing and in figures and shall be signed, with address included, by the bidder or the bidder's authorized representative. Corrections must all be individually initialed by the Bidder. Bidder shall not modify or qualify the Bid Forms in any manner.

The Bid Forms shall be signed by a person or persons legally authorized to bind the Bidder to the Contract. The individuals signing each document shall warrant that they are authorized to bind the legal entity of the Bidder. Proposals made by individuals must show the individual's signature and post office address; if made by a firm or partnership and the signature of one or all of the partners must be shown. Proposals submitted by corporations must show the name and post office address of the corporation, the name of the state, under whose laws the corporation is chartered, and the signature and title of the person signing on behalf of the corporation.

2.03 <u>Qualifications of Bidders</u> - Each bidder shall be licensed as specified in the Notice to Bidders and in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 9, Division 3, of the Business and Professions Code, State of California, and shall be skilled and regularly engaged in the general class or type of work called for under this contract.

It is the intention of the Town to award a contract only to a bidder who is able to furnish satisfactory evidence that he has the requisite experience and ability and that he has sufficient capital, facilities and plant to enable him to prosecute the work successfully and promptly, and to complete it within the time set forth in the contract.

In determining the degree of responsibility to be credited to a bidder, the Town will weigh any evidence indicating the bidder, or personnel guaranteed to be employed in responsible charge of the work, has satisfactorily performed other contracts of like nature and magnitude.

- 2.04 <u>Rejection of Proposals Containing Alterations, Erasures, or Irregularities</u> Proposals may be rejected if they show any alterations of form, additions not called for, conditional or alternative bids, incomplete bids, irregularities of any kind, or corrections and erasures without initials by the Bidder.
- 2.05 <u>Submission of Bids</u> All Bid Forms, including all documents required to be submitted with the Bid, shall be enclosed in a sealed opaque envelope. The envelope shall be clearly marked on its face with the Bidder's name and address, and the notation "SEALED BID ENCLOSED, TOWN OF LOOMIS", with an identification of the project name and number as identified in the Notice to Bidders. If the Bid is sent by mail, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate mailing envelope. Oral, telephonic, facsimile, telegraphic, or electronically transmitted Bids are invalid and will not be accepted.

Bids may be mailed or delivered by messenger. It is the Bidder's responsibility alone to ensure that the Bid is received prior to the bid opening deadline at the place specified in the Notice to Bidders. Whether or not bids are opened exactly at the time fixed in the public notice inviting bids, any bid received after that time shall be returned unopened.

- 2.06 <u>Approximate Estimate</u> The quantities listed in the bid schedule are approximate only, supplied as a general indication of the scope of work and to be used as a basis for comparing bids. The Town does not expressly or by implication agree that the actual amount of work will correspond therewith, and reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount of any class or portion of the work, or to delete any portions of the work in their entirety, from the quantities listed on the bid schedule, as may be deemed necessary or advisable by the Engineer.
- 2.07 Examination of Plans, Specifications and Work Site Bidder shall examine carefully the plans, specifications, proposal and contract forms, and the physical site of the work contemplated, regardless of if a site walk or pre-bid meeting has been scheduled by the Town or not. It will be assumed that the bidder has investigated and is aware of the conditions to be encountered in carrying out the proposed work, and is fully satisfied as to the scope, character, quality, quantity and requirements of the proposed work, and the submission of a bid will be an acknowledgement of that assumption.

The bidder shall receive no additional compensation for obstacles or difficulties due to surface or subsurface conditions actually encountered. Where investigations of surface or subsurface conditions have been made by the Town in respect to foundation or other structural design, and that information is shown in the plans, said information is included only for the convenience of bidders. The Town assumes no responsibility whatsoever as to the sufficiency or accuracy of borings, or of the log of test borings or other investigations or tests, or of the interpretation thereof; there is no guaranty, warranty or representation, express or implied, that the conditions indicated thereby in fact exist or are representative of those existing throughout the work. Such information shall be used as a basis for bids at the bidder's own and sole risk; making such information available to bidders is not to be construed in any way as a waiver of the other provisions of this paragraph, and bidders must satisfy themselves through their own investigation as to the surface and subsurface conditions to be encountered at the site. By submitting a Proposal, the Bidder has certified that he has examined all items indicated in Section 2.07, "Examination of Plans, Specifications, and Site of the Work."

Each proposal shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope and endorsed as specified in the Notice Invited Sealed Proposals. Bidders are warned the proposals containing irregularities of any kind, including erasures, omissions, conditions, alterations, or additional proposals may be rejected.

- 2.08 <u>Withdrawals of Proposals</u> Any proposal may be withdrawn at any time prior to the time fixed in the Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals for the opening of bids, provided that a request in writing, executed by the bidder or his duly authorized representative, for the withdrawal of such bid, is filed with the Town. The withdrawal will not prejudice the right of a bidder to file a new proposal.
- 2.09 <u>Proposal Guaranty</u> Each proposal shall be accompanied by either a certified check, cashier's check, or bidder's bond of a surety company acceptable to the Town in an amount not less than ten percent (10%) of the bid amount, and shall be made payable to the Town.
- 2.10 <u>Disqualification of Bidders</u> More than one proposal from an individual, firm or partnership, a corporation, or an association under the same or different names will not be considered. Reasonable grounds for believing that any bidder is interested in more than one proposal for the work will be the cause of the rejection of all proposals in which such bidder is interested. If there is a reason to believe that collusion exists among the bidders, none of the participants in such collusion will be considered. Proposals in which the prices obviously are unbalanced may be rejected.

2.11 <u>Bid Protest Procedures</u> – Any protest of the proposed contract award shall be submitted in writing to the Town Clerk no later than 5:00 p.m. on the fifth (5th) business day following the date of the bid opening. If the fifth day falls on a weekend or holiday, the last day of the protest period shall be the first working day following the fifth day.

The protest must include the name, address, and telephone number of the person representing the protesting party. In addition,

- (a) The party filing the protest must have submitted a bid for the Project. A Subcontractor of a party filing a bid for the project may not submit a bid protest.
- (b) The protest must contain a complete statement of the basis for the protest, and refer to the specific portion of the Contract Documents or the specific statute that forms the basis for the protest.
- (c) The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the protest to the proposed awardee.

Any bidder's failure to fully comply with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any right to further pursue a bid protest, including filing of a challenge of the award pursuant to the California Public Contract Code, filing of a claim pursuant to the California Government Code, or filing of any other legal proceedings.

The Town shall review all timely protests prior to the award of contract. The Town shall not be required to hold an administrative hearing to consider any protests, but may do so at its option. At the time of the Town Council's consideration of the project award, the Town Council shall also consider the merits of any timely protests. The Town Council may either reject the protest and award the project to the lowest responsible bidder or accept the protest and award the project to the next lowest responsible bidder. Nothing in this section shall be construed as a waiver of the Town Council's right to reject all bids.

2.12 <u>List of Subcontractors</u> - In accordance with Chapter 2, Division 5, Title 1 of the Government Code, each proposal shall have listed the name and address of such subcontractor to whom the bidder proposes to sublet portions of the work. A subcontractor is defined as one who contracts with the contractor to furnish materials and labor, or labor only, for performance of work at the building site. Subcontractors shall be listed on the form provided herewith.

SECTION 3: REVIEW OF BIDS, CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION

3.01 <u>Public Bid Opening and Initial Review</u> - Bids which have been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents, and which are received on or before the bid deadline will be opened publicly, and the dollar amounts of each bid shall be read aloud.

The Town shall have the right to reject all bids. The Town shall have the right to reject any bid not accompanied by the required bid security or any other item required by the Bidding Documents, or a bid which is in any other way incomplete or irregular. The Town shall have the right to waive irregularities in a bid, and to award the Contract to the Lowest Responsible Bidder (as determined by the Town), only if the irregularities are non-material and inconsequential.

3.02 <u>Determination of Lowest Responsible Bidder</u> - Criteria for determining low bid in all contracts with the Town involving an expenditure of \$5,000.00 or more shall be determined as the "Lowest Monetary Bidder" on the basis of the Engineer's approximate estimate of the quantities of work to be done as set forth in the Bid Schedule, in accordance with the calculation criteria set forth on the bid.

After the Lowest Monetary Bidder has been determined, the Engineer shall review that Bidder's bid in order to determine whether or not that Bidder is the "Lowest Responsible Bidder." The term Lowest Responsible Bidder shall mean the Lowest Monetary Bidder whose bid is responsive, and who is responsible to perform the work, as required by the Contract Documents.

The term "responsive" is defined by California law, but generally means that the bid has been prepared and submitted in accordance with the Bidding Requirements. The term "responsible" is defined by California law, but generally means that the Bidder is able to demonstrate that it possesses: (1) the capaTown to perform the work required by the Contract Documents with respect to financial strength, resources available, and experience; and (2) the integrity and trustworthiness to complete performance of the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The Town will make its determination of responsibility based upon information submitted by Bidders contained in the Bidders Qualifications and Bidders References included in the Bid Forms and, if necessary, through interviews with previous cities, clients, design professionals, or subcontractors with whom the Bidder has worked. In determining whether or not a Bidder is responsible, the Town may consider the following factors in relation to the work to be performed for this Project:

- (a) Demonstrated financial strength including, but not limited to, resources available, bonding capaTown, and available insurance.
- (b) Demonstrated safety record including, but not limited to, Experience Modification Rate.
- (c) Successful completion of projects of similar scope and size. In reviewing this factor, the Town may consider elements including, but not limited to, contract amount of completed projects, experience on public works projects, experience implementing prevailing wage certified payroll requirements, timeliness of performance and, if necessary, evaluation of the Bidder's work by previous cities, clients, design professionals, or subcontractors.
- (d) Sufficiency of contract administration and construction management systems including, but not limited to, proposed scheduling tools, proposed subcontract forms, proposed progress payment applications, and proposed certification of payroll documents.
- (e) History of claims, litigation, termination or disqualification from projects.

If the Engineer finds that the Lowest Monetary Bidder submitted a responsive Bid and that the Bidder is responsible, then that Bidder shall be deemed the apparent "Lowest Responsible Bidder," and the Engineer shall report the findings to the Town Council.

If the Engineer finds that the Lowest Monetary Bidder's bid is not responsive, or that the Lowest Monetary Bidder is not responsible, then the Engineer may review the responsiveness and responsibility

of the next Lowest Monetary Bidder. If the Engineer finds that the next Lowest Monetary Bidder is responsive and responsible, then that next lowest Bidder shall be deemed the apparent "Lowest Responsible Bidder," and Engineer shall report its findings as recommendations to the Town Council. This process may continue until the Engineer finds the Lowest Monetary Bidder which is also responsive and responsible.

In the event that one or more Low Monetary Bidders are found by the Engineer to be non-responsive or non-responsible, those Bidders will be given notice and a reasonable opportunity to present additional relevant evidence to the Engineer for consideration, within five (5) working days after the Bidder receives the notice.

All findings by the Engineer shall be reported as recommendations to the Town Council. The Town Council reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, and to waive any irregularity. No Bid shall be binding upon the Town until after the Agreement is signed by both the Contractor and the Town. If the Town Council determines that it is in the Town's best interest to award the Agreement, a Notice of Award shall be sent to the Lowest Responsible Bidder as determined by the Town Council. The Town Council's decision shall be final.

The Town may investigate the responsibility and qualifications of all Bidders to whom the award is contemplated for a period not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days after the Bid opening, during which time no bid shall be withdrawn by the Bidders. The ninety (90) day review period may be extended upon the written request by the Engineer and written approval by the affected Bidder.

- 3.03 Award of Contract Award of contract, if awarded, shall be made after the Town Council makes a determination as to which Bidder is the Lowest Responsible Bidder, the Town shall issue a Notice of Award to the Lowest Responsible Bidder. Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the Notice of Award, Bidder shall submit to the Town two (2) originals of the signed agreement, the required improvement securities, proof of insurance, a Town of Loomis business license and a copy of the required State Contractor's license. After the Bidder has properly submitted these documents, the Town will execute the Agreement and issue a Notice to Proceed.
- 3.04 <u>Execution of Contract</u> The contract agreement shall be signed by the successful bidder in quadruplicate, three copies shall be filed with the Town and one copy shall be delivered to the Contractor and returned to the Town, together with the contract bonds and Certificates of Insurance, within fifteen (15) days after the notice of award has been sent to him by mail at the address given by him in his proposal. If the bidder fails or refuses to enter into a contract to do the work, then the proposal guaranty accompanying the bid shall be forfeited to the Town.
- 3.05 <u>Status of Contractor</u> The right of general supervision by the Town shall not make the contractor an agent of the Town, and the liability of the contractor for all damages to persons or to public or private property arising from the contractor's execution of the work shall not be lessened because of such general supervision.
- 3.06 <u>Assignment</u> No agreement or portion thereof maybe assigned without consent of the Council, except that the Contractor may assign money due which will accrue to him under the Agreement. If given written notice, such assignment will be recognized by the Town to the extent permitted by law, but any assignment of money shall be subject to all proper setoffs and withholdings in favor of the Town and to all deductions provided for in the Agreement. All money withheld, whether assigned or not, shall be subject to being used by the Town for completion of the work, should the Contractor be in default.

Any attempt to assign or delegate the Agreement without the written consent of the Town shall be void and of no force and effect. Consent by the Town to one assignment shall not be deemed to be consent to any subsequent assignment.

3.07 <u>Recognition of Subcontractors</u> - No subcontractors will be recognized as such, and all persons engaged in the work of construction will be considered as employees of the contractor and their

work shall be subject to the provisions of the contract, including specifically these general stipulations, the specifications and the contract drawings.

- 3.08 Return of Bid Security Within ten (10) working days after the execution of the Agreement, the Town will return the proposal guarantees accompanying the proposals that are not to be considered in making the award. All other proposal guarantees will be held until the Agreement has been fully executed, after which, they will be returned to the respective bidders whose proposals they accompanied.
- 3.09 <u>Forfeiture of Proposal Guaranty</u> If Bidder does not properly execute the contract and submit the acceptable bonds, insurance and certifications within the specified time; this shall be just cause for the annulment of the award and the forfeiture of the proposal guaranty to the Town. The Town may then award the contract to next Lowest Responsible Bidder. The forfeited proposal guaranty may be utilized by the Town in accordance with Public Contract Code, Sections 20170 through 20174.
- 3.10 <u>Contract Bonds</u> Before execution of the contract by the Town, the Contractor shall file with the Town surety bonds satisfactory to the Town in the amounts, and for the purposes, noted below. Said bond shall be on the form furnished by the Town herein.
 - (a) Performance Bond The contractor shall furnish and bear the cost of a bond of a surety company acceptable to the Town, which bond is conditioned upon the faithful performance of all covenants and stipulations under this contract within the time prescribed, in a manner satisfactory to the Town, and that all materials and workmanship will be free from original or developed defects. The amount of the bond shall be one hundred percent (100%) of the total contract price; as such sum is set forth in the agreement.

Said bond shall be on the form furnished by the Town herein.

As a condition precedent to satisfactory completion of this contract, an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the estimated contract cost shall hold good for the period specified in said bond after completion and acceptance of the work by the Town.

(b) Labor and Material Bond – The contractor shall furnish and bear the cost of a bond of a surety company acceptable to the Town in the sum not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total contract price, as such sum is set forth in the agreement, for the payment in full of all persons, companies, or corporations who perform labor upon or furnish materials to be used in the work under this contract, in accordance with the provisions of Section 4200 to 4208, inclusive (Chapter 3, Division 5), of the Government Code of the State of California, and any acts amendatory thereof. The bond shall be maintained by the Contractor in full force and effect until the work is accepted by the Town and until all claims for materials and labor are paid.

Said bond shall be on the form furnished by the Town herein.

(c) Warranty Bond - The Contractor shall furnish a warranty bond in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the final contract price (total cost including change orders) to guaranty his work for one (1) year after acceptance of the work by the Town Council.

Bonds shall be duly executed by a responsible corporate Surety, licensed and authorized to issue such bonds in the State of California and secured through an authorized agent with an office in California. Each bond shall be signed by both the Contractor and Surety and the signature of the authorized agent of the Surety shall be notarized.

The Contractor shall pay all bond premiums, costs and incidentals. Should any bond become insufficient due to an increase in the contract amount, the Contractor shall obtain supplemental bonding within ten (10) days.

Should any Surety at any time be unsatisfactory to the Town, notice will be given the Contractor to that effect. No further payments shall be deemed due or will be made under the Agreement until a new Surety shall qualify and be accepted by the Town.

Changes in the work, or extensions of time, made pursuant to the Agreement, shall in no way release the Contractor or Surety from their obligations. The requirement for notifying the Surety of such changes or extensions shall be waived by the Surety.

- 3.11 <u>Notification of Surety Companies</u> The surety companies shall familiarize themselves with all conditions and provisions of this contract and they waive the right of special notification of any change or modification of this contract or of extension of time, or of decreased or increased work, or of the cancellation of the contract, or of any other act(s) by the Town or Town's authorized agents, under the terms of this contract, and failure to so notify the aforesaid surety companies of changes shall in no wise relieve the surety companies of their obligation under this contract.
- 3.12 <u>Power of Attorney</u> Attorneys-in-fact who sign bid bonds or contract bonds must file a certified and effectively dated copy of their Power of Attorney with each bond.
- 3.13 <u>Insurance Requirements Contractor shall provide at his own cost and expense from contract award date to acceptance of the work covered by the contract:</u>
 - (a) Workmen's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance of not less than the amount shown in the Special Provisions for all of his employees to be engaged in the work under this contract. Should any such work be sublet, the contractor shall require each of his subcontractors at any tier similarly to provide Workmen's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance, all in strict compliance with Federal and State laws.
 - (b) Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability Insurance (including automobiles, products and/or completed operations coverage) and Aircraft and Watercraft Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability Insurance if contractor uses owned or non-owned water aircraft in his operation, with Personal Injury and Bodily Injury (including death resulting therefrom) of not less than a combined Personal Injury and Property Damage Liability limit of not less than the amount shown in the Special Provisions. Should any work covered by the contract be sublet contractor shall require each of his subcontractors of any tier similarly to provide the aforesaid coverages.
 - (c) All Risk (excluding Earthquake and Flood) Builder's Risk Insurance in an amount not less than the value of any work under this contract, except for buried pipelines and appurtenances which need not be included in the insurance value. Under the policies of insurance described above, each policy shall contain the provision for thirty (30) days written notice submitted by registered mail from the insurance carrier(s) to the Town prior to cancellation or reduction in coverage.
- 3.14 <u>Special Requirements</u> Under the policy of insurance described in Section 13.13-b, the policy shall contain the following provisions:
 - (a) The Town and the Town's officers, representatives, agents and employees shall be named as additional insureds.
 - (b) Endorsement providing that such insurance is primary insurance and no insurance of the additional insureds shall be called on to contribute to a loss.

- (c) Endorsement providing that such insurance shall not contain any exclusion regarding loss or damage to property caused by explosion or resulting from collapse of buildings or structures or damage to property underground, commonly referred to as "XCU" hazards.
- (d) Standard cross-liability clause covering personal injury, bodily injury (including death resulting therefrom), and property damage.
- 3.15 <u>Builders Risk Insurance</u> Under the policy of insurance, the policy shall contain the following provisions:
 - (a) The Town shall be included as insured.
 - (b).. Losses shall be payable to the contractor and Town as their interest may appear.
 - (c).. Deductible amounts of all losses covered by insurance shall be borne by the contractor.
- 3.16 <u>Certificates</u> Prior to beginning work, contractor shall furnish certificates satisfactory to the Town as to contents and carriers of such insurance.
- 3.17 <u>Legal Address of Contractor</u> Contractor's address as shown in the proposal, as well as such office or headquarters the contractor establishes at the site of work, hereby are designated as addresses to which drawings, samples, notices, letters, articles, or other communications to the contractor may be mailed or delivered. The delivery at either of these places of any item or communication from the Town or agents thereof to the contractor shall be deemed sufficient service of such delivery. Contractor's address as shown in the proposal may be changed at any time by notice in writing from the contractor to the Town. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to preclude or render inoperative the service of any drawing, sample, notice, letter, or other article of communication to or upon the contractor personally.
- 3.18 Office of Contractor at Site During the performance of the contract, contractor shall maintain a suitable office at the site of work which shall be the headquarters of a representative authorized to receive drawings, instructions or other communications or articles from the Town or Town's agents; any such thing given to said representative or delivered at the contractor's office at the site of work in his absence shall be deemed to have been given to the contractor. Contractor shall maintain a complete set of plans and specifications at the site office whenever work is in progress.

SECTION 4 - SCOPE AND CONTROL OF WORK

4.01 <u>Work to be Done</u> – The work to be done consists of furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and services necessary to complete the project, as further described in the Notice to Bidders of these Specifications, and as necessary to leave the site in a neat and finished condition with all equipment properly installed and working to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

While the Town has endeavored to accurately represent in the plans and specifications the physical conditions which may affect the cost of the proposed work, the Town does not warrant the completeness or accuracy of such information. It is the Contractor's responsibility to ascertain the existence of any such conditions affecting the cost of the work, which would have been disclosed by reasonable examination of the site.

Conclusions pertaining to any test, investigation, statement or estimate of fact incorporated in the plans and specifications shall be considered by the Contractor to be a recommendation only. The Contractor may request equal access to the underlying or background information to arrive at his own opinion thereon, including his determination of how reliable might be any conclusion appearing in (or inferred from) the information. The Contractor may not rely upon "record drawings" or similar final or accepted drawings or maps constructed on public or private property. Such information may be used for reference only. Actual locations and depths shall be determined by field investigations by the Contractor.

No oral or telephonic agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of the Town or the Engineer, either before or after execution of the contract, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in any of the contract documents.

4.02 <u>Plans and Specifications</u> - It is the intent of the Plans and Specifications to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. For convenience, the Specifications are arranged in several sections, but such separation shall not be considered as the limits of the work required by any separate trade. The terms and conditions of such limitations are wholly between the Contractor and his subcontractors. In general, the Special Provisions, General Provisions, and other sections of the specifications indicate the responsibilities of the Contractor and the quality of material and methods of workmanship. The plans indicate dimensions, quantities, positions, and various other details of construction.

Any work, materials or equipment that may be reasonably inferred from the Contract Documents as being required to produce the intended result shall be supplied whether or not specifically called for. When words, which have a well-known technical or trade meaning, are used to describe the work, materials or equipment, such words shall be interpreted in accordance with that meaning. See General Provisions, Section 6.03, "Trade Names or Equals".

Subheadings and titles printed on the drawings in these General Provisions, in the specifications, and elsewhere in the contract documents, are inserted for the convenience of reference only, and shall not be taken or considered as having any bearing on the interpretation thereof.

4.03 References to Standards and Codes - Reference to standard specifications, manuals or codes of any technical society, organization or association, or to the Laws or Regulations of any governmental authority, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the latest standard specification, manual, code or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of the opening of bids (or, on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated. However, no provisions of any referenced standard specifications, manual or code (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents) shall be effective to change the duties and responsibilities of Town, Contractor or Engineer, or any of their consultants, agents or employees, from those set forth in the Contract Documents, nor shall it be effective to assign to the Engineer, or any of the Engineer's Consultants, agents or employees, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility for the Contractor.

- 4.04 <u>Authority of the Engineer</u> The Town has the final authority in all matters affecting the work. Within the scope of the Agreement, the Engineer has the authority to enforce compliance with the Plans and Specifications and the Contractor shall promptly comply with instructions from the Engineer. The decision of the Engineer is final and binding on all questions relating to: quantities; acceptability of materials furnished and work performed; equipment; work execution, rate of progress or sequence of work; and interpretation of the Plans, Specifications, or other drawings. This shall be precedent to any payment under the Agreement, unless otherwise ordered by the Town.
- 4.05 <u>Contract Documents and Precedence</u> The Contract Documents consist of the documents listed below, in order of precedence. If there is a conflict between component parts of the Contract Documents, the document highest in precedence controls.
 - a. Change Orders.
 - b. Project Directives.
 - c. Permits issued by other agencies.
 - d. Permits issued by the Town.
 - e. Agreement and required agreement forms Bid Bond, Faithful Performance and Labor and Materials Bonds, Warranty Bond, Insurance Endorsements, Worker's Compensation Certification.
 - f. Project Specifications, in the following order Addenda, Bid Proposal including all Bid Proposal Forms, Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals, Special Provisions, Technical Provisions, Exhibits to the Proposal, and General Provisions.
 - g. Project Plans and Drawings.
 - h. Town Standard Specifications.
 - i. Town Standard Plans.
 - j. Reference Specifications, in the following order State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) State Standard Specifications (current edition), Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction "Greenbook".
 - k. Reference Plans, in the following order State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) State Standard Plans (2006 edition), Standard Plans for Public Works Construction (2006 edition).

All of the individual components of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary and what is required by one shall be binding as if required by all. Interpretation of a disputed meaning or intent of the plans and specifications shall be made initially by the Engineer in accordance with the application of the order of precedence. Any final decision required regarding precedence and the clarification of discrepancies in the Contract Documents shall be made by the Engineer.

- 4.06 <u>Interpretation of Specifications and Drawings</u> The specifications and the contract drawings are intended to be explanatory of each other. Any work indicated in the contract drawings and not in the specifications, or vice versa, is to be executed as if indicated in both. Should it appear that the work to be done, or any of the matters relative thereto are not sufficiently detailed or explained in these contract documents, including the contract drawings, the contractor shall apply in writing to the Engineer for such further explanations as may be necessary and shall conform thereto as part of this contract so far as may be consist with the terms of the contract. Should any doubt or question arise respecting the true meaning of the specification, the Engineer shall make the final decision.
- 4.07 <u>Figured Dimensions</u> Figured dimensions on the contract drawings shall in all cases be given precedence over scaled dimensions. If figured dimensions do not correspond to scaled dimensions, contractor shall request Engineer to verify the accuracy of the figured dimensions. It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to ascertain the correct scale of all contract drawings in his possession, including those which may have been reduced for reproduction.

- 4.08 <u>Errors or Discrepancies</u> If the contractor, in the course of the work, discovers any discrepancies between the drawings and the conditions of the ground, or any errors or omissions in the drawings or in the layout given by stakes, points or instructions, it shall be his duty to inform the Engineer immediately in writing, and the Engineer shall promptly verify the same. Any work done after such discovery, until authorized, will be done at the contractor's risk.
- 4.09 <u>Drawings to be Furnished by Contractor</u> As soon as practical after the execution of this contract, the contractor shall supply drawings of devices to be furnished hereunder as are called for herein or as are required by the Engineer to make clear the details of construction and to demonstrate fully that all materials and equipment comply with the intent and provisions of this contract. Unless otherwise herein specified, such drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for his review. Should the Engineer take exception with any drawings furnished by the contractor, the contractor shall make the revisions required, and resubmit them to the Engineer for review. After a satisfactory review by the Engineer, these drawings shall become a part of this contract and the work shall be done in conformity therewith. No such work shall be begun or devices purchased until the review of the drawings detailing such items have been completed. The review of the drawings shall not relieve the contractor of responsibility, or waive or modify any of the provisions or requirements of this contract.

The Engineer's review of drawings submitted by the contractor will be for, and will cover, only generally conformity to the plans and specifications and will not constitute a blanket approval of all dimensions, quantities and details of the material or equipment shown by (nor shall review relieve the contractor of his responsibility for errors contained in) such drawings.

All shop drawings submitted by the various subcontractors which require review of the Town's representative shall first be sent to the contractor who shall keep a record of the drawing numbers and the date of their receipt by him. Contractor shall submit the drawings to Town's representative for review in time to prevent delays in delivery of materials.

Contractor shall thoroughly check all such shop drawings for measurements, size of member, materials and details to make sure they conform to the intent of the plans and specifications. Drawings found to be inaccurate or otherwise in error shall be returned by the contractor to the subcontractor for correction before they are submitted by the contractor to the Town's representative for review.

- 4.10 <u>Additional Drawings by Town</u> Contract drawings are intended to be comprehensive and to indicate in detail the scope of the work. However, the Engineer may furnish the contractor additional drawings during the progress of the work in order to clarify and define in greater detail the intent of the contract drawings or specifications. Contractor may request such detailed drawings by submitting his request in writing to the Engineer at least two (2) weeks in advance of the time they are required.
- 4.11 <u>Lines and Grades</u> All work under this contract shall be constructed to the lines, grades and elevations shown on the contract drawings. Contractor shall establish the lines, grades and elevations unless it is otherwise specified in the Special Provisions.
- 4.12 <u>Record Documents</u> The Contractor shall keep at the worksite a record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Written Amendments, Change Orders, Work Directives, Field Orders and written interpretations and clarifications. These record documents together with all approved submittals, samples and shop drawings will be available to the Engineer as a reference at all times. Upon completion of the work, these record documents will be delivered to Engineer.
- 4.13 <u>Record Drawings</u> –The Contractor shall prepare and update a master "as-built" set of red ink-lined plans, to be reviewed and approved by the Engineer at the end of every month. Drawings shall contain information showing where actual installation differs from that shown on the original drawings, where underground or concealed features are found noting alignment (to 0.25') and elevation (to 0.1'), field changes or deletions of work, and any additional work by change order. Upon the project's completion, and prior to the project's acceptance, the Contractor shall submit to the Town the completed as-built record Drawings on one (1) set of full size prints prepared on 22" x 34" paper.

Record Drawings are full size drawings (Plans) which marked up during construction to delineate the actual in-place constructed conditions. Record Drawings shall be provided by the Contractor for this Project. Requirements for Record Drawings as specified elsewhere shall supplement the requirements specified herein.

- 4.14 <u>Reuse of Documents</u> Neither the Contractor nor any Subcontractor or supplier or other person or organization performing or furnishing any of the work under a direct or indirect agreement with the Town shall have any title or rights to any of the Drawings, Specifications or other documents (or copies thereof) which bear the seal of the design engineer. Such documents shall not be reused on extensions of the project or for any other project without written consent of the Town and the design engineer.
- 4.15 <u>Subsurface Data</u> If completed, all soil and soil test data, water table elevations, and soil analyses included or referred to in the Contract Documents apply only at the location of the test holes and to the depths indicated. If completed, soil test reports for test holes which have been drilled are available for inspection at the office of the Engineer. Any additional subsurface exploration shall be done by Bidders or the Contractor at their own expense.

The elevation of the water table indicated by soil test reports is that which existed on the date the test hole was drilled. It is the Contractor's responsibility to determine and allow for the possibility of differing ground water elevations on the date of the project's construction. A difference in elevation between ground water shown in soil boring logs and ground water actually encountered during construction will not be considered as a basis for extra work.

- 4.16 <u>Right-of-Way</u> Acquisition of right-of-way or permanent easements necessary for the improvements as shown on the plans will be provided by the Town. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make his own arrangements, pay for, and assume all responsibility for acquiring, using, and disposing of additional work areas, easements, and temporary facilities required. Contractor shall identify and hold the Town harmless from all claims for damages resulting from such actions.
- 4.17 <u>Removal of Defective and Unauthorized Work</u> Should the Contractor deliberately proceed with any portion or phase of construction which is obviously incorrectly indicated in the contract plans or documents, he shall be responsible for any corrective measures required to make adequate repairs or adjustment. This shall include any work done beyond the lines and grades shown on the plans or established by the Engineer, or any extra work done without written authority.

All work that has been rejected shall be remedied or removed and replaced by the Contractor in an acceptable manner and no compensation will be allowed for such removal or replacement. If the Contractor fails to remedy rejected work within ten (10) working days after written demand, the Town may, without prejudice to other remedies, sell such materials at auction or at private sale, or otherwise dispose of such material. The Contractor shall be entitled to the proceeds of such sale, if any, in excess of the costs and damages for which the Contractor is liable to the Town, including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses and compensation for the Town's services and expenses.

- 4.18 Acceptance of Defective Work The Town shall have the option, at its sole discretion and by written notice to the Contractor, to accept defective work instead of requiring its removal or correction, in which case the contract sum shall be reduced by an amount equal to the difference between the value to the Town such work would have were it complete, correct, and in conformity with the Contract Documents and the value to the Town of such defective work. Such option shall be exercised solely by written notice to the Contractor and shall not be implied from any act or omission by the Town or the Engineer. If the remaining payments and retention are insufficient to cover the amount of the reduction of the contract sum, the Contractor shall promptly pay to the Town the amount of any such deficiency.
- 4.19 <u>Submittals</u> Within ten (10) working days following the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall provide a detailed list for review and approval of all individual submittals required to be submitted under the contract. The list shall reference the specification section and paragraph that requires the submittal along with the date the Contractor plans to transmit the submittal to the Town for review.

Unless otherwise requested by the Engineer, submittals shall be provided electronically in .pdf format at least twenty-eight (28) calendar days prior to the approval being necessary for the work. Submittals shall be transmitted with a Submittal Cover Letter form as approved by the Engineer. Large submittals consisting of reports, oversized or colored pages, full sized shop drawings, manuals contained in binders, or submittals in other forms not easily reproduced shall be provided in hard copy format with six (6) copies.

For items requiring shop drawings, no materials shall be furnished, and no work shall be performed, until the drawings have been favorably reviewed. Shop drawings shall be of a size and scale to clearly show all necessary details.

After review by the Town of each of the Contractor's submittals, the material will be returned to the Contractor marked with actions defined as follows:

- (a) NO EXCEPTIONS TAKEN Accepted subject to its compatibility with future submissions and additional partial submissions for portions of the work not covered in this submission. Does not constitute acceptance of deletion of specified or required items not shown in a partial submission.
- (b) MAKE CORRECTIONS NOTED The same as item (a), except that minor corrections as noted by the Town shall be made by the Contractor. No resubmission is required.
- (c) REVISE AND RESUBMIT Rejected because of major inconsistencies or errors which shall be resolved or corrected by the Contractor prior to subsequent review by the Town.
- (d) REJECTED Submitted material does not conform to plans and Specifications in major respects. This material is not expected to be resubmitted.
- (e) SUBMIT SPECIFIED ITEM Submittals not reviewed by the Town but received for record purposes.

Favorable review of the shop drawings by the Engineer is interpreted to mean that there is substantial and acceptable conformance with the contract plans, but details of design may not necessarily be checked for adequacy or accuracy. Such acceptance shall not relieve the Contractor from the responsibility for errors or omissions in the shop drawings or from deviations from the contract documents unless such errors, omissions, or deviations were specifically called to the attention of the Engineer in writing. The Contractor shall be responsible for the correctness of the shop drawings, for shop fits and field corrections, and for the results obtained by the use of such plans.

4.20 <u>Substitutions</u> – Proposed requests by the Contractor for changes in products, materials, equipment, and methods of construction required under the Contract Documents after the award of contract are considered "requests for substitutions." For proposed "or equal" substitutions, attention is directed to General Provision Section 6.03, "Trade Names or Equals."

Each request for substitution shall be prepared and presented to the Town in accordance with the procedures for submittals, except that the following additional information shall be provided.

- (a) An explanation of the advantages to the Town for accepting the substitution.
- (b) A comparison of significant qualities of the proposed substitution with those specified.
- (c) A list of changes or modifications needed to other parts of the work and to construction performed by the Town and separate Contractors, that will be necessary to accommodate the proposed substitution.
- (d) A statement indicating the substitution's effect on the Construction Schedule compared to the Baseline Construction Schedule without acceptance of the substitution. Indicate the effect of the proposed substitution on overall contract time.
- (e) Cost information, including a proposal of the net change, if any, in the Contract Sum.

(f) Certification that the substitution is equal to or better in every respect to that required by Contract Documents, and that it will perform adequately in application indicated. Include Contractor's waiver of rights to additional payment or time extensions, that may be necessary because of the substitution's failure to perform adequately.

No extension of time will be allowed through failure of the Contractor to either transmit requests for substitution sufficiently in advance of the work, or on account of processing time outside the time limits noted.

4.21 <u>Construction Staking Lines and Grades</u> - Unless otherwise stated in the Special Provisions, the Contractor shall provide, preserve, and replace if necessary, all of the necessary construction stakes required for the construction of the project. Grades for underground conduits will be set on the ground surface and shall then be transferred to the bottom of the trench by the Contractor.

Stakes or marks will be set by a California Licensed Surveyor or a California Registered Civil Engineer to establish the lines and grades required for the completion of the work as specified in the Contract Documents. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to notify the Engineer of any discrepancies found between field grades and notes shown within the Contract Documents.

Contractor shall furnish horizontal control and cut sheets to the Engineer immediately upon the setting of construction or boundary markers. Upon completion, all work shall conform to the lines, elevations, and grades shown on the plans.

4.22 <u>Inspection of the Work</u> - All work is subject to inspection and approval of the Engineer. Unless otherwise stated in the specifications, the Town shall perform all required inspections. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer before noon of the working day before inspection is required. Unless otherwise authorized, work shall be done only in the presence of the Engineer. Any work done without proper inspection will be subject to rejection. The Engineer shall at all times have access to the work during its construction at shops and yards as well as the project site. The Contractor shall provide every reasonable facility for ascertaining that the materials and workmanship are in accordance with the Contract Documents. Inspection of the work shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to fulfill all conditions of the contract.

If a portion of the work is covered contrary to the Engineer's request or direction, or contrary to the requirements of the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the Engineer, be uncovered for the Engineer's observation and be replaced at Contractor's expense without adjustment of the contract time or the contract sum.

If a portion of the work has been covered, which is not required by the Contract Documents to be observed or inspected prior to it's being covered and which the Engineer has not specifically requested to observe prior to it's being covered, the Engineer may request to see such work and it shall be uncovered and replaced by Contractor. If such work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the costs of uncovering and replacing the work shall be added to the contract sum by change order; and if the uncovering and replacing of the work extends the contract time, an appropriate adjustment of the contract time shall be made by change order. If such work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such costs and shall not be entitled to an adjustment of the contract time or the contract sum.

Regular working hours for Town Construction Inspectors are between 7:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding Town holidays. If the Contractor works outside these times, the Contractor may be charged for additional inspection. Inspection by the Engineer or by a Town inspector, or any order measurement, approved modifications, certificate or payment of money, or acceptance of any part of whole of the work, or any extension of time, or any possession by the Town or its agents, shall not operate as a waiver for any provision of this contract or of any power reserved therein to the Town, or any right to damage thereunder; no breach of this contract shall be held to a waiver of any or subsequent breach. All remedies shall be taken and construed as cumulative.

4.23 <u>Testing</u> - Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all required testing will either be performed directly by an independent laboratory coordinated and paid for by the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit the resulting certified test results and Certificates of Compliance for all materials requiring such as specified in the Technical Provision. Contractor shall cooperate with the Town in coordinating the necessary testing. The coordination of testing, including the number and location of tests, shall be under the direction of the Engineer. All compaction test sites deeper than five (5') feet below grade shall be properly shored by the Contractor to protect testing personnel.

The cost for performing re-tests due to failures, or additional call-outs if work is not ready to test, will be charged to the Contractor. The Town shall require retesting until all required tests are successfully passed.

SECTION 5 - CHANGES IN WORK

- 5.01 <u>Limited Town Authority to Approve Change Orders</u> The Contractor recognizes that the Town is a public agency and that it can only act through its duly authorized agents. In this regard, the Contractor agrees that only written change orders, executed by the governing body of the Town, shall be valid. The Engineer shall have no authority to issue a change order unless so specifically authorized, and no person shall have authority to issue any oral change order.
- 5.02 <u>Contractor Liability for Unapproved Change Orders</u> Unless a valid change order is issued, all changes in the work performed by the Contractor shall be at the Contractor's own risk, and shall not be entitled to any additional compensation. Furthermore, the Contractor may be required to make the work conform to the plans and specifications. No act or series of acts by the Town during the course of the contract shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the Town's right to rely upon the provisions of this Section 5, "Changes in Work".
- 5.03 <u>Non-Material Change Requests by the Contractor</u> Changes in the plans and specifications requested in writing by the Contractor, which do not materially affect the work and which are not detrimental to the work or to the interests of the Town, may be granted to facilitate the work, when approved in writing by the Engineer. If such changes are granted, they shall be made at a reduction in cost or at no additional cost to the Town. Nothing herein shall be construed as granting a right to the Contractor to demand acceptance of such changes or to increase the contract sum or contract time as a result of the proposed change.
- 5.04 <u>Effect of Extension of Time</u> The granting of any extension of time due to delays which, in the judgment of the Town, are unavoidable delays shall in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the Town of his rights under this contract.
- 5.05 <u>Letters of Instruction</u> The Engineer may issue letters of instruction in the form of Field Orders, Clarifications, responses to Requests for Information, or any other document which makes interpretations or clarifications to the Contract Documents that do not modify the scope of work or involve an adjustment in the contract sum or contract time. Letters of Instruction shall be binding upon the Contractor, and the Contractor shall promptly carry out the requirements of such Letters of Instruction.
- 5.06 <u>Requests for Information, Inconsistencies and Changed Conditions</u> Before undertaking each part of the work, the Contractor shall carefully study all pertinent figures shown in the Contract Documents and verify that all applicable field measurements are free of conflicts, errors, discrepancies, inconsistencies and omissions. If such conditions are discovered, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer by writing a Request for Information, and await direction from the Engineer before proceeding.

If the Contractor encounters a changed condition, as defined by one or more of the conditions below, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer by writing a Request for Information before disturbing the condition further.

- (a) Material differing from that represented in the Contract which the Contractor believes may be hazardous waste, as defined by Health and Safety Code, Section 25117 that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provision of existing law; and
- (b) Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing materially from those represented in the Contract Documents; and
- (c) Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the work and of the character provided for in the Contract Documents.

No extension of Contract time shall be made by the Town due to the Contractor's failure to provide a timely written notice of any inconsistency or changed condition requiring direction. The Engineer will respond to the Contractor's Request for Information within three working days, providing an interpretation, clarification or change order for an appropriate adjustment in contract time and cost pursuant to General Provisions, Section 5.07, and "Change Orders". Contractor shall wait for the Engineer's written response to a Request for Information before proceeding with any work.

The Contractor shall not be liable to the Town for failure to report any conflict, error, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, unless the Contractor had actual knowledge or could foresee such conditions as may be discovered by a reasonable examination of the work site or materials. If the Contractor performs any construction activity in which he knows or should know involves an error, inconsistency, ambiguity, or omission referred to in this Section, without notifying and obtaining the written consent of the Engineer, Contractor shall be responsible for the resultant costs, including, without limitation, the costs of correcting defective work. However, in an emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall take all reasonably necessary precautions to prevent or minimize damage, injury, or loss.

5.07 Extra and Omitted Work - Whenever corrections, alterations or modifications of the work under this contract are ordered and approved by the Engineer and increase the amount of work to be done, such added work shall be known as Extra Work. When such corrections, alterations or modifications decrease the amount of work to be done, such deleted work shall be known as Omitted Work. The General and Special Provisions shall apply with equal force to all extra and omitted work.

When the contractor considers that any changes ordered involve extra or omitted work, he shall immediately notify the Engineer in writing and subsequently keep him informed as to when and where the alleged extra work is to be performed.

When extra work reports are agreed upon and signed by both parties, they shall become the basis of payment. When extra work is still under negotiation or has not been agreed upon, the Contractor shall keep daily detailed and accurate records itemizing each element of cost and shall provide certified payroll, invoices, and other substantiating records and documentation with records and/or claims for compensation to be provided no later than 30 days following the time in which the work claiming to be extra was performed.

Unless notification of extra work is documented, and unless a complete statement of materials used and expenses incurred is furnished by the contractor, the contractor shall not be entitled to payment of such alleged extra work, and any future claims for compensation will be invalid.

Payment for extra work shall be in accordance with General Provisions, Section 5.08 - "Change Orders". Omitted work shall not constitute a claim for damages on account of anticipated profits on the work that may be omitted.

5.08 <u>Change Orders</u> – At any time during the progress of the work, and without in any way rendering void the Agreement, the Town may order alterations, additions or deductions from the work by change order, without notice to sureties. When so ordered in writing, the Contractor shall proceed with work as directed by the change order.

The change order shall describe the change in the work, the adjustment of the contract sum (if any), and the adjustment of the contract time (if any). The Contractor shall not be entitled to any extension of time for the completion of the work by virtue of any change order unless the change order specifically provides for this. If, after receiving a change order, the Contractor feels that he is entitled to an extension of time, he may, within five (5) working days file a written claim to that effect for consideration by the Engineer.

The process of submitting a proposed change, a cost proposal, or negotiating an agreed upon change order, or any failure to reach an agreement as to an adjustment in the contract sum or the contract time, shall not relieve the Contractor of his obligation to perform in accordance with the Contract Documents.

A change order may be in the form of a Town directed change order or an agreed upon change order. Upon the receipt of either form of change order, the Contractor shall proceed promptly and diligently with the extra work.

- (a) Town Directed Change Orders A Town directed change order may be issued by the Town without the Contractor's signature where the Town determines that it is in the Town's best interest to proceed with the work, and the change does not materially alter the character of the work. The Contractor shall be deemed to have accepted the terms of any Town directed change order unless the Contractor asserts a claim with respect to the change order, no later than ten (10) working days following the Contractor's receipt of the change order. See General Provisions, Section 5.09', "Disputed Work".
- (b) Agreed Upon Change Orders Within five (5) working days after receiving a request from the Town for a written proposal for an agreed upon Change Order, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer with a cost proposal in a form satisfactory to the Engineer, setting forth the Contractor's proposed adjustments to the contract sum and contract time for performing the extra work.

Compensation for agreed upon change orders shall be calculated based upon the unit prices stated in the Bid Schedule and no additional markup for overhead or profit will be provided unless stated otherwise as follows. If there are no unit prices for the extra work, the Contractor and the Town may agree upon unit prices or lump sum costs, which shall be used to increase or decrease the contract sum. In the absence of any such agreement, the contract sum shall be adjusted by Force Account.

- 1. Quantity Adjustments Unit prices shall govern not only for alterations to work covered by written specifications and drawings, but also for other work incidental or necessary to completing the work for which written specifications and drawings may be later prepared. Whenever an item of work or materials is specified in the contract by unit price and is changed by less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the Engineer's estimated quantity for that item of work as specified in the Bid Schedule, then the contract sum shall be increased or decreased by the application of the unit price so specified. Whenever an item of work exceeds twenty-five percent (25%) of the Engineer's estimated quantity, the Town reserves the right to renegotiate with the Contractor for the unit price associated with that bid item. This renegotiated price shall apply to only the amount in excess of twenty-five percent (25%). If the Town decides not to renegotiate, or a renegotiated price cannot be reached by the Contractor and the Town, then the payment for this item shall be adjusted by Force Account.
- 2. Agreed Upon Price If there are no unit prices for proposed extra work, the Contractor and the Town may agree upon unit prices or lump sum costs, by written change order, prior to commencing work. In the absence of any such agreement, the contract sum shall be adjusted by Force Account.
- 3. Force Account When extra work is to be paid on a force account basis, the labor, materials and equipment used in the performance of that work shall be paid in accordance with the 2010 State Standard Specification, Section 9-1.04 "Force Account." To the total of the direct costs computed, there can be an added markup of up to thirty-five percent (35%) to the cost of labor, up to fifteen-percent (15%) to the cost of materials and up to fifteen-percent (15%) to the cost of equipment. These markups shall constitute full compensation for any and all overhead costs, profit, or other costs not specifically designated as a cost of labor, material or equipment. When subcontractors perform force account work, an additional tenpercent (10%) markup shall be added to the total cost of the extra work to reimburse the Contractor for additional administrative costs. No markup for any Subcontractor beyond the first tier shall be paid.

During the performance of extra work by Force Account, and as a condition to the Contractor's right to an adjustment of the contract sum, the Contractor shall prepare daily reports itemizing all costs for labor, materials, and equipment rental

and provide certified payrolls. For labor costs, the reports shall include names, job classifications, hours worked and rates of pay. For equipment costs, the reports shall include size, type, identification number and hours of operation. All records and reports shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval on a daily basis. Reports shall be made on the State of California, Daily Extra Work Report Form or on a similar form approved by the Engineer.

- i. Labor Labor costs shall be based on the prevailing wage scale for each craft or type of workman, and no compensation shall be allowed for payment in excess of the prevailing wage. Employer payments for payroll taxes and insurance, health and welfare, pension, vacation, and other direct labor costs shall be included and will be calculated as the Labor Surcharge stipulated in the State of California, Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates book.
- ii. Materials Materials cost shall be the cost of all materials purchased by the Contractor and used in the extra work and shall be the actual cost of such materials, including sales taxes, freight and delivery charges. The Town reserves the right to reject materials to be furnished by the Contractor, sources of supply or, if necessary, to furnish the materials to the Contractor. No compensation will be paid to the Contractor for any material furnished by the Town or for materials not used.
- iii. Equipment Rental The Contractor will be allowed the actual rental rate of equipment, prorated over the time the machinery or equipment is required. For Contractor owned equipment, this rate shall be as stipulated in the State of California, Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates book. In addition, the Contractor will be allowed reasonable move-in and moveout charges, if applicable. All equipment shall, in the opinion of the Engineer, be in good working order, good condition, and suitable for its purpose. Equipment or tools having a replacement value of \$200.00 or less, whether or not consumed by use, shall be considered small tools and no payment will be made therefore.
- iv. Other Services or Expenditures The Town may authorize and approve payment for work performed by special forces or necessary services and expenditures other than labor, materials, and equipment rental.
- 5.09 <u>Disputed Work</u> When the Engineer and Contractor fail to agree as to whether an alteration ordered by the Engineer constitutes a material change or difference in the character of the work, or fail to agree upon the compensation to be allowed for such altered work, the Contractor shall proceed with the altered work and file with the Engineer, within ten (10) working days after receiving direction from the Engineer, a written protest detailing the particulars of the dispute and the amount of additional compensation or time required for the alteration. Failure of the Engineer to recognize a change in the character of work when ordering alterations shall in no way be construed as relieving the Contractor of the Contractor's duty and responsibility for filing a protest as prescribed above. The Town will not consider additional compensation for altered work unless the Contractor files a written protest within ten (10) working days after receiving direction from the Engineer.

If the Contractor has complied with the notification requirements of this sub-section, consideration of payment due shall be made as later determined through claim resolution procedures as set forth in General Provisions, Section 10, "Measurement and Payment".

Although not to be considered as approval for proceeding under extra work provisions, the Contractor shall keep and furnish records of disputed work in accordance with General Provisions, Section 5.07, "Extra Work".

SECTION 6 - CONTROL OF MATERIALS

6.01 <u>Materials and Workmanship</u> - All materials, parts and equipment furnished by the Contractor in the work shall be new, high grade, and free from defects. Workmanship shall be in accordance with generally accepted standards. Materials and workmanship shall be subject to the Engineer's approval.

Materials and workmanship not conforming to the requirements of these specifications shall be considered defective and will be subject to rejection. Defective work or material, whether in place or not, shall be removed immediately from the site by the Contractor, at his expense, when so directed by the Engineer.

If the Contractor fails to replace any defective or damaged work or material after notice from the Engineer, the Engineer may cause such work or materials to be replaced. The replacement expense shall be deducted from the amount to be paid to the Contractor.

Used or secondhand materials, parts and equipment are permissible only if permitted by the Special Provisions.

Specialized material or equipment to be used in the work that is not readily available from material suppliers (such as electroliers, luminaries, signal poles, heads, cable, controllers, pumps, etc.) shall be ordered within five (5) days after award of the contract. Time extensions will not be granted for project delays due to the unavailability of such specialized material and equipment unless the Contractor furnishes the Engineer with documentation of purchase order dates, acceptable reason for delay of delivery, or proof of diligent efforts to obtain said items from alternate sources.

The Contractor shall provide the Engineer with periodic reports to inform the Engineer of any changes in the projected material or equipment delivery dates.

6.02 <u>Protection of Work and Materials</u> - The Contractor shall provide and maintain storage facilities and employ such measures as will preserve the specified quality and fitness of materials to be used in the work. Stored materials shall be reasonably accessible for inspection. The Contractor shall also adequately protect new and existing work and equipment for the duration of his contract.

The Contractor shall not, without the Town's consent, assign, sell, mortgage, hypothecate, or remove equipment or materials which have been installed or delivered and which may be necessary for the completion of the contract.

6.03 Trade Names or Equals - Whenever any particular material, process, or equipment is indicated by patent, proprietary or brand name, or by name of a manufacturer, such wording is used for the purpose of facilitating its description and shall be deemed to be followed by the words "or equal". Because products specified may have a uniqueness that can't be matched, the Contractor must "bid" the work based upon the products specified. If, during the submittal process, an equivalent product is proposed by the contractor, the contractor must provide data to show that the product is considered equal. Contractor shall also identify any price differences, which shall be considered as part of the substitution and if accepted, shall result in an appropriate credit or cost to the Town by change order should the substitution be made.

Unless otherwise authorized by the Engineer, the offer must be submitted in sufficient time, before the normal use or installation of the material, process or equipment, for the Engineer to determine the equivalency and for the Contractor to make any required purchases (including delivery).

The Contractor shall, at his expense furnish data concerning items offered by him as equivalent to those specified. The Contractor shall have the material tested as required by the Engineer to determine that the quality, strength, physical, chemical, or other characteristics, including durability, finish, efficiency,

dimensions, service, and suitability are such that the item will fulfill its intended function. Installation and use of a proposed item shall not occur until after approval by the Engineer.

Test methods shall be submitted for approval by the Engineer prior to the test being performed on an item proposed for substitution. Test results shall be reported promptly to the Engineer, who will evaluate the results and determine if the proposed item is equivalent. The Engineer shall determine whether the material offered is equivalent to that specified, and the Engineer's findings shall be final. If a substitute offered by the Contractor is found to be not equal to the specified material, the Contractor shall furnish and install the specified material.

The specified contract completion time shall not be affected by any circumstances developing from the provisions of this Section.

6.04 <u>Inspection of Materials by Town</u> - Unless otherwise specified, inspection may be required at the source for such typical materials and fabricated items as bituminous paving mixtures, structural concrete, metal fabrication, metal casting, welding, concrete pipe manufacture, protective coating application, and similar shop or plant operations.

Standard items of equipment such as electric motors, conveyers, elevators, plumbing fixtures, etc., are subject to inspection at the job site. Special items of equipment such as designed electrical panel boards, large pumps, sewage plant equipment, etc., are subject to inspection at the source, normally only for performance testing. The Special Provisions may specify additional inspection requirements.

- 6.05 <u>Inspection of Materials by Others</u> When the Town does not elect to make its own inspection at the source, the Town may, at its expense, engage an inspector or accredited testing laboratory to inspect the materials, equipment or process. The inspector or representative of the testing laboratory shall judge the materials by the requirements of the plans and specifications. No materials or equipment shall be shipped nor any processing, fabrication or treatment of such materials shall be done without a favorable inspection by the engaged agent. These materials shall be subject to re-inspection at the jobsite.
- 6.06 <u>Tests of Materials</u> Before incorporation into the work, the Contractor shall submit samples of materials, as the Engineer may require, at no cost to the Town. The Contractor, at his own expense, shall deliver the materials for testing to the place, and at the time designated, by the Engineer. Unless otherwise provided by the Special Provisions, all testing shall be performed under the direction of the Engineer, and at no expense to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall notify the Town in writing at least fifteen (15) days in advance of his intention to use materials for which tests are specified, to allow sufficient time for the Town to perform the tests. The notice shall name the proposed supplier and source of material.

- 6.07 <u>Certification</u> The Engineer may waive material testing requirements of the Specifications and accept the manufacturer's written Certificate of Compliance or test data demonstrating that the materials to be supplied meet the requirements of the specifications. A Certificate of Compliance is acceptable for authorizing the use of steel pipe in sizes less than eighteen (18) inches and vitrified clay, cast iron or ductile iron pipe in all sizes. All materials used on the basis of a Certificate of Compliance may be sampled or tested by the Town at any time. The fact that material is used on the basis of a Certificate of Compliance shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for incorporating materials in the work which conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 6.08 <u>Weighing and Metering Equipment</u> All scales and metering equipment used for proportioning materials shall be inspected for accuracy and certified within the past twelve (12) months by the State of California Bureau of Weights and Measures, by the County Director or Sealer of Weights and Measures, or by a scale mechanic registered with or licensed by the County,

The accuracy of the work by a scale service agency, except as stated herein, shall meet the standards of the California Business and Professions Code and the California Code of Regulations

pertaining to weighing devices. A certificate of compliance shall be presented to the Engineer for approval prior to operation, and shall be renewed whenever required by the Engineer at no cost to the Town.

All scales shall be arranged so they may be read easily from the operator's platform or area. They shall indicate the true net weight without the application of any factor. The figures of the scales shall be clearly legible. Scales shall be accurate to within one-percent (1%) when tested with the plant shut down. Weighing equipment shall be so insulated against vibration or moving of other operating equipment in the plant area such that the error in weighing with the entire plant running will not exceed two-percent (2%) for any setting nor one and one half percent (1.5%) for any batch.

6.09 <u>Calibration of Testing Equipment</u> – Testing equipment, such as but not limited to, pressure gages, metering devices, hydraulic systems, force (load) measuring instruments, and strain-measuring devices shall be calibrated by a testing agency acceptable to the Engineer at intervals not to exceed twelve (12) months, and following repairs, modification, or relocation of the equipment. Calibration certificates shall be provided when requested by the Engineer.

SECTION 7 – UTILITIES

- 7.01 Town's Statutory Obligation Pursuant to Government Code, Section 4215: "in any contract to which a public agency as defined in Section 4401 is a party, the public agency shall assume the responsibility, between the parties to the contract, for the timely removal, relocation, or protection of existing main or trunk line utility facilities located on the site of any construction project that is the subject of the contract, if such utilities are not identified by the public agency in the plans and specifications made a part of the invitation for bids. The contract documents shall include provisions to compensate the Contractor for the costs of location, repairing damage not due to the failure of the Contractor to exercise reasonable care, and removing or relocating such utility facilities not indicated in the plans and specifications with reasonable accuracy and for equipment on the project necessarily idled during such work. The Contract documents shall include provisions that the Contractor shall not be assessed liquidated damages for delay in completion of the project, when such delay was caused by the failure of the public agency or the owner of the utility to provide for removal or relocation of such utility facilities."
- 7.02 Contractor's Obligation to Identify and Protect Subsurface Infrastructure The Contractor shall locate and protect service laterals, conduits, and appurtenances of any underground facility, the presence of which could be reasonably inferred from the Contract Documents or from the presence of visible facilities such as buildings, meters, and junction boxes, prior to doing any work that may damage any such facilities, or interfere with their service. Where underground main distribution conduits, such as water, gas, sewer, electric power, telephone, or cable television are shown on the plans, the Contractor shall assume that every parcel will be served by a service connection for each type of utility. The Contractor shall comply with all requirements for the protection of underground infrastructure as set forth in Government Code, Sections 4215 through 4216.9.

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to complete all work in a manner that satisfies utility company standards, providing if requested, detailed plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer showing necessary temporary support of utilities during coordinated construction work. The Contractor is directed to contact these agencies before submitting bids and to be familiar with their requirements and shall include all costs of this coordination within the proposals bid prices.

The Contractor agrees to assume liability and to hold the Town of Loomis, its officers, and employees harmless from any damages resulting from the existence of underground utilities and structures not reported to the Engineer, not indicated on the public records examined, or located at variance with that reported or shown on records examined.

7.03 <u>Location</u> - The Town will search known records and indicate on the plans those utilities, except service connections, which may affect the work. All available information regarding removal, relocation, or disconnection of utilities, or installation of new utilities, will be furnished to prospective bidders before the receipt of bids. The Contractor shall immediately report to the Engineer those utilities omitted from the plans or found substantially at variance with the location shown.

Existing and proposed utilities and improvements are shown in their approximate locations. Locations may not have been field verified and no guarantee is made as to the accuracy and completeness of the information shown. The fact that any facility is not shown on the plans shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility under this Section. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to determine the existence and location of utilities shown on the plans, indicated by field locating services, or evidenced by facilities visible in the field. No additional compensation will be allowed for delays incurred as a result of the Contractor's failure to field verify and/or pothole existing utilities prior to beginning construction. Potholing shall be considered as part of the various contract bid items and no additional compensation will be allowed.

At least three (3) working days prior to commencing work, the Contractor shall request that utility and agencies mark or otherwise indicate the location of their substructures. Contractor shall contact Underground Service Alert (USA) at (800) 642-2444 and the Engineer at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to excavation. The location of utilities as shown on the plans are approximate and are not to be construed as certainty. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to determine the true location and depth of all utilities

and service connections affecting or conflicting with the work, prior to the performance of the work. As necessary, the Contractor shall pothole these utilities prior to working in the area to avoid damage to them. Potholing shall be considered as part of the contract bid items, and no separate payment will be made. Contractor shall familiarize himself with the type, material, age and condition of any utility which may be affected by the work.

7.04 <u>Protection</u> - As necessary or as directed by the Engineer, the Contractor shall field adjust proposed improvements to avoid conflicts with existing improvements. The Contractor shall not interrupt the service function or disturb the supporting base of any utility, without authority from the utility Owner or order from the Town.

Where protection is required to ensure support of existing underground, overhead and at-grade utilities (including their associated structures and service connections) as shown on the plans, the Contractor shall furnish and place the necessary protection at his expense. In case of damage, the Contractor, without additional compensation, shall restore utilities to as good of a condition as they were found.

Upon learning of the existence and location of any utility omitted from or shown incorrectly on the plans, the Contractor shall notify the Town and be fully responsible for protecting such utility. When authorized by the Engineer, additional protection may be paid by change order, for utilities other than a service connection.

The Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer and the utility owner if he disturbs, disconnects or damages any utility. If the utility is located substantially as indicated on the plans, the Contractor shall bear the costs of repair or replacement.

When placing concrete around or contiguous to any utility, the Contractor shall at his expense, furnish and install a cushion of expansion joint material, clear opening, sleeve, or other suitable material approved by the Engineer so as to prevent embedment or bonding of the utility with the concrete.

7.05 <u>Shut Down Notification</u> – The Town is in-charge of the sewer and storm water collection systems, traffic signals and street lighting system and as such the Contractor shall coordinate shut downs of these utilities and facilities with the Town's Engineer and Public Works Maintenance Department. The Contractor shall also coordinate the shutdown of all other utilities, including, but not limited to water, electriTown, gas, communications, or CATV with the corresponding utility owner.

Shut downs of any utility or other facility, when allowed, shall be done only after:

- A. The Contractor has coordinated with and notify the Engineer/Utility Owners in writing, at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of the shut down, and,
- B. Has properly notified customers (residents, businesses/agencies) emergency response staff, and,
- C. Has all materials required for the work at the job site prior to requesting a shut off.

Except for scheduled shutdowns and in cases of emergency, the Contractor shall notify all customers and effected parties of a shutdown at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance by writing and four (4) hours in advance by person to allow adequate draw time. Once shut down, the Contractor shall proceed with the work in an expedient manner until the water lines or sewer lines are back in service.

- 7.06 <u>Removal</u> Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall remove all portions of interfering utilities shown on the plans as 'abandoned' or "to be abandoned in place". Before starting removal operations, the Contractor shall ascertain from the utility Owner whether abandonment is complete. The costs involved in the removal and disposal of utilities to be abandoned shall be considered as part of the contract bid items, and no separate payment will be made.
- 7.07 <u>Relocation</u> When feasible, the utilities within the area affected by the work will complete their necessary installations, relocations, repairs, or replacements before commencement of work by the Contractor. When the Contract Documents or plans indicate that a utility is to be relocated, altered or

constructed by others, the Town will conduct all negotiations with the utilities and the work will be done at no cost to the Contractor.

Utilities interfering with the permanent project work, discovered after the award of the contract, shall either be relocated, altered, or reconstructed by the utility, or the Engineer may order changes in the work to avoid interference. Such changes will be paid for in accordance with General Provisions, Section 5, "Changes in Work".

When the plans or specifications provide for the Contractor to alter, relocate, or reconstruct a utility, all costs for such work shall be absorbed in the contract bid items. Temporary or permanent relocation or alteration of utilities by the Contractor for his own convenience shall be his responsibility, and he shall make all arrangements, obtain all approvals, and bear all costs. The Contractor may, for his own convenience or to expedite the work, agree with the owner of any utility to disconnect and reconnect interfering service connections. The Town shall not be involved in any such agreement.

- 7.08 <u>Delays</u> The Contractor is responsible for notifying utility companies in time to prevent delays attributable to utility relocations or alterations as called for in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall not be entitled to damages or additional payment if such delay does occur. The Engineer will determine the extent of the delay based on the Baseline Construction Schedule (Section 8.05) and on the project as a whole, and any commensurate extension of time.
- 7.09 <u>Cooperation</u> When necessary, the Contractor shall conduct his operations so as to permit access to the worksite and provide time for utility work to be accomplished during the progress of the contract work.

SECTION 8 – PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS

- 8.01 <u>Notice to Proceed</u> Within twenty-one (21) calendar days following receipt of the signed agreement, bonds and insurance, the Town shall issue the Contractor a Notice to Proceed provided that the documents are acceptable to the Town. Unless stated otherwise, the contract time shall commence upon the receipt date on the Notice to Proceed.
- 8.02 <u>Commencement of Work</u> Work shall commence within fifteen (15) calendar days following the receipt date on the Notice to Proceed, and shall be diligently prosecuted to completion within the time provided in the Notice to Bidders.
- 8.03 <u>Subcontracting</u> Unless otherwise indicated by the Special Provisions, the Contractor shall perform the majority of the project work.
- 8.04 <u>Administrative Duties</u> The Contractor shall coordinate the scheduling and timing of administrative duties with other activities to avoid conflicts and to ensure orderly project progress. Such activities include, but shall not be limited to, the preparation of construction schedules, preparation and processing of submittals, requests for information and responding to requests for quotations, attending and preparing for progress meetings and coordinating project closeout activities.
- 8.05 <u>Baseline Construction Schedule</u> Within ten (10) calendar days of the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer an acceptable Critical Path Method (CPM) progress schedule showing the critical path for completing the various items of work within the number of contract days specified. The schedule shall show the order in which the Contractor proposes to carry out the major items of work and the dates on which he will start and finish the various items (including procurement of materials and equipment). If requested, the schedule shall be resource loaded to reflect person/crew hours and equipment loading for various construction activities in order for the Town to better evaluate the proposed schedule.
 - (a) Town Review of Schedule The Town may review and note exceptions to the Contractor's schedule, if it is not sufficiently detailed to clearly show the work to be completed during each month to assure the completion of the work within the project duration. The Contractor will be solely and exclusively responsible for resolving any exceptions, and the Town's review will not create any scheduling obligations of the Town. Any noted corrections to the schedule shall be addressed within five (5) working days.
 - (b) Update of Schedule After submission of a schedule to which the Town has taken no exceptions, the Contractor shall submit an updated schedule on a monthly basis or as otherwise specified by the Town until completion of the work. The updated schedule must show the "As Constructed" progress up to the date for which the schedule has been prepared and reflect any proposed changes in the method of operations, to achieve the project milestones within the required project duration.
 - (c) Float The schedule must show early and late completion dates for each task. The number of days between these dates will be designated as "float". The float will be assigned to the project and available for the Town, at the Engineer's discretion, to allocate the "float" to the Contractor as needed to complete the work in accordance with the agreement.
 - (d) Failure to Submit Schedule If the Contractor fails to submit a schedule within the time periods specified in this sub-section, or submits a schedule to which the Town has taken uncorrected exceptions, the Town may withhold payments to the Contractor until such schedule is submitted and/or corrected in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 8.06 <u>Three-Week Look Ahead Schedule</u> The Contractor is required to furnish to the Engineer, on a weekly basis at the project's progress meetings, a three-week look ahead schedule. The schedule

must show planned activities in sufficient detail to allow proper monitoring of the planned construction activities.

- 8.07 <u>Construction Sequence</u> The Contractor shall prepare and submit at the pre-construction meeting a staging or phasing plan identifying the sequence of construction work and traffic control needed to complete the project. The staging plan shall be subject to review and approval by the Engineer, prior to the start of construction. The goal of the phasing plan will be to minimize impacts to surrounding businesses and residents in the project areas. When required by the Special Provisions or plans, the Contractor shall follow the sequence of operations as set forth therein.
- 8.08 <u>Recording Existing Conditions</u> Existing conditions throughout the project site shall be photographed and/or videotaped by the Contractor before starting construction. Recording shall include and show every detail of existing improvements, including the current condition of the curb, gutter, sidewalk, signs, landscaping, streetlights, structures near the project including face of buildings, canopies, shades, fences and any other features within the limits of work. Photos and/or videotape shall be delivered to the Engineer at the pre-construction meeting.
- 8.09 <u>Preconstruction Conference</u> The Town shall designate a date and time for the preconstruction conference once the contract has been fully executed. At the pre-construction conference, the Town shall discuss various administrative procedures and project coordination issues. At a minimum, the Contractor should be prepared to furnish and discuss the following:
 - (a) Letter designating the Superintendent.
 - (b) A list of key personnel and emergency contact information including telephone numbers to be used in case of emergency
 - (c) Sequence or phasing plans identifying the phasing of construction work and any alternative sequences for consideration.
 - (d) Traffic control plans associated with the staging plans (to be signed and stamped by a Licensed Traffic Engineer).
 - (e) A draft of the master Baseline Construction Schedule, in Critical Path Method (CPM) format (to be finalized no later than ten (10) days after the Notice to Proceed).
 - (f) A breakdown of lump sum bid items to be used as a basis for determining the value of work completed on future progress payments.
 - (g) A submittal schedule listing all project submittals that will need to be reviewed and a listing of proposed material suppliers.
 - (h) Utility company coordination and/or permit issues.
 - (i) Videotape and/or photography of the project's existing condition (to be completed prior to starting construction.
 - (j) Anticipated cash flow projections, if requested by the engineer.
- 8.10 <u>Progress Meeting</u> The Contractor, Job Superintendent and Subcontractors, if requested by the Town, shall attend weekly progress meetings to be scheduled by the Engineer at a time agreeable to both the Engineer and the Contractor. Contractor shall also attend special meetings in addition to regular progress meetings if necessary and directed by the Engineer.
- 8.11 <u>Hours of Construction</u> Construction activities shall be limited to the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted or further restricted in the Contract Documents, or as directed by the Engineer. No work shall be done on weekends, holidays or outside these specified hours, unless otherwise approved by the Engineer. The Contractor shall take into consideration and coordinate time constraints for special events or activities organized by the Town or other agencies. No mechanical equipment, including hauling or deliveries by trucks, shall start before 8:00 a.m. and all equipment must shut down before 6:00 p.m. unless approved by the Engineer.

- 8.12 <u>Prosecution of Work</u> To minimize public inconvenience and possible hazards and to restore the streets and other work areas to their original condition and former state of usefulness as soon as practicable, the Contractor shall diligently prosecute the work to completion. If, in the Engineer's opinion the Contractor fails to prosecute the work to the extent that the above purposes are not being accomplished, the Contractor shall, upon orders from the Engineer, immediately take the steps necessary to fully accomplish said purposes. All costs for prosecuting the work as described herein shall be absorbed in the Contractor's bid. Should the Contractor fail to take the necessary steps to fully accomplish said purposes, after orders of the Engineer to do so, the Engineer may suspend the work in whole or in part, until the Contractor takes said steps. With or without such suspension, the Engineer may cause such steps to be taken by force account or by other means at the Contractors expense.
- 8.13 <u>Suspension of Work</u> Work may be stopped or suspended in whole or in part for up to ninety (90) days when, in the Engineer's opinion, the suspension is necessary and in the interest of the Town. The Contractor shall immediately comply with any written order of the Engineer suspending work. Such Town directed suspension shall be without liability to the Contractor on the part of the Town. Suspended work shall be resumed upon written order of the Engineer. An extension of contract time equal to the period of suspension shall be issued to the Contractor by change order. Any claim by the Contractor for an adjustment of the contract sum or the contract time shall be made within ten (10) working days after the end of the work suspension.

If work is suspended through any fault of the Contractor, all expenses and losses incurred by the Contractor during such suspensions shall be borne by the Contractor. If the Contractor fails to properly provide for public safety, traffic, and protection of the work during periods of suspension, the Town may elect to do so, and shall deduct the cost thereof from monies due the Contractor. Such action will not relieve the Contractor from any liability.

- 8.14 <u>Default by the Contractor and Termination of Control</u> As a result of any of the following events, the Contractor shall be deemed to be in default:
 - (a) If the Contractor is in bankruptcy or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or
 - (b) If the Contractor fails to make prompt payment to subcontractors for labor or materials, or
 - (c) If a receiver is appointed on account of the Contractor's insolvency, or
 - (d) If the Contractor fails to provide enough properly skilled workmen or enough materials to insure compliance with the construction time schedule, or
 - (e) If the Contractor fails to perform any portion of the work within the timing requirements of the Contract Documents, or abandons the project site, or
 - (f) If the Contractor disregards instructions from the Engineer or violates any provision of the contract, or
 - (g) If the Contractor fails to replace or repair any damage caused by the Contractor or its agents, representatives, contractors, subcontractors, or employees in connection with the performance of the work, or
 - (h) If the Contractor violates any legal requirement related to the work.

In case of default, the Town may give written notice to the Contractor and the Contractor's bonding agent that if the default is not remedied within ten (10) calendar days or the Contractor does not provide adequate written assurance to the satisfaction of the Engineer that the cure will be forthcoming, the Contractor's control over the work may be terminated as of the date specified in the written notice.

Upon such termination of control the Town may enter upon and take possession of the entire work and may also take possession, for the purpose of completing the work, of all of the Contractor's tools, equipment and appliances upon the work, and all materials on the site or stored off-site for incorporation into the work. The Town may, at its sole option and without further notice to anyone, complete the work by

day labor, by contract entered into by negotiations, by competitive bidding, by calling upon the performance of the performance bond surety, or by other means as the Town, in its discretion, shall elect.

After termination of the Contractor's control over the work as herein provided, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any further payments under the contract until the entire work thereunder has been fully completed and finally accepted by the Town. After such completion and acceptance, if the "unpaid balance of the contract price" (as defined in the next paragraph) exceeds the sum of the amounts expended by the Town in taking over and completing the work, including all managerial and administrative expense incurred by the Town on account thereof and the amount of all damages incurred by the Town by reason of the Contractor's default, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If the said amount expended exceeds the unpaid balance, the Contractor and his surety shall be liable to the Town for the difference. At the Contractor's request, the expense incurred by the Town in taking over and completing the work, and the amount of any damage incurred by the Town by reason of the Contractor's default shall be audited and certified by an independent third party, whose certificate thereof shall be binding and conclusive upon the parties.

For the purposes of the computations required by the paragraph above, the "unpaid balance of the contract price" shall be the original contract price as adjusted by any change orders issued prior to termination of the Contractor's control, less all payments made on account thereof prior to such termination, and less any and all amounts withheld or paid pursuant to stop notices filed with the Town upon claims of subcontractors or others from equipment, labor or materials furnished to the work on behalf of the Contractor.

Upon completion and acceptance of the work, the Contractor shall be entitled to the return of all materials not used in the work, but without claim against the Town for loss or damage with respect thereto, and shall be entitled to the return of all his equipment, tools and appliances taken possession of by the Town, but without claim against the Town for any charge for the use thereof or for usual and ordinary depreciation and wear and tear.

The exercise of remedies provided for in this sub-section, for default by the Contractor, shall be in addition to, and shall not be deemed a waiver by the Town of any other rights or remedies due the Town under the contract provisions, for default by the Contractor.

8.15 Contractor's Right to Stop Work or Terminate Contract – The Contractor may give written notice to the Engineer of intention to stop work or terminate the Agreement, or both if the work should be stopped by order of any court or other public authority, through no act, omission or fault of the Contractor or any Subcontractor, agent or employee of the Contractor, and such work stoppage under such order shall continue for thirty (30) consecutive days from the effective date of such order

If, after the Contractor provides notice to the Town of any of the above defaults, the Town does not remedy the default within ten (10) calendar days, the Contractor may stop work and may give the Town written notice of contract termination. The Contractor may then recover from the Town payment for all work executed to date and any loss sustained upon any equipment or materials procured for the work prior to the work stoppage. No compensation for loss of anticipated profits will be provided, however, on work not completed. The Contractor's right to recovery shall be subject, however, to the duty of the Contractor to mitigate all loss or damage so far as reasonably possible.

- 8.16 <u>Town's Right to Terminate Contract</u> The Town may, at its option, terminate the Agreement, in whole or from time to time in part, at any time by giving notice to the Contractor. Upon such termination, the Contractor agrees to waive any claims for damages, including loss of anticipated profits, on account thereof; and, as the sole right and remedy of the Contractor, the Town shall pay the Contractor in accordance with this sub-section. Upon termination, the obligations of the Contractor for portions of the work already performed shall continue.
 - (a) Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination, the Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, do the following:
 - 1. Immediately discontinue the work to the extent specified in the notice.

- 2. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, equipment, services, or facilities, except as may be necessary to complete such portion of the work that are not to be discontinued.
- Promptly cancel, on the most favorable terms reasonably possible, all subcontracts
 to the extent that they relate to the performance of the discontinued portion of the
 work.
- 4. Thereafter do only such work as may be necessary to preserve and protect the work already in progress and to protect materials, plants, and equipment on the project site or in transit thereto.
- (b) Upon such termination, the Town shall pay to the Contractor as a sole and exclusive remedy for the termination, the sum of the following, and the Contractor will be entitled to no other compensation or damages, and expressly waives same:
 - The amount of the contract amount allocated to the portion of the work properly performed by the Contractor as of the date of termination, less sums previously paid to the Contractor, plus
 - 2. Previously unpaid costs of any items delivered to the project site which were fabricated for subsequent incorporation in the work, plus
 - 3. Any proven losses with respect to materials and equipment directly resulting from such termination, plus
 - 4. Reasonable demobilization costs in excess of what would have been incurred if work were not terminated, plus
 - 5. Reasonable costs for preparing a statement of the aforesaid costs, expenses, and losses in connection with such termination.

The Town may terminate the Agreement at its own discretion or when conditions encountered during the work make it impossible or impracticable to proceed, or when the Town is prevented from proceeding with the Agreement by act of God, by law, or by official action of a public authority.

8.17 <u>Time of Completion and Days Charged</u> - The Contractor shall diligently prosecute and fully complete the work within the number of calendar or working days set forth in the Notice inviting Sealed Proposals or shall be subject to liquidated damages. Time is of the essence in the performance of all obligations under the Contract Documents, and all timing requirements shall be strictly adhered to unless otherwise modified by the Town. See General Provisions, Sections 8.12, "Prosecution of Work", and 8.18, "Liquidated Damages".

Under a calendar day contract, Town observed holidays and inclement weather delays are to be anticipated and unless there is a deviation from what is customary for the time of year the project is under construction, no additional days will be granted. Every day, including holidays, Saturdays and Sundays shall be counted as a day charged under a calendar day contract.

Under a working day contract, the Contractor will be given credit for Town observed holidays and inclement weather delays, in accordance with the State Standard Specifications. Should the Contractor prepare to begin work at the regular starting time in the morning of any day on which inclement weather, or the conditions resulting from the weather prevents the work from beginning at the usual starting time and the crew is dismissed as a result thereof and the Contractor does not proceed with at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the normal labor and equipment force engaged in the current controlling operations for at least sixty percent (60%)of the total daily time being currently spent on the controlling operations, the Contractor will not be charged for a working day whether or not conditions should change thereafter.

8.18 <u>Liquidated Damages</u> - The Town and the Contractor, by execution of the agreement, each agree that time is of the essence in the performance of the work, and that actual damages for inconvenience and loss from any delay in completion of the contract beyond the date provided in the Notice to Bidders is extremely difficult or impossible to determine.

The Town and the Contractor further agree, as specified in the Notice to Bidders, that liquidated damages shall be assessed for each and every calendar day required to complete the contract in excess of the contract time established for the project, and that the amount stated therein is a reasonable estimate of the amount of such damages. The Engineer may deduct any liquidated damaged owed to the Town, as determined by the Engineer from any payments otherwise payable to the Contractor under this agreement.

Separate from the above-mentioned liquidated damages, the Contractor shall be responsible for paying all damages incurred by private businesses (residential, commercial or industrial), schools and hospitals due to non-completion of the project by the date specified.

Nothing contained herein shall limit the Town's rights or remedies against Contractor for any default other than failure to complete the work within the contract time. This provision for liquidated damages shall not be applicable nor act as a limitation upon the Town if the Contractor abandons the work. In such event, the Contractor shall be liable to the Town for all losses incurred.

The date of the Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be the termination date, if applicable, of liquidated damages.

8.19 Delays and Extensions of Time

- (a) Excusable Delays shall mean delays in the prosecution or completion of the work which result from causes beyond the control of the Contractor and Town and which could not have been avoided by the exercise of care, prudence, foresight, and diligence on the part of the Contractor, suppliers, or any tier of the Contractor's subcontractors. Excusable Delays fall into the following categories:
 - 1. Abnormal Delays Excusable Delays caused by acts of god, fire, unusual storms, floods, tidal waves, earthquakes, strikes, labor disputes, freight embargoes, and shortages of materials insofar as they prevent the Contractor from proceeding with at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the normal labor and equipment force for at least five (5) hours per day toward completion of the current critical path activity.
 - 2. Weather Delays Excusable Delays due to inclement weather conditions or the conditions resulting from weather prevent the Contractor from proceeding with seventy-five percent (75%) of the normal labor and equipment force engaged in the current critical activity item for a period of at least five (5) hours per day toward completion of the current critical path activity.
 - 3. Material Shortage Delays Excusable Delays due to shortages of material, provided that the Contractor submits satisfactory proof to the Engineer. For the proof to be satisfactory, the Contractor must demonstrate that he has made every effort to obtain the materials from all known sources within reasonable reach of the proposed work. Only the physical shortage of material, caused by unusual circumstances, will be considered under these provisions as an excusable delay, and no consideration will be given to any claim that material could not be obtained at a reasonable, practical, or economical price, unless it is shown to the satisfaction of the Engineer that such material was only available at exorbitant prices. A material shortage delay will not be considered for material ordered or delivered late or for material whose availability is affected by virtue of mishandled procurement. The above provisions shall apply equally to equipment to be installed in the work.
- (b) Compensable Delays shall include delays that occur in the prosecution or completion of the work, through no fault of the Contractor which prevent the Contractor from proceeding with at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the normal labor and equipment force for at least five (5) hours per day toward completion of the current critical activity item(s) on the latest favorably reviewed progress schedule due to the following causes:
 - 1. Delays due solely to the actions and/or inactions of the Town.

- 2. Delays due to changed conditions as defined in General Provisions, Section 5.05, "Requests for Information, Inconsistencies and Changed Conditions".
- 3. Delays due to other Contractors employed by the Town who interfere with the Contractor's prosecution of the work as defined above.
- (c) Inexcusable Delay means any delay in the completion of the work beyond the expiration of the contract time resulting from causes other than Excusable Delays or Compensable Delays. An Inexcusable Delay shall not entitle the Contractor to an extension of the contract time or an adjustment of the contract sum. In addition to liquidated damages for inexcusable delays, the Contractor agrees to pay the Town's actual costs, including charges for engineering, inspection and administration incurred during the delay.
- (d) Concurrent Delays those periods of delay when the prosecution of the work is delayed during the same period of time due to causes from a combination of the delays defined as Excusable, Compensable or Inexcusable.

If the Contractor desires an extension of time, he shall file a written request based upon the delays reported. The Engineer will ascertain the facts, the extent of the delays, and the effect upon the entire project, and the Town will grant an extension of time equivalent to verified time lost. The request for an extension of time must be made no later than ten (10) working days after the start of the condition that purportedly caused the delay, and no later than fifteen (15) working days after the date on which performance on the condition purportedly causing the delay has ended.

Contractor may make a delay claim for an extension of the contract time for an Excusable Delay or a Compensable Delay. If an Excusable Delay and a Compensable Delay occur concurrently, the maximum extension of the contract time shall be the number of calendar days from the commencement of the first delay to the cessation of the delay which ends last. If an Inexcusable Delay occurs concurrently with either an Excusable Delay or a Compensable Delay, the maximum extension of the contract time shall be the number of calendar days, if any, by which the Excusable Delay or the Compensable Delay exceeds the Inexcusable Delay.

For a Compensable Delay, the Contractor may make a delay claim for an adjustment in the contract sum in an amount equal to the sum of the actual and unavoidable additional costs of labor, material, and equipment furnished at the site by the Contractor or subcontractors, including wages, salaries, fringe benefits and payroll taxes.

Extensions of time, when granted, will be based upon the effect of delays to the project as a whole and will not be granted for non-controlling delays to minor portions of the work unless it can be shown that such delays did, in fact, delay the progress of the project as a whole. For purposes of determining delays, all float associated with the project schedule shall belong to the project. See General Provisions, Section 8.05, "Baseline Construction Schedule".

If delays are caused by unforeseen events beyond the control of either the Contractor or the Town, such delays will entitle the Contractor to an extension of time as provided herein, but the Contractor shall not be entitled to damages or additional payment due to these delays. War, governmental regulations, labor disputes, strikes, fires, floods, adverse weather necessitating cessation of work, other similar action of the elements, inability to obtain materials, equipment, or labor because of Federal Government restrictions arising out of National Defense, required extra work, action or inaction by the Town, or other specific reasons as may be further described in the specifications may constitute such a delay. If delays beyond the Contractor's control are caused by reasons other than those mentioned above, but are substantially equal in gravity to those enumerated, an extension of time may be granted, if deemed by the Engineer to be in the best interests of the Town.

The Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of time if delayed due to a failure of the Town to furnish necessary right-of-way or materials which the Town agreed to furnish, or by the Town's failure to supply necessary plans or instructions concerning the work, after written request by the Contractor.

For Compensable Delay periods resulting in indirect overhead expenses, the Contractor shall be reimbursed as provided for in General Provisions, Section 5, "Changes in Work".

8.20 <u>Substantial Completion</u> – When work in accordance with the Contract Documents has progressed to a stage of one-hundred percent (100%) complete, as determined by the Engineer, except for the completion of minor punch list items of deficiencies or omissions in the work which require correction in order to satisfy the agreement, yet do not impair the Town's ability to occupy and fully utilize the work for its intended purpose, the project shall be deemed "Substantially Complete". Portions of the work may also be designated by the Town as substantially complete if the Contract Documents require separate delivery.

When the Engineer determines that the work or such designated portions of the work are substantially complete, the Engineer will prepare and sign a Certificate of Substantial Completion. The date of substantial completion shall establish the date at which days charged against the project duration shall terminate. The date of substantial completion shall also establish the date of occupancy by the Town and the transfer of responsibility from the Contractor to the Town for such items as security, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, and damage to the work from causes other than that of the Contractor. Unless otherwise indicated in the Certificate of Substantial Completion, the Contractor's guarantee for the work shall commence upon the date of substantial completion. See General Provisions, Section 11.01, "Contractor's Guarantee".

- 8.21 <u>Project Closeout</u> After the Contractor has received the Certificate of Substantial Completion and has only minor work remaining, project closeout may begin. The following items and procedures are required as part of the project close out process.
 - (a) Following the completion of punch list items, the Contractor shall make a written request to the Town to conduct a final inspection. The written request shall be accompanied by a Certification that the work has been performed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
 - (b) Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Contractor's Certificate of Completion, a final inspection will be scheduled and conducted by the Town. As a result of the inspection, the Town will advise the Contractor of any work that must be completed or corrected before Acceptance, in the form of a punch list.
 - (c) The Town will conduct a re-inspection of the punch list items within when requested by the Contractor, in writing, with assurances that the punch list requirements have been met. Any charges by a Consulting Engineer/Architect hired by the Town to do repeat re-inspection of the punch list may be recovered from the Contractor.
 - (d) The contractor shall provide a final payment request with lien releases (if applicable) in a format acceptable to the Town.
 - (e) The as-built drawings and all record documents and shall be provided to the Town by the Contractor including but not limited to, equipment operation and maintenance manuals, copies of warranties, shop drawings, product data, etc. Record documents shall be properly identified and organized into binders.
- 8.22 <u>Final Completion</u> After the Contractor has received the Certificate of Substantial Completion along with the punch list, and has completed the items identified as necessary for project closeout, the Engineer will make a determination as to if the work is fully completed and in accordance with the Contract Documents. If so, the Engineer will recommend final acceptance to the Town Council.

Should it become necessary, due to developed conditions, for the Town to occupy any portion of the work, or any part of any structure or equipment, before the contract is completed or accepted, such occupancy shall not constitute an acceptance of any part of the work, unless so stated in writing by the Town.

8.23 <u>Final Acceptance</u> – Final acceptance by the Engineer will be considered after the work has been fully completed. A Notice of Completion will be filed with the County Recorder once Final Acceptance has been made.

- 8.24 <u>Risk of Loss</u> The Contractor shall be responsible for the charge, care and protection of the project and shall bear all risks of injury or damage to the work, materials or equipment delivered to the site, by any means including fire, earthquake, wind, storm or other action of the elements, vandalism, or loss by theft, from the date of Notice to Proceed to the date of the filing of the Notice of Completion by the Engineer. The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore and make good all injuries or damage to any portion of the work, and shall bear the entire expense thereof, except such injuries or damages that are caused by riot, insurrection, acts of the Federal or State Government, or a public enemy in time of war.
- 8.25 <u>Use of Improvements During Construction</u> The Town reserves the right to take over and utilize all or part of any completed facility or appurtenance. Such action by the Town will not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for injury or damage to said completed portions of the improvement resulting from use by public traffic, from the action of the elements or from any other cause attributable to the Contractor's operations or negligence. The Contractor will be required to restore such portions of the improvement before final acceptance. Nothing in this Section shall be construed as relieving the Contractor from full responsibility for correcting defective work or materials.

SECTION 9 —RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR

9.01 <u>Contractor's Responsibility for the Work</u> - The Contractor shall supervise, coordinate, and direct the work using Contractor's best skill and attention. Contractor shall have control over and be solely responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, and the coordination of all portions of the work in accordance with the terms of the Contract Documents until the completion and final acceptance of the work by the Town. The Contractor shall furnish and maintain in good condition all equipment and facilities as required for the proper execution and inspection of the work. Such equipment and facilities shall meet all requirements of applicable ordinances and laws.

The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore and make good all injuries, damages, re-erections and repairs occasioned or rendered necessary by causes of any nature whatsoever, excepting only acts of God and none other, to all or any portions of the work, excepting as otherwise stipulated.

9.02 <u>Contractor's Responsibility for Subcontracted Work</u> - The Town will deal directly with, and make all payments to the Contractor only. The Contractor shall be responsible for the coordination of all trades, subcontractors, and suppliers engaged upon the work. Neither the Town nor the Engineer will undertake to settle any differences between the Contractor and his subcontractors.

All persons engaged in the work, including subcontractors, will be considered as employees of the Contractor. The Contractor will be held responsible for their work and shall be responsible to the Town for acts and omissions including those by their respective agents and employees.

When subcontracted work is not prosecuted in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer, the Contractor shall be notified to take corrective action within a specified time. If timely correction is not made, then upon receipt by the Contractor of written instructions from the Engineer, the Subcontractor shall be removed immediately from the work and shall not be reemployed.

9.03 <u>Superintendent</u> - The Contractor shall employ, and provide a written letter designating a superintendent and/or representative and all their contact information. The superintendent and/or representative shall be present on the job site whenever work is in progress to coordinate all work with the Town and neighboring property owners, and who shall be available by phone twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days a week up to the Final Acceptance of the work by the Town. A backup representative may also be provided. A joint venture shall designate only one Superintendent.

Town approval of the Superintendent is required prior to starting work. The Town reserves the right to request an appropriately qualified replacement of the Superintendent any time during construction of the project. Contractor shall provide the Engineer with the Superintendent's telephone number, along with an after-hours emergency contact number of a responsible person who shall correct hazardous situations, should they occur, during times other than the normal working hours.

Directions and information given to the Superintendent shall be considered as having the same effect as if delivered to the Contractor and the Superintendent shall have full authority to execute the same and to supply materials, tools and labor without delay, and who shall be the legally appointed representative of the contractor. Contractor shall be liable for the faithful observation of any instructions delivered to him or to his appointed representatives.

9.04 <u>Character of Workers</u> - Contractor shall provide competent, fully qualified personnel to perform the work and shall at all times maintain good discipline and order among its employees and Subcontractors. Any employed person or Subcontractor who is found to be incompetent, intemperate, troublesome, disorderly or otherwise objectionable or who fails or refuses to perform his work properly and acceptably, shall be immediately removed from the work by the Contractor and shall not be reemployed. Such discharge shall not be the basis of any claim for compensation or damages against the Town of Loomis or any of its officers, employees or agents.

- 9.05 <u>Laws to be Observed</u> The Contractor shall keep himself fully informed of, and at all times observe and comply with all Federal, State and County laws, including those of CAL-OSHA; all municipal ordinances and regulations of the Town of Loomis; and all orders and decrees of bodies having jurisdiction over the work. The Contractor shall also cause all agents and employees engaged on the project to observe and comply with all such laws, and shall protect and indemnify the Town of Loomis and all officers, employees, and agents thereof connected with the work against any claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such law
 - (a) Non-Discrimination Attention is directed to Labor Code, Section 1735 which reads as follows: "No discrimination shall be made in the employment of persons upon public work because of the race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status or sex of such persons, except as provided in Government Code, Section 12940 and every Contractor for public works violating this Section is subject to all the penalties imposed for a violation of this chapter."
 - (b) Alien Labor The Contractor shall forfeit as penalty to the Town of Loomis fifty dollars (\$50.00) for each alien with no permit to work in the United States of America (USA) knowingly employed in the contract, by him or by any Subcontractor under him upon any of the work herein mentioned, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, during which such alien is permitted or required to labor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular Sections 1850 to 1854 thereof, inclusive.
 - (a) Hours of Labor Hours of labor shall be pursuant to Labor Code, Sections 1810. Pursuant to Labor Code, Sections 1813, Contractor shall forfeit to the Town, as a penalty, twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by Contractor, or any Subcontractor in violation of the terms of this Section or in violation of the provision of any law of the State of California. Such forfeiture amounts may be deducted from the contract sum. Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep, or cause to be kept, an accurate record showing the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by each worker employed on the project, which record shall be kept open at all reasonable hours to the inspection of the Town, its officers and agents, and to the inspection of the appropriate enforcement agency of the State of California.
 - Prevailing Wage As identified in the Notice to Bidders, the work contemplated by this (d) agreement is a public work subject to prevailing wages under California Labor Code, Sections 1720 et. seq. The State of California Department of Industrial Relations has ascertained the general prevailing per diem wage rates in the locality in which the work is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of worker required to perform the work. A schedule of the most recent general prevailing per diem wage rates made available to the Town will be on file at the Town's principal facility office and will be made available to any interested party upon request. This prevailing wage rate schedule is provided by the Town for Bidder's information only and is not guaranteed by the Town to be current. Contractor is obligated to verify all appropriate prevailing wage rates and pay those rates as required. By this reference the verified current schedule of prevailing wage rates is made part of the Contract Documents. Contractor shall pay not less than the prevailing per diem wage rates, as specified in the schedule and any amendments thereto, to all workers employed by Contractor in the execution of the work. Contractor shall cause all subcontracts to include the provision that all Subcontractors shall pay not less than the specified prevailing per diem wage rates to all workers employed by such Subcontractors in the execution of the work.

Contractor shall forfeit to the Town, as a penalty, no more than fifty-dollars (\$50.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker that is paid less than the specified prevailing per diem wage rates for the work or craft in which the worker is employed for any portion of the work done by Contractor or any Subcontractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code, and in particular Sections 1770 to 1781 thereof, inclusive. Such forfeiture amounts may be deducted from the contract sum. Contractor shall also pay to any worker who was paid less than the specified prevailing per diem wage rate for the work or craft for which the worker was employed for any portion of the work, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for which the worker was paid less than the specified

prevailing per diem wage rate, an amount equal to the difference between the specified prevailing per diem wage rate and the amount which was paid to the worker.

The Town will not recognize any claim for additional compensation because of the payment by the Contractor for any wage rate in excess of prevailing wage rates set forth in the Agreement, including payment in excess of the prevailing wage for extra work paid by force account. The possibility of wage increases is one of the elements to be considered by the Contractor in determining the Contractor's bid and will not, under any circumstances be considered as the basis of a claim against the Town under the Agreement.

- (e) Payroll Records Pursuant to Labor Code, Sections 1776, Contractor and all Subcontractors shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing the name, address, social security number, job classification, straight time and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed in connection with the work. All payroll records shall be certified as being true and correct by Contractor or Subcontractors keeping such records; and the payroll records shall be provided to the Town no later than three weeks after closing of payroll. Certified payroll shall also be made available for inspection upon request by the State of California Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, or the Division of Apprenticeship Standards of the State of California Division of Industrial Relations.
- (f) Apprentice Program Attention is directed to State of California Labor Code, Sections 3095, 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 and Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 200, and the applicable Sections that follow. Responsibility for compliance with these requirements lies with the Contractor. To ensure compliance and complete understanding of the law requiring apprentices, and specifically the required ratio thereunder, Contractor or Subcontractors should, where some question exists, contact the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, 425 Golden Gate Avenue, 4th Floor, San Francisco, California, 94102 or one of its branch offices prior to commencement of the work. In the event Contractor willfully fails to comply with this Section, it will be considered in violation of the requirements of the Contract.

Nothing contained herein shall be considered or interpreted as prohibiting or preventing the hiring by Contractor or Subcontractors of journeyworker trainees who may receive on-the-job training to enable them to achieve journeyworker status in any craft or trade under standards other than those set forth for apprentices.

- (g) Safety Program the Contractor shall conform to the rules and regulations pertaining to safety established by the California Division of Industrial Safety and to all requirements as set forth in the State of California Construction Safety Orders (CAL-OSHA), and in particular, Article 3 of these Safety Orders, regarding Accident Prevention and safety meetings. Within ten (10) working days following the Notice of Award the Contractor shall provide a copy of the Contractor's Safety Plan. The price paid for the plan is included in the various contract items of work and no additional compensation will be made therefore.
- 9.06 Permits and Fees Unless otherwise stated in the Special Provisions, the Contractor shall procure all permits, registrations and licenses, including a Town business registration, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary for lawful prosecution of the work. All permits, registrations, licenses, and other authorizations shall be secured in sufficient time to prevent delays to the work. The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of said permits, licenses and other authorizations. The contractor shall submit satisfactory proof to the Town, prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed, that such permits, registrations or licenses are and will be in effect throughout the entire life of this contract. The contractor shall keep all permits, registrations and licenses posted on the job site.

For Town Capital Improvement Construction Projects, the Contractor shall obtain a "No Fee" encroachment and/or building permit. Contractor shall coordinate through the Engineer to insure that all appropriate construction inspections occur.

9.07 <u>Coordination and Cooperation</u> - Construction work by utility companies or other Contractors may be needed or may be occurring simultaneously within or adjacent to the limits of work for this project.

The Contractor shall coordinate and cooperate with all other Contractors and utility companies throughout the duration of this project to avoid delays and minimize interference and conflicts. Cooperation will be required in the arrangement for the storage of materials, and in the detailed execution of the work. It is the Contractor's responsibility to ascertain the nature of work by others, coordinate his work, and install, modify, and maintain traffic control as necessary to avoid interferences and delays on the construction activities. Failure of the Contractor to keep informed of the work progressing on the site and failure to give written notice of lack of progress or defective workmanship by others shall be construed as acceptance by the Contractor of the status of the work as being satisfactory for proper coordination with his own work.

Where the work of one trade joins or is on the other's work, there shall be no lack of continuity or discrepancy when work is completed. In conforming one kind of work with another, marring or damaging other work will not be permitted. Should improper work of any trade be covered by another which results in damage or defects, the whole work affected shall be made good by the Contractor without expense to the Town.

The Town reserves the right to perform work or allow others to perform work, as necessary, within or adjacent to the limits of this project, at any time. If the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors or employees causes loss or damage to any separate Contractor on the work, the Contractor, by agreement or arbitration, if he deems it necessary, will settle any claim for such loss or damage. If such separate Contractor shall sue the Town, on account of any loss so sustained, the Town shall notify the Contractor, who shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town against any loss or damage arising therefrom, including the cost and expense of defending any such suit.

If any portions of the work specified herein are to be installed in any right-of-way owned by the State, County, Municipality, or other public entities or public utilities, it shall be incumbent upon the contractor to familiarize described above will necessarily be subject to their inspection and approval before acceptance of these portions of the work by the Engineer. Any costs for inspection by agents other than those of the Town shall be borne by the contractor. Where other agencies have jurisdiction over some portion of the work, and the requirements of the agencies are at variance with this specification, then that portion of the work shall be done in accordance with the requirements of the agency(ies).

The Contractor shall absorb in his bid all costs involved in coordinating his work with others. The Contractor will not be entitled to additional compensation from the Town for damages resulting from such simultaneous, collateral and essential work.

9.08 <u>Use of Premises</u> - The Contractor shall confine construction activities to the project limits; which shall consist of right-of-way, easements and/or property owned by the Town of Loomis. With prior approval of the Engineer, adjacent street right-of-way may also be utilized for day-to-day operations. Unless approved by the Engineer, no storage of materials and equipment will be allowed to remain within the right-of-way during non-working hours, on the weekends, or during holidays.

Each day, after the completion of construction operations, unless otherwise approved by the Engineer, the project limits shall be secured and made accessible to the public. All excess materials and equipment not protected by approved traffic control devices (such as k-rails) shall be relocated to a staging area or demobilized. Trench spoils shall be off-hauled daily and open excavations shall be protected with steel plates.

Personnel of Contractor and Subcontractors shall not occupy, live upon, or otherwise make use of the project site during any time that work is not being performed at the project site, except as otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents for issues such as site security.

9.09 <u>Construction Staging and Field Office</u> - If additional space beyond the construction limits is necessary for staging, the Contractor shall, at his own cost and initiative, make special arrangements with neighboring property Town(s) to secure a staging area for a field office and/or material and equipment storage. The staging area must be fenced, with screening, and shall be operated in a manner that minimizes the inconvenience to neighbors.

The Contractor is encouraged to negotiate side agreements with the property owners of such sites prior to submitting bids. Prior to occupying the staging area, the Contractor will be required to provide to the Engineer a copy of the agreement or temporary construction easement granted by the property owner. A written release from the property owners or Town, holding the Town harmless from liability, will also need to be provided. In addition to approval from the property owners, the Contractor may also need to secure a Use Permit from the Town's Planning Division.

- 9.10 <u>Site Security</u> Contractor shall be responsible for the care and custody of work and the site, including all necessary security provisions, on a 24-hour per day basis throughout the entire term of the Agreement. The Contractor shall provide and maintain storage facilities and employ such measures as will preserve the specified quality and fitness of materials to be used in the work.
- 9.11 <u>Construction Water</u> The Contractor is responsible for obtaining all water required for the project and shall work with, and obtain all permits from, the appropriate water purveyor prior to obtaining construction water. If hydrant water is to be used, the Contractor must first obtain a hydrant meter and pay all related expenses. Direct connections to hydrants without a meter are not allowed. If water trucks are used, they shall be installed with backflow prevention devices. The cost of water, including all associated fees, deposits or permits shall be incorporated into the various bid items and no separate payment shall be made. Water in the Town of Loomis is supplied by:

Placer County Water Agency
144 Ferguson Road
P.O. Box 6570
Auburn, CA 95604
M-F: 8 a.m. to 5:00 a.m.
Tel.: (530) 823-4850
customerservices@pcwa.net

- 9.12 <u>Project Site Maintenance</u> All work identified in this section shall be considered as part of the contract bid items, and no separate payment will be made thereof.
 - (a) Disposal of Material Unless otherwise shown on the plans or specified herein, all excess materials and materials removed from existing improvements shall become the property of, and be disposed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for all costs associated with disposing all excess materials in a safe and legal manner. No material shall be placed on private or public property without prior approval from the Town and the property owner. The Contractor shall not allow any refuse, excavated material, surplus concrete or mortar, or any associated washings, to be disposed upon paved streets, into manholes or into the Town's storm drain system.

Contractor shall establish a system for daily collection and disposal of waste materials from construction areas and elsewhere on the site. Contractor shall handle waste materials that are hazardous, dangerous, or unsanitary separately from inert waste by containerizing appropriately. Burning or burying of waste materials on site will not be permitted.

All materials removed from the existing improvements, which in the opinion of the Engineer have salvage value, shall be delivered to the Town Corporation Yard at 1000 Bransten Road, Loomis, or at any other site designated by the Engineer within the Town and shall be considered as part of the contract bid items, with no separate payment will be made thereof.

(b) Cleanup and Dust Control – at all times during construction, including weekends and holidays, and throughout all phases of construction, including work suspensions and until final acceptance of the project, the Contractor shall keep the work site clean and free from rubbish, debris, and prevent the formation of an airborne dust nuisance.

Materials and equipment shall be removed from the site as soon as they are no longer necessary. Upon completion of the work and before final inspection, the entire site shall be cleared of equipment, unused materials, and rubbish so as to present a satisfactory clean and neat appearance.

The Contractor shall abate dust nuisance by cleaning, sweeping, and sprinkling with water, those excavated areas of dirt or other materials which are prone to causing dust, within both the project site and the storage or staging area. If required or directed by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide an approved water truck of large capaTown with spraying capability and/or street sweeper.

The Contractor shall be required to apply water for dust control immediately during construction efforts and within one (1) hour after notification by the Engineer that an airborne nuisance exists. If dust control is not adequate, in the opinion of the Engineer, the Engineer will have this work performed by others and will deduct such cost from the total contract price.

All hauling trucks or other construction vehicles leaving the site shall be cleaned of mud or dirt clinging to exterior body surfaces or wheel rims before traveling on Town streets outside the work limits. All trucks coming to or leaving the site with materials or loose debris shall be loaded in a manner, which will prevent the dropping of materials or debris on Town streets. Spillage resulting from hauling operations along or across any public traveled way shall be removed immediately.

When construction operations cause dirt to be deposited on public streets, the Contractor shall immediately remove such material. Streets shall be cleaned by street sweeping, rather than flushing, so as to prevent mud from entering the storm drain system.

Excess excavated material shall be removed from the site immediately. Sufficient material may remain for use as backfill if permitted by the specifications. Forms and form lumber shall be removed from the site as soon as practicable after stripping.

Failure of the Contractor to comply with the Engineer's cleanup orders may result in an order to suspend work until the condition is corrected. No additional compensation will be allowed as a result of such suspension.

- (c) Air Pollution Control The Contractor shall not discharge smoke, dust, or any other air contaminants into the atmosphere in such quantity as will violate the regulations of any legally constituted authority.
- (d) Noise Control The Contractor shall make every reasonable effort to control noise generated as a result of construction to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Use of an air compressor, jackhammer or other loud, vibrating sound generating device shall be limited to operations between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday thru Friday and between 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturday and Sunday, unless otherwise authorized by the Engineer.
- (e) Vermin Control At the time of acceptance, structures entirely constructed under the contract shall be free of rodents, insects, vermin and pests. Necessary extermination work shall be arranged and paid for by the Contractor as part of the contract work within the contract time and shall be performed by a licensed exterminator in accordance with requirements of governing authorities. The Contractor shall be liable for injury to persons or property and responsible for the elimination of offensive odors resulting from extermination operations.
- (f) Sanitation The Contractor shall provide and maintain enclosed toilets for the use of employees engaged in the work. These accommodations shall be maintained in a neat and sanitary condition. They shall also comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to the public health and sanitation of dwellings and camps.
- (g) Wastewater Wastewater systems shall not be interrupted. Should the Contractor disrupt existing sewer facilities, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer, and the Contractor shall establish a plan, subject to the approval of the Town, to convey the sewage in closed conduits and disposed of it back into the sanitary sewer system. Sewage shall not be permitted to flow in trenches or be covered by backfill.
- (h) Temporary Light, Power and Water The Contractor shall at his own expense furnish, install, maintain, and remove all temporary light, power, and water, including piping, wiring,

lamps, and other equipment, necessary for the work. The Contractor shall not draw water from any water source, except to extinguish a fire, without first obtaining permission from the appropriate water utility company/agency.

(i) Storm Water Pollution Control – All work shall conform to Provision C.3 and C.6 of the Countywide Municipal Storm Water Permit (MRP) and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. The applicant shall implement all Placer Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program (PCWPPP) measures and Best Management Practices (BMP's). Failure to comply with the approved construction BMP's will result in the issuance of correction notices, citations and/or a stop work order.

Contractor shall submit to the Town a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) in compliance with all NPDES requirements, and constructing those facilities which may be required to provide prevention, control, and abatement of water pollution. SWPPP shall address how the Contractor will prevent materials specified above from being rinsed or washed into the storm drain system and which BMPs will be implemented for preventing sediment and pollutant discharges into the storm water system.

All construction efforts shall be conducted in a manner which prevents the release of hazardous material or hazardous waste into the soil or groundwater, and minimizes the discharge of pollutants into the storm drain system. No pollutants will be allowed to enter the storm drainage system. The Contractor shall be responsible for containing and removing any waste from the Contractor's construction operations using the appropriate BMP. The Contractor shall be responsible for cleaning catch basins of solid or liquid waste materials originating from the Contractor's operation before this material migrates further into the storm drain system. Violation of this provision shall cause the Town to issue a stop-work notice and take necessary action to require the Contractor to correct and comply with regulations. All costs related to the stop-work action and corrective work to come into compliance shall be fully borne by the Contractor.

Existing Drainage Conditions - If the work performed interferes with established drainage patterns, ample provisions shall be made by the Contractor to correct the interference. The Town may also direct the Contractor to take additional measures to be performed at the Contractor 's expense.

Illicit Discharge - No dumping or discharge of construction materials, debris, and hazardous materials will be permitted into the Town's storm drainage system. In the event of any discharge, leakage, spill or emission of hazardous materials, Contractor shall promptly notify the Town and shall clean all affected property. The Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Town against all liability incurred as a result of any such discharge, leakage, spill or emission, regardless of whether such liability, cost or expense arises during or after the term of the permit.

9.13 <u>Preservation of Property</u> - The Contractor shall be responsible for the protection of public and private property adjacent to the work.

Due care shall be exercised to avoid damage to existing roadway improvements and facilities, adjacent property, roadside trees, lawn and shrubbery not designated for removal, pole lines, fences, signs, survey markers and monuments, buildings and structures, conduits, pipe lines under or above ground, sewer and water laterals, and any other improvements or facilities within or outside the limits of construction. As ordered and approved by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide and install suitable safeguards to protect such objects from injury or damage. If such objects are injured or damaged by reason of the Contractor's operations, they shall be replaced or restored, at the Contractor's expense, to a condition as good as when the Contractor entered upon the work, or as good as required by the Contract Documents.

Existing striping damaged during construction within and adjacent to the project site shall be replaced with thermoplastic. Partially damaged striping (such as what might occur trenching through a pavement legend), shall be replaced in their entirety.

Contractor shall preserve carefully bench marks, reference points, and stakes; in case of willful or careless destruction, he will be charged with the resulting expense of replacement and shall be responsible for any mistakes that may be caused by their unnecessary loss or disturbance.

Any survey monuments that are damaged or removed as part of the construction shall be replaced by the Contractor and a Record of Survey, as required by State law, shall be filed by a licensed Land Surveyor at the Contractor's expense.

The fact that any such improvement or facility is not shown upon the plans shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility under this Section. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to ascertain the existence of any underground improvements or facilities indicated on the plans, indicated by locating services, or as evidenced by facilities visible in the field.

Contractor shall protect his work, supplies and materials from damage due to the nature of the work, the action of the elements, trespassers, or any cause whatsoever which is under his control, until the completion and acceptance of the work. Neither the Town nor any of the Town's agents assume any responsibility for collecting indemnity from any person(s) causing damage to the work of the contractor.

9.14 <u>Protection of Buried Utilities</u> – When the Contractor's attention is directed to the existence of pipes, cables, culverts, and other underground structures and improvements which may or may not be shown on the plans, it is the responsibility of the contractor to ascertain the exact location of such underground utilities in advance of any digging operations so that they shall not be disturbed or damaged by him during the progress of the work. All expenses of whatever nature arising from such disturbance or replacement or repair thereof shall be borne by the contractor.

If the location of pipelines being installed by the contractor under this contract conflicts with the location of existing pipelines, contractor shall so notify the Engineer in writing. The Engineer will ascertain the location of the existing utility in question and may at his discretion relocate the pipeline being installed for the convenience of the contractor. It shall not be construed that the Town or the Engineer is in any way required or obligated to locate or relocate pipelines to locations other than shown on the contract plans. If the Engineer relocates pipelines at the request of the contractor, the contractor shall bear all the expenses incurred in connection therewith.

- 9.15 <u>Protection of Bridges</u> Contractor shall be responsible for any damage he may cause to bridges, culverts and road structures. He shall determine in advance the allowable safe load for each structure and, if necessary, provide special shoring and support at his expense.
- 9.16 <u>Protection of Traffic Signal Facilities</u> The Contractor shall give at least seventy-two (72) hours advance notice to the Engineer before commencing any street work (such as pavement grinding or trenching) that may potentially damage any traffic signal detection loop wires or any other signal facility. This requirement is in addition to any Underground Services Alert notifications. The Town will then mark the underground traffic signal facilities.

The Contractor shall not proceed with any grinding, trenching or other underground work until it has been verified with the Inspector that signal facilities have been marked.

In the event that the Contractor's construction activities cause any failure of a traffic facility, it shall be repaired and be made fully operable within 24-hours of the damage occurring. In the event that such repair is not undertaken within this time limit, the Town may repair the facility at the Contractor's expense.

9.17 <u>Restoration of Adjacent and Existing Improvements</u> - Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, or patching of the work required to make all parts of the work come together properly with existing and adjacent conditions.

Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall repair or replace all existing improvements (e.g., curbs, sidewalks, driveways, fences, signs, utilities, street surfaces, structures, etc.) damaged or removed

as a result of his operations. Repairs and replacements shall be at least equal to existing improvements, and shall match in terms of condition, finish and dimension to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

All Underground Services Alert (USA) markings, including the initial markings made by the Contractor and those markings placed by others in responseshall be removed at the Contractor's expense when they are no longer required. Acceptable means of removal include sand blasting, high pressure washing, or other means approved by the Engineer.

All traffic signs and street signs within the limit of work necessarily removed during the various phases of operations shall be temporarily reset by the Contractor at or near the original location upon completion of each phase of construction operations. Prior to removal of all traffic control signs, the Contractor shall submit photographs of the site which show the existing location of these signs so that upon completion the photographs will aid in resetting the signs at or near their original location. Traffic control signs and street signs will be replaced upon completion of the work and the cost of removal and replacement shall be considered as part of the contract bid items, and no separate payment will be made thereof.

Rural type mail boxes shall be maintained by the Contractor in a manner satisfactory to the property owner and postal service, and the Contractor shall relocate the same as soon as possible to a permanent location in accordance with postal regulations and in a location acceptable to the property owner.

Any object to be removed and reused at other locations shall be removed with due care and delivered or stored at the project's construction storage area, or if approved by the Engineer, at any other site designated by the Engineer within the Town. Such objects may consist of street light poles, signal mast arms and other objects directed by the Engineer. Items not approved by the Engineer for reuse purposes, and without salvage value, shall become the property of the Contractor, to be disposed of at Contractor expense, in an acceptable manner.

- 9.18 <u>Archeological Remains</u> If human and/or archeological remains are uncovered during excavation. All earthwork within one-hundred (100) feet of these materials will be stopped until a Coroner and/or professional archeologist (SCA) and/or the Society of Professional Archeology (SOPA) has had an opportunity to evaluate the significance of the find and suggest appropriate mitigation measures.
- 9.19 <u>Access to Private Property</u> The Contractor shall schedule and perform operations so as to minimize disruption of access to private property. Prior to blocking access to any private driveway or parking lot entrance, the Contractor shall notify the residents, business owners or tenants of pending closure and allow residents to remove vehicles. During non-working hours no driveway, house or parking lot shall be denied access to a public roadway.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the adjacent property owners and businesses and maintain vehicle and pedestrian access to their properties at all times. Temporary access ramps, fencing, or other measures shall be provided as needed.

9.20 <u>Traffic Control and Public Convenience</u> – The Contractor shall provide for safe movement of all vehicular, bicycle and pedestrian traffic through and around the construction operations with as little inconvenience and delay as possible. The Contractor shall have no amount of work under construction other than what he can properly prosecute with due regard to the rights and convenience of the public.

Proper conveyance of vehicular traffic and pedestrians through the work area depends upon navigating under unexpected situations. The means of clarifying such conditions to the public include the Contractor's use of signs, flagmen, pavement markings, barricades, lights, cones and delineators. No one standard sequence of signs or control devices will suit all conditions which may result from construction operations. Even for the same work, the conditions may vary from hour to hour, requiring adjustment and revisions of the traffic control in effect. The traffic control requirements specified herein are therefore intended to establish general principles to be observed in the control and regulation of traffic through and around the construction operations anticipated for this project. The requirements set forth in this Section represent the minimum traffic control requirements imposed and the Contractor shall be solely responsible for providing the full extent of traffic control measures that are necessary. Only individuals trained in the

principles of implementing traffic control and/or traffic control flagging shall be assigned that responsibility at the work site.

(a) Traffic Control Plan – The Contractor shall submit a Traffic Control Plan to clearly describe proposed traffic control measures. The plan shall be generally in accordance with the illustrations included in the "California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices" and the "Work Area Traffic Control Handbook", (Building News Incorporated P.O. Box 3031, Terminal Annex, Los Angeles, CA 90051). The submittal shall consist of scaled drawings for each situation anticipated to be encountered, i.e., intersections, mid-block (each during working and non-working hours), etc. The drawings shall show signs, traffic control devices and flagmen as required.

The Traffic Control Plan shall be directed equally to the regulation and protection of non-vehicular traffic including pedestrians, bicyclists, joggers, skaters, skateboarders, etc. The Contractor shall provide for the protection and separation of non-vehicular traffic from construction operations at all times. No work involving the implementation of traffic control shall begin until the Engineer has reviewed and has no exception to the traffic control plans. The Contractor may implement a revised Traffic Control Plan only with subsequent review with no exceptions by the Engineer.

(b) Traffic Control Devices - Traffic control devices shall be provided in sufficient quantities and types as required to provide safe and adequate traffic control. During hours of darkness, approved lights and/or flares shall be included, in proper working order, to illuminate signs and hazards and alert approaching traffic. Barricades shall be furnished and maintained along all open trenches in contact with traffic. No work may begin on any day or at any time before traffic control devices have been placed, test driven and, if required, adjusted and revised. All traffic control devices shall be placed in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices and the Contractor's favorably reviewed traffic control plans. Locations of devices shall be adjusted to suit the conditions and circumstances of each detour situation. In all cases, signs shall be placed to most effectively convey their messages to approaching traffic.

The Contractor shall maintain all traffic control devices, at proper locations and in proper working order, at all times during construction operations and whenever a hazard resulting from Contractor's operations exists. The Contractor shall adjust and revise traffic control devices, placement, etc., to suit changing conditions around construction operations. Traffic control devices shall remain in place at all times, as required to alert approaching traffic of upcoming hazards. After hazards have been removed, all traffic control devices shall be removed. Temporary signs shall be removed or their messages covered.

Daily traffic control measures shall continue until cleanup activities have been satisfactorily completed and all of the Contractor's equipment has been removed from the traveled way.

- (c) Traffic Control Detours The Contractor shall direct, divert and detour traffic through, around and adjacent to construction operations in accordance with the traffic control plans specified in the Contract Documents or in accordance with the Contractor's favorably reviewed traffic control plans.
 - Field Review of Detours Immediately after traffic control devices have been placed, the detour shall be test driven by the Engineer or Inspector and the Contractor's Superintendent. The test drive shall include approaches to the detour from each possible direction, and traverse the full length of each detour route. The Contractor shall adjust and revise all traffic control devices as determined to be required by the test drive and the test drive shall be repeated, if determined necessary by the Engineer or Inspector. The Contractor shall provide additional traffic control devices as required to maintain the flow of traffic throughout construction operation.
 - 2. Diverting Bicycle and Pedestrian Traffic Whenever construction operations obstruct the flow of bicycle and pedestrian traffic or present a hazard to bicycles and pedestrians, the Contractor shall take appropriate action to protect and

- separate bicycles and pedestrians from the work area. Such action may include placement of barricades between bicycles and pedestrians and the work areas, placement of warning signs, and provisions utilizing personnel as required to protect and maintain access for bicycles and pedestrians as conditions warrant.
- 3. Diverting Vehicular Traffic Whenever construction operations obstruct the flow of vehicular traffic or present a hazard to vehicles operating in the vicinity of construction operations, the Contractor shall take appropriate action to warn, detour and otherwise protect approaching drivers and vehicles.
- 4. Flagmen The Contractor shall employ flagmen as required for each specific detour and at all locations where barricades and warning signs cannot control the movement of traffic. A warning sign shall be placed ahead of the flagman reading: "Flagman Ahead." The distance between the sign and the flagman should be based on the average traffic speed, allowing approximately fifty (50) feet for each ten (10) miles per hour. During hours of darkness, flagman stations shall be illuminated such that the flagman will be clearly visible to approaching traffic. Lights for illuminating the flagman station shall receive favorable review by the Engineer. The flagman shall wear a red or orange warning garment when flagging. Flagmen shall be provided with approved red flags or STOP/SLOW hand paddles, and two-way radios for communication. When flagging during hours of darkness, the flagman shall signal with a red light or flare and shall have a belt and suspender harness outside his garment fitted with reflectors or made from reflectorized cloth, unless the garment is well reflectorized in one of these ways.
- 5. Notice to Agencies The Contractor shall notify the Engineer and all agencies having jurisdiction over the work, in writing, at least ninety-six (96) hours, excluding holidays and weekends, prior to instituting any lane closure or detour. At the end of each workday, the Contractor shall inform the Engineer, Police Department and Fire Departments of the status of all detours, lane restrictions, or road closures. The Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate with the various parties involved in the collection and removal of trash and garbage, the transit providers, the U.S. Postal Service, and others, as necessary, in order to maintain existing schedules and services.
- 6. Emergency Vehicle Access Through Detours During all detours and/or street closures the Contractor shall provide for the movement of emergency vehicles through the work area. It is essential that the Contractor's work and equipment does not impede emergency access.
- 7. Night Detours The Contractor shall not be permitted to maintain any lane closure or road closure during non-working hours without first obtaining written approval from the Engineer. During non-working hours the Contractor shall restore travel lanes to their original alignment and configuration by means of placing temporary asphalt pavement or bridging with steel plates. The Contractor shall place "ROUGH ROAD" signs conforming to the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices at uneven temporary pavement or bridging locations. See General Provisions, Section 9.18 (b), "Trench Safety Requirements".
- 8. Temporary Traffic Lanes Temporary traffic lanes shall be at least ten (10) feet wide, or eleven (11) feet wide around curves. Provide an additional two (2) feet of clearance from curbs. The length of temporary lanes should be limited to the area under construction and the distance necessary to divert traffic.
- (d) Parking Restrictions The Contractor shall post approved "No Parking" signs at all locations necessary to establish work areas and detour traffic. Signs shall read: "NO PARKING CONSTRUCTION TOW-AWAY ZONE," show the actual day and hours of parking restriction and indicate the telephone number of the Town's Police Department or agency having jurisdiction. Signs shall be placed at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the restriction. The Engineer shall approve the location and duration of no parking limits and verify their placement. "No Parking" signs shall be removed when no work is under

construction and must be reposted forty-eight (48) hours before the resumption of construction activities.

For any violation of "No Parking" signs by motorists, the Contractor shall contact and coordinate directly with the Town's Police Department for removal of vehicles in accordance with the California Vehicle Code. The Contractor shall also coordinate with the Police Department directly for enforcement and towing of parked vehicles.

9.21 <u>Safety</u> - The Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the performance of the work. The Contractor's responsibilities shall specifically provide for the safety of persons involved in the project, other persons who are affected by the performance of the work, the work in place, materials and equipment to be incorporated in the work, the project site, and adjoining property.

The services of the Town in conducting inspection or construction review of the Contractor's performance is not intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's work methods, equipment, bracing, shoring or scaffolding, or safety measures, in, on, or near the construction site.

Safety vests and personal protection equipment shall be worn by the Contractor, all subcontractors and other personnel when working or present on the site. Hard hats shall be worn when working around earthmoving or any heavy construction equipment or during any overhead construction work.

Payment for performing all work necessary to provide safety measures shall be included in the bid items for which safety measures are required and no additional compensation will be made.

- (a) Safety Orders The Contractor shall have at the work site, copies or suitable extracts of: Construction Safety Orders, Tunnel Safety Orders, and General Industry Safety Orders issued by the State Division of Industrial Safety. The Contractor shall comply with provisions of these and all other applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations.
- (b) Trench Safety Requirement As required by California Labor Code, Section 6705 and in addition thereto, for any excavation of any trench or trenches five (5') feet or more in depth, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for review, a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches. Structural calculations prepared, stamped and signed by a Registered Engineer licensed to practice in the State of California shall accompany the plan to verify the structural safety and adequacy of the sheeting, shoring and bracing to be used on the project. No such plan shall allow any shoring, sloping or a protection system less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders of the State Division of Occupational Safety and Health.

The maximum length of open trench shall be three-hundred (300) feet or the distance that pipe can be installed in a single day as determined by the Engineer. Trenches shall be backfilled and covered with two (2) inches of cutback (in paved areas) or bridged with tackwelded steel plates at the end of each workday. Cutback shall be placed around plate edges to provide a smooth transition and to secure against displacement.

As soon as possible under the provisions of these specifications, the Contractor shall backfill all excavations and restore to usefulness all improvements that existed prior to the start of construction.

(c) Confined Space Entry Program (CSEP) - Entry into permit-required confined spaces as defined in Section 5157, Title 8, California Code of Regulations (CCR) may be required as a part of the work. All manholes, tanks, vaults, pipelines, excavations, or other enclosed or partially enclosed spaces shall be considered permit-required confined spaces until the pre-entry procedures demonstrate otherwise. The Contractor shall be responsible for implementing, administering, and maintaining a confined space entry program (CSEP) in accordance with Sections 5156, 5157, 5158, Title 8, CCR and shall implement such a program prior to performing any work in a permit-required confined space. A copy of the

permit shall be available at all times for review by the Contractor and Town personnel at the work site.

Prior to starting work, the Contractor shall prepare and submit its comprehensive CSEP to the Engineer. The CSEP shall address all potential physical and environmental hazards and contain procedures for safe entry into confined spaces, including, but not limited to the following:

- 1. Training of personnel
- 2. Purging and cleaning the space of materials and residue
- 3. Potential isolation and control of energy and material inflow
- 4. Controlled access to the space
- 5. Atmospheric testing of the space
- 6. Ventilation of the space
- 7. Special hazards consideration
- 8. Personal protective equipment
- 9. Rescue plan provisions

The Contractor's CSEP submittal shall also include the names of the Contractor's and Subcontractor's personnel assigned to the project who will have CSEP responsibilities, their CSEP training, their specific assignment and their responsibilities in carrying out the CSEP.

Payment for implementing, administering, and providing all equipment and personnel associated with the CSEP shall be included in the bid items for which the CSEP is required and no additional compensation will be made.

- (d) Hazardous Conditions: Contractor's Responsibility for Precautions Contractor agrees that if, during the progress of the work, a hazardous condition is identified which involves a risk of bodily harm to any person or a risk of damage to any property, the Contractor will take such special precautions as shall be necessary to make the progress of the work safe under such condition. Conditions may result from, but are not limited to, the use of specified materials or equipment, the location of the work, the condition of the site, the kind or method of construction, or the manner in which any of the work is required to be done. The Contractor agrees to assume the sole responsibility for determining whether any such hazardous condition exists or will be created during the course of the work.
- (e) Use of Explosives Explosives may be used only when authorized in writing by the Engineer, or as otherwise stated in the Specifications. Explosives shall be handled, used, and stored in accordance with all applicable regulations. No explosive material shall be transported to, stored or utilized on the site without written permission of Engineer. All blasting work and handling of explosives on the site shall be done only by qualified persons who possess a valid permit. The Engineer's approval of the use of explosives shall not relieve the Contractor from liability for claims caused by blasting operations.
- (f) Special Hazardous Substances and Process Materials that contain hazardous substances or mixtures may be required on the work. A Material Safety Data Sheet as described in California Code of Regulations, Section 5194 shall be requested by the Contractor from the manufacturer of any hazardous products used and submitted to the Engineer.

Hazardous material usage shall be accomplished with strict adherence to California Division of Industrial Safety requirements and all manufacturer warnings and application instructions listed on the Material Safety Data Sheet and on the product container label. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer if a specified product cannot be used under safe conditions.

9.22 <u>Patent Fees or Royalties</u> - All fees, royalties or claims for any patented invention, article or method that may be used upon or in any manner connected with the work under this contract shall be included in the price bid for the work and the contractor and his sureties shall protect and hold the Town, together with all the Town's officers, agents, servants and employees, harmless against any and all demands made for such fees or claims brought or made by the holder of any invention or patent and, before the final payment is made on account of this contract, contractor shall, if requested by the Engineer, furnish acceptable proof of a proper release from all such fees or claims.

Should the contractor, his agents, servants or employees, or any of them, be enjoined from furnishing or using any invention, article, material or appliance supplied or required to be supplied or used under this contract, the contractor shall promptly substitute other articles, materials or appliances, in lieu thereof, of equal efficiency, quality, finish, suitability and market value and satisfactory in all respects to the Engineer. Or, in the event that the Engineers elects in lieu of such substitution to have supplies and to retain and use any such invention, article, material or appliance as may be required by the contract to be supplied – in that event, the contractor shall pay such royalties and secure such valid licenses as may be requisite and necessary for the Town, the Town's officers, agents, servants and employees, or any of them to use such invention, article, material or appliance without being disturbed or in any way interfered with by any proceeding in law or equity on account thereof. Should the contractor neglect or refuse to make the substitution promptly, or to pay such royalties and secure such licenses as may be necessary, then, in that event, the Engineer shall have the right to make such substitution or the Town may pay such royalties and secure such licenses and charge the cost thereof against any monies due the contractor from the Town or recover the amount thereof from him and his sureties notwithstanding final payment under this contract may have been made.

- 9.23 <u>Advertising</u> The names of the Contractor or Subcontractors, with their addresses and the designation of their particular specialties, may be displayed at the job site on removable signs only if written approval is received from the Engineer. Commercial advertising material shall not be attached to, or painted on the surfaces of, any buildings, fences, canopies, or barricades.
- 9.24 Antitrust Claims Attention is directed to Public Contract Code, Section 7103.5 which provides: "In entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the Contractor or Subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the Town all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec 15) or the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2, commencing with Section 16700, of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the public works contract or subcontract. The assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the Town tenders final payment to the Contractor, without further acknowledgement by the parties."
- 9.25 <u>Audit and Examination of Records</u> The Town and entities and agencies designated by the Town, shall have access to, and the right to audit and examine at no additional cost, all of the Contractor's project related data including but not limited to, books, estimates, records, contracts, bid cost data, Subcontractor and supplier job cost data, change orders, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, vouchers, purchase orders, notes, computations, daily logs, and memoranda relating to the work. Pursuant to Government Code, Section 8546.7, the Contractor shall preserve all such records and will be subject to examination and audit by the State Auditor, at the request of the Town, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement.
- 9.26 <u>Notice of Entrance</u> Before entering any private property the contractor shall give the owner, tenant and inspector a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours written notice.
- 9.27 <u>Additional and Emergency Protection</u> Wherever, in the opinion of the Engineer, the contractor has not taken sufficient precautions for the safety of the public or the protection of the works to be constructed under this contract, or of adjacent structures or property which may be injured by processes of construction on account of such neglect, and whenever, in the opinion of the Engineer, an emergency shall arise and immediate actions shall be considered necessary in order to protect personal and property

interest, whether public or private, then and in that event, the Engineer, with or without notice to the contractor, may provide suitable protection to the said interests by causing such work to be done and such material to be furnished as shall provide such protection as the Engineer may consider necessary and adequate.

The cost and expense of such work and material so furnished shall be borne by the contractor and if the same shall not be paid on presentation of the bills therefore, then such costs shall be deducted from any amounts due or to become due the contractor. The performance of such emergency work under the direction of the Engineer shall in no way relieve the contractor from any damages which may occur during or after precaution has been taken by the Engineer.

- 9.28 <u>Placing Portions of Work in Service</u> Portions of the work may be placed in service as completed if desired by the Town. Contractor shall give proper access to the work for this purpose. Such use and operation shall not constitute an acceptance of the work and the work, and the contractor shall be liable for defects due to faulty construction until the entire work under the contract is finally accepted.
- 9.29 <u>Rights-of-Way</u> The Town will provide all rights-of-way and easements in or beneath which pipes and other structures will be constructed by the contractor under this contract. If through the failure of the Town to acquire or clear title to rights-of-way, the contractor sustains loss which could not have been avoided by the judicious handling of forces and plant, there shall be paid to the contractor such amount as the Engineer may find to be a fair and reasonable compensation for such part of the contractor's actual loss as the Engineer deems unavoidable. Actual loss shall be understood to include no items other than necessary payments, idle time of men, idle time of equipment, cost of extra moving of equipment, and cost of longer hauls, with no allowance in any case for overhead or profit. If performance of the contractor's work is delayed as a result of the failure of the Town to acquire or clear title to rights-of-way, a commensurate extension of time will be granted.

SECTION 10 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

10.01 <u>Measurement of Quantities for Unit Price Work</u> - Materials and items of work which are to be paid for on the basis of measurement shall be measured in accordance with the methods stipulated in the particular sections of the Contract Documents involved. Unless specifically stated otherwise in this contract, no extra measurement(s) according to local custom of any kind shall be allowed in measuring the work under this contract; only the length, area, solid contents, number, weight, or time in standard units, as the case may be, shall be considered as specified.

Unless otherwise specified, quantities of work shall be determined from measurements or dimensions in the horizontal planes. Stationing shall be along the street centerline, lengths of sanitary sewers, storm drains and water lines shall be measured as the horizontal distances from center to center of structures, rounded to the nearest foot, and lengths of all return radii and curb data shall be measured along the face of curb. Volumetric quantities shall be the product of the mean area of vertical or horizontal sections and the intervening horizontal or vertical dimensions. Measurements shall be in accordance with U.S. Standard Measures. A pound is an avoirdupois pound. A ton is two-thousand (2,000) pounds avoirdupois. The unit of liquid measure is the U.S. gallon.

When payment is to be made on the basis of weight, the weighing shall be done on certified platform scales or, when approved by the Engineer, on a completely automated weighing and recording system. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer with duplicate licensed Weighmaster's certificates showing the actual net weights. The Town will accept the certificates as evidence of the weights delivered.

10.02 <u>Bid Items</u> - Should any bid item be eliminated in its entirety, payment will be made to the Contractor for actual costs incurred, in connection with such eliminated contract work, and for costs incurred prior to the date of the Engineer's written notification eliminating such work. The actual costs to be paid to the Contractor shall be computed in the same manner as if the work were to be paid on a force account basis. No compensation will be made to the Contractor, in any case, for loss of anticipated profits. Increased or decreased scope involving a change order will be paid as stipulated in the change order.

The estimated value of work performed, for lump sum bids or lump sum bid items will be determined from the schedule of values, to be prepared by the Contractor and presented at the preconstruction meeting. Elements of work on the schedule of values shall be separated into groupings appropriate for the project. The Technical Specifications may be used as a guide for establishing these groupings. Move-in costs, bond and insurance costs, and submittal preparation costs can be included in the schedule of values under a separate mobilization line item. This line item shall not exceed five-percent (5%) of the contract's value. Overhead and profit shall not be allowed as a line item, but shall be prorated over other items of work.

10.03 <u>Bid Quantities</u> - The quantities listed in the Bid Schedule for each bid item do not govern final payment. Payments to the Contractor will be made only for the actual quantities of contract items constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications. If upon completion of the construction, the actual quantities show either an increase or decrease from the quantities given in the bid schedule, the contract unit prices will still prevail.

Payment will not be made for materials wasted or disposed of in a manner not called for under the contract. This includes rejected material not unloaded from vehicles, material rejected after it has been placed and material placed outside of the plan lines. Unless otherwise provided, no payment will be made for materials delivered to the site but not incorporated in the work. Such quantities will not be included in the final pay quantities. No compensation will be allowed for the disposal of rejected or excess material.

When a bid item is noted as "Revocable" in the Bid Schedule, it may be deleted in its entirely or in part, or added to at the sole discretion of the Town. The "25% Rule" described in Seciton 5.08 (b)(1), "Unit Price Adjustments" shall not apply to revocable bid items. Furthermore, due to the potential for large descrepancies between the estimated quantity and actual quantity of work, any reference within the

specifications to work scope that does not have a corresponding bid item and is to be paid "as part of other items of work" shall not be included for payment as part of a revocable bid item.

When the estimated quantity for a specific portion of work is designated on the Bid Schedule as a "Final Pay Quantity", the estimated quantity specified shall be the final quantity for which payment for such specified portion of the work will be made, regardless of the actual quantity constructed, unless the dimensions of said portions of the work shown on the plans are revised by the Engineer. If such dimensions are revised and such revisions result in an increase or decrease in the quantity of such work, the final quantity for payment will be revised by the amount represented by the change. The estimated quantity for any portion of the work designated as a Final Pay Quantity shall be considered as approximate only and no guarantee is made that the quantity, which can be determined by computations, based upon the details and dimensions shown on the plans, will equal the estimated quantity. No allowance will be made in the event that the quantities based upon computations do not equal the estimated quantities. Final pay quantities will be designated on the Bid Schedule with the letter (F) and shall only apply to the corresponding portions of work specifically designated on the plans. Any portion of work not designated as a final pay quantity will be measured and paid for as specified under other provisions of the Contract Documents.

10.04 <u>Progress Payments</u> – On or about the 25th day of each month may be designated as the date which would terminate each working month for the purpose of making progress payments.

The Contractor's request for a progress payment shall be submitted under cover of the Request for Progress Payment form approved by the Engineer. The Request for Progress Payment form shall be complete and properly executed by the contractor, and have, as attachments, the items listed on the form.

The Contractor shall, on the date established, prepare and submit a progress estimate to the Town for work accomplished during the previous working month, based on the various contract bid items and the unit bid prices. Invoices shall include amounts previously paid, itemized retention and any deductions or additions authorized by change order. Consultation with the Engineer may be necessary to determine the amount of work accomplished.

The first progress payment will not be made until the following submittals have been provided and accepted: list and schedule of submittals, Baseline Construction Schedule, schedule of values (if applicable), SWPPP. Subsequent progress payment requests will not be accepted unless accompanied by the progress payment cover letter, an updated baseline or revised schedule, a certification that the record drawings have been updated as of the date of the invoice.

Upon receipt of a progress payment request, the Town shall, within ten (10) working days, determine if the request is proper, and if disputed the Town will return the progress payment to the Contractor along with a written document setting forth the progress payment request's shortcomings. Following receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted progress payment request, the Town shall authorize payment within thirty (30) calendar days.

Contractor may request partial payment for materials delivered to the site but not yet incorporated into the work (materials on hand). To receive consideration for payment of materials on hand, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer with a list of such materials at least five (5) working days prior to submitting the monthly estimate of amount earned for work completed. At the Engineer's sole discretion, up to seventy-five-percent (75%) of the estimated value of materials on hand may be considered for payment, subject to the following:

- (a) Only materials which have received favorable review of shop drawings will qualify.
- (b) Eligible materials must be delivered and properly stored, protected, and maintained in a manner favorably reviewed by the Engineer, at the job site or at a bonded warehouse.
- (c) The Contractor's actual net cost for the materials must be supported by paid invoices to suppliers or other documentation requested by the Engineer.

- (d) Materials delivered to the site less than thirty (30) days prior to their scheduled incorporation in the work shall not qualify.
- (e) Partial payments for materials on hand shall not be deemed to be final payment for the material nor relieve the Contractor of his obligations under the Contract.
- (f) Partial payments for materials on hand shall be subject to retention.

From each progress estimate, five percent (5%) will be deducted and retained by the Town, and the remainder of the amount due, less the amount of all previous payment will be paid to the Contractor provided all work invoiced has been completed and approved by the Engineer.

The Engineer may withhold or nullify, the whole or any part of any payment to such extent as may be necessary to protect the Town from loss on account of any of the following:

- (a) Defective or vandalized work not remedied,
- (b) Damage to the Town or another Contractor,
- (c) Claims filed, or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of claims,
- (d) Stop notices, or failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to subcontractors or laborers or suppliers, in which case 125% of the stop notice amount shall be withheld until a release form is received.
- (e) A reasonable doubt that the contract can be completed for the balance unpaid,
- (f) Reasonable evidence that the work will not be completed within the contract time and that the unpaid balance of the contract sum would not be adequate to cover the Town's liquidated damages assessed in accordance with the Agreement for the anticipated delay,
- (g) Failure of Contractor to maintain, update and submit record documents, schedules or other submittals as required by the Contract Documents,
- (h) Performance of work by Contractor without properly processed shop drawings;
- (i) Any other failure of Contractor to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents.

The Contractor may elect to receive one hundred percent (100%) of payments due under the contract from time to time, without retention of any portion of the payment by the Town, by depositing and maintaining securities of a value equivalent to the retention amount with the Town in accordance with the provisions of Public Contract Code, Section 22300. Such securities, if deposited by the Contractor, shall be valued by the Town's Administrative Services Director, whose decision on valuation of the securities shall be final.

Contractor warrants that, upon submittal of an application for payment, all work for which payment has been previously issued by the Town and received by the Contractor, shall be free and clear of all claims, stop notices, security interests, and encumbrances in favor of Contractor, Subcontractors, or other persons or firms entitled to make claims by reason of having provided labor, materials, or equipment relating to work.

The payment of progress payments by the Town shall not be construed as an absolute acceptance of the work done up to the time of such payments and shall not constitute acceptance of defective work.

10.05 <u>Retentions</u> - The Town shall retain five percent (5%) of the amount of each progress estimate, and the accumulation of said amounts so retained from the progressive payments to the extent unencumbered will be paid to the contractor in no less than thirty-five (35) days after the completion and acceptance by the Engineer and the Town of the work done.

Upon contractor's request, Town will make payment of funds withheld from progress payments pursuant to the requirements of Code Section 14402 if contractor deposits in escrow with the Town, or with

a bank acceptable to the Town, securities eligible for the investment of State funds under Government Code Section 16430 or bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, upon the following conditions:

- (a) Contractor shall bear the expense of the Town and the escrow agent in connection with the escrow deposit made.
- (b) Securities or certificates of deposit to be placed in escrow shall be of a value at least equivalent to the amounts of retention to be paid to the contractor pursuant to this section.
- (c) Contractor shall enter into an escrow agreement satisfactory to the Town, which agreement shall include provisions governing inter alia:
 - 1. Amount of securities to be deposited.
 - 1. Providing of powers of attorney or other documents necessary for the transfer of the securities to be deposited.
 - Conversion to cash to provide funds to meet defaults to termination of the contractor's control over the work, stop notices filed pursuant to the law, assessment of liquidated damages or other amounts to be kept or retained under the provisions of the contract.
 - 3. Decrease in value of securities or deposit.
 - 4. Termination of the escrow upon completion of the contract.
- (d) Contractor shall obtain the written consent of the surety to such agreement.

10.06 <u>Final Payment</u> - The Town shall, prior to final acceptance, provide the Contractor with a copy of the final quantities for the various contract bid items and a summary of contract change orders for his review. All prior payments shall be subject to correction in determining the total contract sum. The Contractor shall reply promptly in writing, to indicate either his concurrence or an explanation of possible discrepancies in the total contract sum.

The project will not be submitted to the Town Council for acceptance until the Engineer and the Contractor concur with the totals of all quantities, costs, contract change orders and the total contract sum. Following concurrence, a semi-final payment will be made to the Contractor after deducting all previous payments and all amounts to be retained under the provisions of the contract. The retention payment shall be due and payable as a final payment after the expiration of thirty-five (35) days following the date of final acceptance of the work by the Town Council.

If within the time fixed by law, a properly executed notice to stop payment is filed with the Town, due to Contractor's failure to pay for labor or materials used in the work, all money due for such labor or materials will be withheld from payment to the Contractor in accordance with applicable laws.

If releases are required, the Contractor shall pay or cause to be paid to Subcontractors the amount stated in the conditional releases within five (5) days after receipt of the semi-final payment, and shall promptly thereafter furnish evidence of such payment to the Town.

The securities deposited by the Contractor will be released, providing that the following requirements of the contract have been fulfilled:

- (a) Satisfactory completion of all construction work and written acceptance of said work by the Town;
- (b) The submission by the Contractor to the Engineer of all required stop notice releases, submittals, written guarantees, warranties, operating manuals, and other project related documentation;
- (c) The return to the Engineer of all drawings and written specifications loaned to the Contractor during the construction period.

(d) The submission by the Contractor to the Engineer of record documents and a set of redlined drawings showing the revisions to the original set of drawings which reflect the actual construction of the project for preparation of "Record Drawings".

The Contractor agrees that the payment of the final amount due under the contract shall release the Town of Loomis from any and all claims or liability on account of all work performed under the contract, except those items previously made in writing and identified by the Contractor as unsettled. Release of the final payment by the Town shall not be construed as an acceptance of any defective work or acceptance of improper materials.

- 10.07 Acceptance Contractor shall notify Engineer in writing of the completion of the work, whereupon the Engineer shall promptly satisfy them self by personal inspection as to the actual completion of the work in accordance with the terms of the contract. After receiving a written recommendation from the Engineer for acceptance of the work, Town shall accept or reject the work; stating, if the work is rejected, the requisite conditions for acceptance. When the Town accepts the work, they shall file a Notice of Completion with the County Recorder in the county where the work is located and shall promptly notify the contractor in writing of the recordation. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all work, materials and equipment accepted by the Town will pass to the Town free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances, and that no work, materials or equipment accepted will have been acquired by the contractor, or by any other person performing the work at the site or furnishing materials or equipment for the project, subject to an agreement under which an interest therein or encumbrances thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise imposed by contractor of such other person.
- 10.08 <u>Compensation for Extra or Omitted Work</u> Compensation for extra or omitted work shall be in accordance with Section 5.08, Change Orders.
- 10.09 <u>Compensation to Town for Extension of Time</u> In case the work called for under this contract is not completed within the time limit stipulated herein, the Town shall have the right, as provided hereinabove, to extend the time of completion thereof. If the time limit so be extended, the Town shall have the right to charge to the contractor and to deduct from the final payment for the work the actual cost to the Town of engineering, inspection, administration, legal and other overhead expenses which are directly chargeable to the extension of time. The cost of final surveys and preparation of the final estimate shall not be included in such charges.
- 10.10 <u>Liquidated Damages for Delay -</u> It is agreed by the parties to the contract that time is of the essence and that in case all the work is not completed before or upon the expiration of the time limit as set forth, damage will be sustained by the Town, and that it is and will be impractical to determine the actual amount of damage by reason of such delay, and it is, therefore, agreed that the contractor will pay to the Town the amount specified in special provisions of the contract per day for each and every calendar day delay beyond the time prescribed.

In addition, the Town shall have the right to charge to the contractor and to deduct from the final payment for the work the actual cost to the Town of engineering, inspection, administration and other overhead expenses which are directly chargeable to the contract and which accrue during the period of such delay, except that the cost of final surveys and preparation of the final estimate shall not be included in such charges.

10.11 <u>Claims</u> - The term "Claim" shall mean a written demand or assertion by the Contractor seeking, as a matter of asserted right, adjustment in the terms of the Contract Documents, payment of money, extension of time, or other relief with respect to the Contract Documents, or determination of other disputes or matters in question between the Town and Contractor arising out of or related to the Contract Documents or the performance of the work, including claims alleging an error or omission.

A claim must be stated with specifiTown, including identification of the event giving rise to claim, the date of the event, and the asserted effect on contract sum and contract time. The claim shall include adequate supporting data. Adequate supporting data for a claim for an adjustment of the contract time shall include scheduling data demonstrating the impact of the event on the completion of the work.

Adequate supporting data for a claim for an adjustment of the contract sum shall include a detailed cost breakdown of the items allowed, isolating labor, material, and equipment costs, and providing detailed quantities and unit prices for changed work. If the exact amount of a claim is not ascertainable at the time such claim is made, the supporting data currently available shall be submitted. Supplemental data supporting the exact amount of the claim shall be submitted as soon as available.

Notwithstanding the making of any claim or the existence of any dispute regarding any claim, unless otherwise directed by the Engineer, the Contractor shall not cause any delay, cessation, or termination in the performance of the work, including portions of the work pertaining to a claim.

10.12 <u>Time Limit on Claims</u> - Contractor shall submit any and all claims, together with adequate supporting data to the Engineer as soon as possible but not later than ten (10) working days after occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim, or the date the Contractor first recognized, or reasonably should have recognized, the condition giving rise to the claim, whichever is earlier. Contractor hereby expressly waives all claims not made within this time limit.

Contractor is expressly barred from asserting any claims of which the Contractor was aware, whether or not the exact amount of such claims was ascertainable, that is not submitted to the Engineer prior to the Contractor proceeding with the work.

- 10.13 Town Response to Claims The Engineer shall promptly review claims. If additional supporting data is deemed necessary, the Engineer shall request such additional data within ten (10) working days after receipt of the claim. The Contractor shall furnish such additional data no later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the Town's request. The Engineer shall render a decision promptly, but in any event, within thirty (30) working days after the receipt of the claim or the receipt of additional supporting data. If the amount of the claim is in excess of \$50,000, the aforesaid thirty (30) working days. Failure of the Engineer to render a decision within the aforesaid thirty (30) or sixty (60) working day period shall be deemed a decision denying the claim and the last day of such period shall be the date of such decision. The decision of the Engineer shall be final and binding unless appealed in accordance with the General Provisions, Section 10.15, "Appeal of the Engineer's Decision".
- 10.14 Appeal of Engineer's Decision If Contractor disputes the Engineer's decision of a claim, the Contractor shall, within thirty (30) calendar days of the decision, make a written appeal of the decision to the Engineer. The written appeal shall include all supporting data upon which the Contractor requests the Town to modify its decision, including all documentation transmitted between the Contractor and the Engineer on the underlying claim. The Engineer shall make a good faith effort to resolve the claim prior to final completion of the Project. In the event the claim is not resolved prior to final completion, the Contractor's claim shall be heard by the Director of Public Works prior to recommending final acceptance to the Town Council. The Contractor's administrative remedies under the Contract Documents shall be exhausted after the decision of the Director of Public Works is rendered. In case of disagreement with the decision of the Director of Public Works, the Contractor may pursue the resolution of the dispute by presenting a formal claim to the Town.

SECTION 11 - GUARANTY

11.01 <u>Contractor's Guaranty</u> - Prior to final acceptance, the Contractor shall warrant and quaranty to the Town that all work is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not defective.

The guaranty shall be accompanied by a warranty bond for ten percent (10%) of the final contract sum, which shall warrant the quality of the work for a period of one (1) year after acceptance. The guaranty and warranty bond shall be in accordance with the Agreement Forms furnished in the Contract Documents.

11.02 <u>Correction of Defective Work During the Guaranty Period</u> - If within two (2) years after the date of Town Council acceptance, or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by laws or regulations or by the terms of any applicable special guaranty required by the Contract Documents, any work is found to be defective, the Contractor shall promptly without cost to the Town and in accordance with the Town's written instructions, either correct such defective work or if it has been rejected by the Town, remove it from the site and replace it with non-defective work.

If the Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions within ten (10) working days after written demand by the Town, the Town may have the defective work corrected. The Town may also correct defective work immediately in cases of emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage. All direct, indirect and consequential costs of correcting defective work (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals) shall be absorbed by the Contractor.

The Contractor shall remove from the Project site portions of the work and materials which are not in accordance with the Contract Documents and which are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Town. If Contractor fails to pay the costs of such removal within ten (10) working days after written demand, the Town may, without prejudice to other remedies, sell such materials at auction or at private sale, or otherwise dispose of such material. The Contractor shall be entitled to the proceeds of such sale, if any, in excess of the costs and damages for which the Contractor is liable to the Town, including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses and compensation for the Town's services and expenses.

The Town shall have the option, at its sole discretion and by notice to the Contractor, to accept defective work as defined in Section 4.18 – "Acceptance of Defective Work".

SPECIAL PROVISIONS SECTION 12 - BID ITEM DESCRIPTIONS

12-01 GENERAL

The bid items listed in the Bid Schedule are not intended to be exclusive descriptions of all the work necessary to complete the project scope. As such, the Contractor shall determine, segregate and include in their pricing for each bid item the cost for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and other incidentals which may be reasonably assumed as necessary to complete all of the contract work, complete in place, as described by the Contract Documents.

Mobilization - Bid Item 1

The contract lump sum price paid for "Mobilization" shall include as full compensation for mobilization, including but not limited to notifications, project records and documents, obtaining all required permits, licenses, and paying all fees, developing construction schedule, moving on and off the site any equipment required for the operations, preparatory work, including coordination and cooperation, project meeting, developing construction water supply, pre-construction video and photos, providing on-site sanitary facilities, developing a temporary construction staging area, moving equipment to and from the staging area daily, preparing and storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) and implementing and maintaining stormwater inlet protection measures, contractor and subcontractor insurance and bonds, demobilization and all other mobilization work, as specified in the Standard Specifications or these specifications.

The mobilization bid price should not exceed 10 percent (10%) of the total bid price for payment purposes. Any amount beyond 10% will be paid as part of the first payment following contract acceptance, in accordance with Public Contract Code 10264(a)(5). The following schedule shall be used by the Town to make partial payments for mobilization in accordance with Public Contract Code 10264(a), except that the amount of work completed does not include the amount earned for mobilization.

- (1) When 5 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 50 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.
- (2) When 10 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 75 percent of the amount bid for mobilization or 7.5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.
- (3) When 20 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 95 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 9.5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.
- (4) When 50 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 100 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 10 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.
- (5) Upon completion of all work on the project, payment of any amount bid for mobilization in excess of 10 percent of the original contract amount will be paid.

Bid Item 2 - Remove Concrete or Asphalt

The contract price paid per square foot for "Remove Concrete or Asphalt" shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in removing concrete or asphalt improvements such as sidewalk, curb ramps, driveways, curb and gutter, pavement, or other miscellaneous areas. Work includes saw-cutting, removal of material, disposal, hauling, recycling, traffic control, dust control, construction staking, and water pollution control as shown on the plans or as specified in the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Bid Item 3 - Dirt Excavation and Clearing and Grubbing at Webb Street

The contract lump sum price paid for " Dirt Excavation and Vegetation Removal at Webb Street" estimated as roughly 13 cubic yards of material, shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in clearing and grubbing, including removal and disposal of all resulting material and backfill, including soil, gravel, base rock, vegetation, debris, or other miscellaneous material, as shown on the plans or as specified in the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Bid Item 4 - Allowance for Irrigation Repairs

The Town will rely upon the Contractor's expertise to relocate, realign, and repair portions of the existing irrigation system including pipes, valves, boxes, or other discovered improvements that are in the way of the proposed concrete work such that irrigation water continues to be supplied to the landscaping in the adjacent planter areas, after the work is completed. The cost of labor and materials will be calculated as extra work and paid by force account in accordance with Section 5.08(b)(3) of the General Provisions. All bidders are to use the allowance amount indicated on the bid schedule in calculating the estimated cost for this work. The actual amount paid will be based upon the actual cost incurred, not the allowance amount indicated on the bid schedule.

Bid Item 5 - Curb Drain

The contract unit price paid for "Curb Drain" shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in installing the curb drain, complete in place, including placement of pipe, reinforcing steel and wire mesh, as shown on the plans or as specified in the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Bid Item 6 & 7 – Concrete Curb and Gutter Bid Item 8 – Concrete Driveway Bid Items 9 & 10 – Concrete Sidewalk Bid Items 11 – Curb Ramp (Case C)

The contract price paid for "Concrete Curb and Gutter", "Concrete Driveway", "Concrete Sidewalk", and "Curb Ramp" shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in constructing the concrete improvements including construction staking, subgrade preparation, grading, compaction of native material, placement and compaction of aggregate base when called for, forming, placement of expansion joints and reinforcing steel dowels, adjusting any utility boxes to grade, placement of concrete with colorant if called for, application of curing compound, finishing, score marks, weakened plane joints, removal of forms, restoration of dirt and landscaping areas adjacent to new concrete removed to allow for the placement of forms, dust control, water pollution control, cleanup, and other necessary incidentals, as shown on the plans or as specified in the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

"Concrete Curb and Gutter" shall be paid per linear foot, measured along the top, middle portion of the curb. The replacement of asphalt in the street, adjacent to the curb and gutter, shall be measured and paid separately, under the bid item for Hot Mix Asphalt plugs.

"Concrete Driveway" shall be measured and paid per square foot.

"Concrete Sidewalk" shall be measured and paid per square foot.

"Curb Ramp" shall be measured and paid per each and include that portion of concrete that makes up the ramp and wings to the score line where the ramp transitions to sidewalk. The retaining curb portion of the curb ramp and the detectable warning surface shall also be considered as included in the contract unit price paid. The curb and gutter adjacent to the curb ramp shall be measured and paid separately, under the bid item for curb and gutter.

When concrete is placed around pull boxes, the area of the pull box will be calculated and included for payment under the concrete improvement bid item. Replacement boxes, if needed, will be paid by change order.

Bid Items 12 - 2-inch Asphalt Cold Planing

The contract lump sum price paid for "2-inch Asphalt Cold Planing", estimate to be roughly 560 square yards, shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in cold planing the asphalt concrete surfacing and disposing of planed material, including furnishing the minor hot mix asphalt for constructing, maintaining, removing, and disposing of temporary hot mix asphalt tapers, as shown on the plans or as specified in the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Bid Items 13 – Hot Mix Asphalt Plug Bid Items 14 – Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Overlay (2-inch thick) The contract price paid for "Hot Mix Asphalt Plug" and "Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Overlay" shall include full compensation for placing asphalt and for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for performing all of the work involved in the hot mix asphalt work including tack coat, asphaltic emulsion (Paint Binder), HMA (Type A), working around existing utility covers, compaction, cleanup and other incidental work, as shown on the plans or as specified in the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Compensation for "deep lift" asphalt plugs adjacent to lip of gutter shall be paid per square foot and shall be a minimum of 6-inches deep. Asphalt or aggregate base may be placed and compacted at depths beyond 6-inches. Regardless of material used, compensation for "Hot Mix Asphalt Plug" shall be measured and paid per square foot.

Two-inch thick, "Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Overlay" shall be measured and paid per ton.

Bid Item 16 – Induction Loop Detector – Type D Bid Item 17 – Induction Loop Detector – Type E

The contract unit price paid for "Induction Loop Detector - Type D" and "Induction Loop Detector - Type E" shall include full compensation for constructing Loop Detectors of the various types, as shown on the plans, and for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for performing all of the work involved in loop detector construction including loop, hot rubber sealant, home run, conduit of the various sizes, connection to pull box, and verification in the signal controller that the new detectors are working properly, as shown on the plans or as specified in the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Bid Item 18 – Striping – Remove Existing Thermoplastic

Bid Item 19 - Striping - Detail 38

Bid Item 20 - Striping - Detail 39

Bid Item 21 - Striping - Crosswalk and Stop Bar, 12-inch White

Bid Item 22 - Striping - Miscellaneous Legends

The contract price paid for the various striping items shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in constructing the improvements called for as shown on the plans including removal or grinding of existing striping where noted, cat-tracking, placement of thermoplastic, markings, markers, buttons, reflectors, glass beads, or other specified work in accordance with the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Removal of existing thermoplastic shall be paid by square foot. Lines shall be calculated as one-foot in width, times the length of line removed. Legends shall be calculated as the total area of the legend.

Detail 38, Detail 39, and 12-inch White shall be measured and paid per linear foot.

Miscellaneous legends shall be paid per square foot of actual thermoplastic area placed, in accordance with the square foot notations referenced for each detail in the Standard Plans.

Bid Item 23 - Striping - Curb Paint - Red

The contract price paid per linear foot for "Curb Paint - Red" shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in painting the top and face of curb with two coats of paint, including surface preparation, in accordance with the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

Bid Item 24 - Signpost (Breakaway style)

Bid Item 25 - Sign

Bid Item 26 - Install Salvaged Sign

The contract unit price paid for "Signpost", "Sign", and "Install Salvaged Sign" shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved complete in place, including excavation, backfill, sidewalk coring, concrete footings, posts, disposal of excess materials, and sign installation, in accordance with the contract documents, complete in place, and no additional compensation will be made.

SECTION 13 - GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

(SECTION 10)

13-01 GENERAL

All work shall conform to the applicable provisions of the State of California, Department of Transportation, Standard Plans and Specifications, current edition, the General, Special, and Technical Provisions, and the project plans.

13-02 SPECIFICATIONS

The current edition of the Town of Loomis Land Development Manual and Construction Standards, Special Provisions, Technical Specifications and the current edition of the Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications shall control all work to be done under this contract.

13-03 LICENSES

The Contractor and all of their subcontractors shall hold current licenses for the craft that they are contracting for, as required by State and Local laws. The Licenses must be in good standing without any official unresolved record of complaints registered or filed with the Board or California Department of Consumer Affairs.

The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall obtain a Town business license, the cost of which shall be included in their bid unit prices.

13-04 TIME OF COMPLEITON AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Time of Completion shall be as described in the Notice Inviting Bids. Liquidated damages shall be \$500 per calendar day, for each day following the expiration of the contract duration.

13-05 WORKING HOURS

General working hours within the public right of way are limited to between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday thru Friday, unless otherwise permitted by the Engineer. The following work hour restrictions also apply to lane closures.

13-06 ORDER OF WORK

Work at the intersection of Taylor Road and Horseshoe Bar Road shall be completed as the first item of work. The repairs will address an intersection ponding issue, and so there is a desire to complete the work before winter.

13-07 STAGING AREA

Material and equipment staging shall be limited to areas within the public right-of-way that can be safely utilized without unreasonable impact to the traveling public. All work areas shall be restored and available to the public at the end of each work-day.

13-08 SANITARY FACILITIES

The Contractor shall provide, secure, and maintain enclosed, portable restrooms for the use of personnel engaged in the work. These accommodations shall be maintained in a neat and sanitary condition, and shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations pertaining to public health and sanitation. The Contractor's proposed locations for restroom facilities shall be reviewed with the Engineer prior to delivery and placement of the restroom facility. Unless it is in an approved staging area, the Contractor shall remove all sanitary facilities from the project site at the end of each working day.

13-09 WATER AND POWER

The Contractor will be responsible for furnishing all water and power that may be necessary to complete the work.

13-10 CONSTRUCTION STAKING

The Contractor will be responsible for providing all construction staking that may be required for the project.

13-11 CLEANUP AND SAFETY

Cleanup includes finishing roadway work as described in Section 22, "Finishing Roadway" of the Standard Specifications and cleanup work for the whole project site.

The Contractor shall keep the site in a sanitary and neat condition each day during the project. The Contractor shall eliminate refuse from the site as necessary and when directed by the Town in order to avoid an unsightly appearance or inconvenience to others.

The Contractor shall remove and sweep all debris from sidewalks, curb and gutter by the end of each day. This includes staging sites of trucks and haul routes.

Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall remove from the site all unused materials and all equipment belonging to or used by Contractor and all rubbish resulting from Contractor's work on this project.

Contractor agrees to assume sole and complete responsibility for the job site during the course of construction of this project, including safety of all persons and property, that this requirement shall apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours, and that the Contractor shall hold the Town and Town representatives harmless from any and all liability in conjunction with the performance of the contractor's work.

13-12 DAMAGE REPAIR

The Contractor shall be responsible for the protection of public and private property adjacent to the work and shall exercise due caution to avoid damage to such property. The Contractor shall repair or replace all existing improvements within the right-of-way which are not designated for removal, but that are damaged or removed as a result of the Contractor's operations. Repairs and replacements shall be completed at the Contractor's expense and be at least equal to existing improvements, matching them in finish and dimension.

Attention is directed to Section 5-1.39, "Damage Repair and Restoration," of the Standard Specifications.

13-13 PROGRESS SCHEDULE

Progress schedules will be required for this contract and shall conform to the provisions in Section 8, "Prosecution and Progress" of the Standard Specifications.

A project schedule detailing the work and street location of the work shall be submitted to the Engineer for review at the pre-construction meeting. Any changes to the reviewed schedule shall require a revised schedule to be resubmitted to the Engineer for review prior to commencing work for the following week.

Work shall be scheduled and coordinated in such a way that will not impact garbage collection. Contractor shall provide the garbage company with a copy of the draft schedule for potential feedback and suggested scheduling modifications.

13-14 NOTIFICATIONS

The Contractor shall mail notification, seven (7) calendar days in advance, to all property owners, businesses, tenants, residents, and potentially impacted parties within the work area advising them of the pending construction.

Contractor shall submit a draft notification letter at the preconstruction meeting, for the Town to review and approve prior to distributing. The letter shall include a description of the work being performed, the Contractor's schedule, contact names and phone numbers. Upon completing the notification distribution, the Contractor shall provide written notice, to the Town, that the task has been completed.

In addition, the Contractor shall coordinate with any directly affected utility companies or service providers prior to the start of work. An example list of agencies includes (although there may be others):

Pacific Gas & Electric Sprint/ATT

Comcast Republic Services
US Post Office Local Police Authorities

Police and Fire All affected businesses / residents

13-15 MEETINGS

<u>Pre-Construction Conference</u>: A Pre-construction Conference will be scheduled within five (5) working days of the contract's execution. The conference will address administrative items, the scope of work, the Contractor's proposed construction schedule and sequencing. At the Pre-construction conference the Contractor shall provide the following items:

- The proposed schedule (showing durations for each project area)
- Typical work area and lane closure traffic control plans
- Contact information, including after-hours and emergency response staff contact names and phone numbers.
- Draft notification flyer

The meeting shall be attended by the Contractor's project manager and field superintendent along with the Town's project manager and inspector.

<u>Periodic Construction Meetings:</u> While weekly construction progress meetings are not anticipated, additional meetings may be held at a date and time mutually satisfactory to the Contractor and the Town's Representative.

13-16 PAYMENT AND WORK NOT INCLUDED

The Town reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantities of work included in the Bid Schedule or to delete an entire bid item from the bid schedule, either before execution of the agreement or during the agreement term.

During the life of the contract, the Town may request that the Contractor perform work not listed in the Bid Schedule. Compensation for these activities shall be negotiated under a written change order before the additional services are performed.

13-17 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

Full compensation for all items mentioned in this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various items of work involved for which there are bid items, and no additional compensation will be made.

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

SECTION 14 - TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL (SECTION 12)

14-01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Traffic control shall conform to the latest edition of "California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" issued by Caltrans, or State Standard Plan T13, "Traffic Control System for Lane Closure on Two Lane Conventional Highways." Any deviation in traffic control from the references mentioned above will not be allowed unless advance written approval is granted by the Engineer.

Attention is directed to Sections 7-1.03, "Public Convenience," 7-1.04, "Public Safety," and 12, "Temporary Traffic Control," of the Standard Specifications and to the section entitled, "Public Safety," elsewhere in these Special Provisions. Nothing in these Special Provisions shall be construed as relieving the Contractor from his responsibility as provided in said Sections.

The Contractor shall submit traffic control plans to the Engineer for review at the preconstruction meeting prior to performing any work affecting vehicular and pedestrian traffic. The traffic control plan established by the Contractor shall be in conformance with the California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices and be prepared by a licensed engineer.

Minor deviations from the traffic requirements of this section, which do not significantly change the cost of the work, may be permitted upon the written request of the Contractor, if in the opinion of the Engineer public traffic will be better served and work expedited. Such deviations shall not be adopted until the Engineer has indicated his written approval. All other modifications will be made by contract change order.

Contractor shall provide all markers, signs, delineators, barricades, No Parking signs, portable flashing beacons, flaggers, etc. necessary to ensure the safe passage of traffic through the work zone.

All members of the Contractor's work force shall wear high-visibility safety clothing while working in the public right-of-way. The Contractor shall hold weekly safety meetings on the job site and provide the Town with the minutes of those meetings.

Personal vehicles of the Contractor's employees shall not be parked on the traveled way.

14-02 LANE CLOSURE RESTRICTION

The Contractor shall maintain a minimum of one (1) lane of traffic in each direction of travel, open at all times in accordance with the hours of work specified in Section 10, "General Construction". The minimum width of a temporary traffic lane shall be ten (10) feet. Flashing Arrow Boards shall be required for all lane closures.

14-03 MAINTAINING ACCESS, PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND TRAFFIC CONTROL

The Contractor will be responsible for the safe temporary routing of vehicular and pedestrian traffic within the project area. Pedestrian access to businesses shall be maintained at all times.

The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for approval the Traffic Control Plan at the pre-construction conference. The Traffic Control Plan shall conform to most current California Manual of Uniform Traffic

Control Devises and State Standard Plans. The Traffic Control Plan shall address the following and other concerns as applicable.

- A. If necessary, the Contractor shall provide enhanced traffic control measures, which include "No Parking" barricades. "No Parking" barricades shall be posted at least 72-hours (excluding weekends and holidays) prior to street work. Unless approved otherwise by the Engineer, "No Parking" barricades shall be placed at a maximum spacing 100'.
- B. Parking may be temporarily prohibited in areas where the temporary traffic lane is shifted into the parking spaces. The Contractor shall post "No Parking" signs with days affected at least three (3) days prior to the closing of street parking. The parking spaces shall be immediately available after removal of the traffic control.
- C. The Contractor shall maintain all existing pedestrian walkways and crosswalks throughout the project limits or provide acceptable temporary pedestrian facilities through the construction zones. The location and details for such temporary facilities shall be submitted with the Traffic Control Plan to the Engineer for approval.
- D. The Contractor shall maintain pedestrian and vehicular access to all properties fronting the project. In the event of a planned driveway access disruption, the Contractor shall notify the property owner or tenant in writing three (3) working days prior to the closure, specifying the date and time of closure, including the start and finish times.
- E. Complete street closure shall not be permitted. The Contractor shall submit a traffic control plan at the preconstruction conference for the Town Engineer's approval. The contractor's traffic control plan shall indicate requested lane closures including duration and detour.
- F. The minimum width of a traffic lane shall be ten (10) feet. Flashing Arrow Boards shall be required for all lane closures.
- G. Traffic Control Plans shall be as per Caltrans standards and shall address among other things, lane closures, material and equipment storage, maintaining of bus stops, accommodating garbage pick-up and street sweeping schedules, maintaining of vehicle and pedestrian access and hall routes. Haul route permits shall be approved by the Town.
- H. The Contractor shall provide appropriate flag persons for traffic control on all streets to allow for the safe passage of vehicles and pedestrians for the duration of construction period.
- The Contractor shall not place traffic signals in flashing red operation without prior approval from the Town.

The Contractor shall provide flaggers and shall provide and maintain such fences, barriers, signs, guardrails, red lights, and other safety devices adjacent to and on the site at or near all barriers as may be necessary to control traffic and prevent accidents to the public. The Contractor shall furnish, place and maintain such lights as may be necessary for illuminating the said signs and fences. Signs, flags, lights and other warning and safety devices shall conform to the requirements set forth in the current California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CMUTCD), issued by the State of California Department of Transportation.

14-04 PROPERTY ACCESS REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor shall maintain property access to all businesses at all times unless otherwise approved by the Engineer. Upon approval by the Engineer, access to certain properties may be temporarily closed if all of the following conditions can be met:

A. No options exist to maintain property access and complete the project.

- B. Contractor has discussed the closure with the business owner in person.
- C. Business owners has been notified, in writing, at least eight (8) calendar days in advance of the time and length of closure.
- D. Businesses owners have been reminded of the closure, in writing, at least two (2) working days prior to the actual closure.
- E. Contractor has provided business with a contractor name and number to call with questions regarding the closure.

14-05 TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEM

If any component in the traffic control system is displaced, or ceases to operate or function as specified, from any cause, during the progress of the work, the Contractor shall immediately repair said component to its original condition or replace said component and shall restore the component to its original location. During the hours of darkness, as defined in Division 1, Section 289, of the Vehicle Code, portable signs to be illuminated shall be, at the option of the Contractor, either: Illuminated signs in conformance with the provisions in Section 12-3.06B(3), "Portable Signs," of the Standard Specifications; or Reflexite vinyl microprism reflective sheeting signs; or 3M high intensity reflectorized sheeting on aluminum substrate signs or Seibulite Brand Ultralite Grade Series, encapsulated lens retro-reflective sheeting signs; or approved equal.

The Traffic Control System shall be placed, maintained and removed under the direct supervision of a person who is certified by either the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), the American Traffic Safety Services Association (ATSSA), the International Municipal Signal Association (IMSA) or the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) as having successfully completed training in the design and operation of work zone traffic control.

The Contractor shall designate in writing the person who shall have the responsibility for supervising the activities associated with the Traffic Control System. Traffic Control System Plan as per Section 7-13 Public Safety, along with proof of certification, shall be submitted in writing at the Preconstruction meeting to the Engineer for approval. Any changes to plan, shall be provided to the Engineer for his approval, five (5) working days in advance of any planned activity, which requires traffic control. The person designated shall have the authority to stop the work if necessary.

Failure of the designated person to be present at the job site when any part of the Traffic Control is in place shall be considered a failure on the part of Contractor to perform a provision of the contract. The Engineer shall, in accordance with Section 12-4.03, "Closure Schedule and Conditions" of the Standard Specification, suspend all work until such time satisfactory arrangements have been made to have a certified person on the job site at all times when the Traffic Control System is in place.

14-06 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT DELINEATION

Temporary pavement delineation shall be furnished, placed, maintained and removed in conformance with the provisions in Section 12-1.01, "General," of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions. Nothing in these special provisions shall be construed as reducing the minimum standards specified in the California MUTCD or as relieving the Contractor from his responsibility as provided in Section 7-1.04, "Public Safety," of the Standard Specifications.

General

Whenever the work causes obliteration of pavement delineation, temporary or permanent pavement delineation shall be in place prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic. Lane line or centerline pavement delineation shall be provided at all times for traveled ways open to public traffic.

Work necessary, including required lines or marks, to establish the alignment of temporary pavement

delineation shall be performed by the Contractor. Surfaces to receive temporary pavement delineation shall be dry and free of dirt and loose material. Temporary pavement delineation shall not be applied over existing pavement delineation or other temporary pavement delineation. Temporary pavement delineation shall be maintained until superseded or replaced with a new pattern of temporary pavement delineation or permanent pavement delineation.

Temporary pavement markers and removable traffic type tape which conflicts with a new traffic pattern or which is applied to the final layer of surfacing or existing pavement to remain in place shall be removed when no longer required for the direction of public traffic, as determined by the Engineer.

Temporary STOP Signs and Limit Lines

Stop location where the stop legend and stop bar are no longer visible will require the placement of temporary STOP signs mounted on Type II barricades along with either a minimum of 5 white floppies to delineate the stop bar, or temporary reflective white tape if the surface has been milled and floppies won't stick.

The STOP sign shall either be a reflective metal sign, or if printed on paper, then flashing (illuminated) beacons shall be attached to the top of the Type II barricade for night time visibility.

Temporary Lane Line, Centerline, and Edgeline Delineation

Whenever lane lines and centerlines are obliterated the minimum lane line and centerline delineation to be provided shall be temporary reflective raised pavement markers placed at longitudinal intervals of not more than 20 feet. The temporary reflective raised pavement markers shall be the same color as the lane line or centerline the markers replace. Temporary reflective raised pavement markers shall be, at the option of the Contractor, one of the temporary pavement markers listed for short term day/night use (14 days or less) or long-term day/night use (6 months or less) in "Approved Traffic Products" of the Standard Plans and Standard Specifications.

Temporary reflective raised pavement markers shall be placed in conformance with the manufacturer's instructions and shall be cemented to the surfacing with the adhesive recommended by the manufacturer, except epoxy adhesive shall not be used to place pavement markers in areas where removal of the markers will be required.

Removal of Temporary Pavement Markers Prior to Surface Treatment

Temporary lane line or centerline delineation consisting of entirely of temporary reflective raised pavement markers placed on longitudinal intervals of not more than 20 feet shall be used on lanes opened to public traffic for a maximum of 14 days. Prior to the end of the 14 days the permanent pavement delineation shall be placed. If the permanent pavement delineation is not placed within the 14 days, the Contractor shall provide, at the Contractor's expense, additional temporary pavement delineation. The additional temporary pavement delineation to be provided shall be equivalent to the pattern specified for the permanent pavement delineation for the area, as determined by the Engineer.

Measurement and Payment

Full compensation for all items mentioned in this section shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various items of work involved for which there are bid items, and no additional compensation will be made.

SECTION 15 – EARTHWORK

(SECTION 19)

Earthwork shall conform to the provisions in Section 19, "Earthwork," of the Standard Specifications, these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

We do not expect the Contractor to encounter hazardous waste material. However, should any suspicious material be encountered in the work, the Contractor shall immediately stop work at these locations, and report his finding to the Town who will in turn report the information to the Regional Water Quality Control Board and the Department of Toxic Substance Control for further guidance.

15-01 ROADWAY EXCAVATION

Roadway excavation shall include excavation and removal of all soil, concrete, asphalt concrete, base rock or other native material within the limits of the work to be performed.

All excavated material shall become property of the Contractor and be removed from the project site locations. All excavated material shall be disposed of outside the highway right-of-way as required in Section 19-2.03B of the Standard Specifications.

The depth of excavation shall be to the lines and grades shown on the plans or as necessary to complete the project improvements. If base is excavated beyond the specified plane, the Contractor shall replace it with HMA at the Contractor's expense.

15-02 STRUCTURE EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL

Structure excavation and backfill shall conform to Section 19-3, "Structure Excavation and Backfill," of the Standard Specifications. Backfill for inlets and manholes shall be Class 2 Aggregate Base, 3/4 inch maximum.

15-03 PREPARATION OF EXISTING SUBGRADE

Compaction of existing subgrade material shall conform to Section 19-5, "Compaction," of the Standard Specifications. The existing subgrade material shall be watered to obtain optimum moisture content and compacted to a relative compaction of not less than 95 percent for a depth of 6" below top of subgrade. Subgrade shall be graded to within 0.05' of the grade established by the Engineer.

15-04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

The Contractor is referred to Special Provisions Section 12, "Bid Item Descriptions" for measurement and payment.

SECTION 16 – CLEARING AND GRUBBING

(SECTION 16)

16-01 DESCRIPTION

This work shall be done in accordance with Section 17-2, "Clearing and Grubbing," of the Standard Specifications, these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

This work includes, but is not limited to: clearing, grubbing, demolition, removal of all objectionable material such as debris, brick, trees (including stumps and roots), and disposal of material at the end of each working day from within the specified work area as shown on the plans and as specified herein.

Vegetation shall be cleared and grubbed only within the excavation and embankment slope lines. Existing vegetation outside the areas to be cleared and grubbed shall be protected from injury or damage resulting from the Contractor's operations.

Activities controlled by the Contractor, except cleanup or other required work, shall be confined within the graded areas of the roadway.

Nothing herein shall be construed as relieving the Contractor of the Contractor's responsibility for final cleanup of the highway as provided in Section 4-1.13, "Cleanup," of the Standard Specifications. All tree and stump removal shall be approved by the Engineer. Roots 1/2 inch diameter and larger shall be removed 2 feet below existing ground surface. Fill all stump and root holes and excavations with on-site soil and compact to a minimum of 90% relative compaction.

16-02 PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY

Contractor's attention is directed to Standard Specifications Section 5-1.36, "Property and Facility Preservation." Protect existing improvements to remain in place including utilities, vegetation, irrigation, curbs, paving and drainage facilities. Repair, replace, or restore any damaged items as required and directed.

All existing private improvements, such as irrigation, landscaping, etc., that conflict with the new improvements shall be removed and restored to original or better condition in new locations as approved in advance by the Engineer.

16-03 REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF MATERIALS

All excavated material shall become property of the Contractor and be removed from the project site locations. All excavated material shall be disposed of outside the highway right-of-way as required in Section 19-2.03B of the Standard Specifications.

The depth of excavation shall be to the lines and grades shown on the plans or as necessary to complete the project improvements. If material is excavated beyond the required plane, the Contractor shall replace it with suitable material at the Contractor's expense.

16-04 EXISTING TREES

This project includes work on streets with mature trees adjacent to the roadway. In some locations, the tree canopy may extend over the roadway. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to conduct his/her operations near tree canopies such that the work accomplished without damage to trees. The Contractor may, at his/her option, trim said trees in order to facilitate his/her construction operations. Any trimming that may be required must be approved at least two (2) working days in advance by the Engineer.

Tree trimming shall be approved and supervised by a certified arborist and done in accordance with "Pruning Standards," published by the Western Chapter of the International Society of Arboriculture.

16-05 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

The Contractor is referred to Special Provisions Section 12, "Bid Item Descriptions" for measurement and payment.

SECTION 17 – CONCRETE CURBS, GUTTERS, CURB RAMPS, DRIVEWAYS AND SIDEWALKS

(SECTIONS 73 and 90)

17-01 GENERAL

Curbs, gutters, curb ramps, driveways, and sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with Section 73, "Concrete Curbs and Sidewalks" and Section 90, "Concrete" of the Standard Specifications and as modified in these Special Provisions.

17-02 MATERIAL

Portland Cement

Portland cement concrete used for all concrete structures shall be Minor Concrete in accordance with Section 90, "Concrete" of the Standard Specifications and in accordance with these Special Provisions.

Lamp Black

Concrete placed in curb, gutter and sidewalks (but not medians) shall contain a coloring compound equivalent to 1/4 pound of lampblack per cubic yard, added to the concrete at the central mixing plant.

Base Rock

Class 2 aggregate base shall be used under the concrete improvements, where noted or called out on the plans. In areas that contain the required amount of exiting base rock, or under existing (non-structural) sidewalk that is being removed and replaced, existing material can be recompacted.

Dowels

Steel bars of the size or sizes called for on the plans conforming to the requirements of ASTM Designation A615 for Grade 60 bars shall be used when tying into existing concrete. Dowels shall be installed 30-inches on center and be at least 6-inches from the edge of concrete. A minimum of two dowels shall be used within curb and gutter and within sidewalks.

Expansion Joint Material

Material for expansion joints in Portland cement concrete improvements shall be a pre-molded expansion joint fillers of the thickness called for on the plans and conforming to the requirements of ASTM Designation D1751. Expansion joint material shall be shaped to fit the cross section of the concrete prior to being placed and extend all the way down to the base material.

Slip Dowels

Slip dowels, where noted or called for on the plans or detail drawings shall be smooth billet-steel bars as designated and conforming to the requirements of ASTM Designation A615 for Grade 60 bars. Ends of bars inserted in new work shall be covered with a cardboard tube sealed with cork; no grease or oil will be used.

Mesh

Welded wire mesh fabric, where specified for reinforcement of concrete improvements, shall be cold drawn steel wire mesh of the size and spacing called for on the plans conforming to the requirements of ASTM Designation A82 for the material and ASTM Designation A185 for the mesh. Tie wire for reinforcement shall be eighteen (18) gauge or heavier black annealed conforming to the requirements of ASTM Designation A82.

Curing Compoud

All concrete shall be cured by the curing compound method. The curing compound shall be the clear or translucent type containing a fugitive dye conforming to the requirements of ASTM Designation: C 309, Type I-D, Class A. The loss of water when tested in accordance with California Test 534, shall not be more than 0.03 lb/ft2 (0.15 kg/m2) in 24 hours nor more than 0.09 lb/ft2 (0.45 kg/m2) in 72 hours.

17-03 EXECUTION

Existing asphalt concrete pavement adjacent to the curb & gutter, and in some locations along the back of walk, shall be removed and replaced as required in Section SP-20 "Hot Mix Asphalt" of these Technical Provisions.

Curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveways, curb ramps, and other concrete improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the project details included in the plans, or in accordance with Town Standard Details.

Concrete work shall be completed to have a transverse medium broom finish.

The curing compound shall be applied at the approximate rate of one gallon per 150 square feet of area. The curing compound shall be applied in a manner that will provide a complete coating of all exposed faces of the concrete surface.

Utility Box Adjustment

For all utility box adjustments, the top surface of the adjusted facility shall be within 1/8 inch of the adjacent finished grade.

When resetting meter boxes and pull boxes, contractor shall remove and replace surrounding concrete to the nearest sidewalk joint or score line (not the joint created solely for the pull box).

Prior to beginning work, existing conduits shall be duct sealed to prevent debris from entering. Contractor shall remove all debris that enters conduit during Contractor's work.

Detectable Warning Surface

Detectable warning surface shall be in the form of tiles manufactured from a fiberglass reinforced ultraviolet stabilized polymer composite. The tiles shall be replaceable with removable nylon anchors attached with tamper-proof, stainless-steel fasteners.

Detectable warning surface tiles shall conform to the requirements established by the Department of General Services, Division of State Architect and incorporate an in-line pattern of truncated domes measuring nominal 0.2" in height, 0.90" base diameter, and 0.45" top diameter, and spaced center-to-center 2.35" as measured side by side. The field area shall consist of a high density, pyramid micro texture of raised points 0.05" high. Anchors shall have a minimum spacing of 12-inches.

Detectable warning surface tiles shall be: Federal Yellow.

Color shall be homogeneous throughout the tile.

Detectable warning surface tiles shall be configured such that the required area is covered by no more than two tiles to conform to the dimensions as shown on the plans, and as directed by the Engineer. If multiple detectable warning surface tiles are used, joints shall be centered in the curb ramp or as approved by the Engineer.

Detectable warning surface tiles shall conform to the following ASTM specifications:

ASTM D 695 Compressive Strength Not less than 25,000 psi

ASTM D 790 Flexural Strength Not less than 30,000

ASTM D 570 Water Absorption 0.05%

ASTM C 1028 Slip Resistance 0.8 wet/dry

ASTM E 84 Flame Spread Index ≤25

ASTM B 117 Salt Spray No Change (300 hours)

ASTM 1308 Chemical Stain No Effect

ASTM C 501 Abrasion Resistance Lw>500

ASTM G 155 Accelerated Weathering Delta E<5 (2,000 hours)

ASTM D 638 Tensile Strength 12,500 psi

AASHTO-H20 Load Bearing at 10,410 lbs. No Cracking, Delamination or Deformation ASTM C 1026 Freeze/Thaw/Heat No Chipping, Cracking or Peeling ASTM D 1037 Accelerated Aging [Freeze/Thaw] No Change in Color, Gloss or Delamination ASTM D 696-03 Linear Thermal Expansion 9.45 x 10 -7 per degree Fahrenheit

Detectable warning surface tiles shall be suitably packaged or crated to prevent damage in shipment or handling. Finished surfaces shall be protected by sturdy plastic wrappings to protect tile from concrete residue during installation and tile type shall be identified by part number. Protective plastic wrapping shall be removed within 24-hours after tiles are installed.

Installation of cast-in-place detectable warning surface shall comply with the manufacturer's recommendations. Installation of surface applied detectable warning surface shall not be allowed. Detectable warning surface tiles shall be warranted in writing for a period of five (5) years from date of final completion. The guarantee shall include defective work, breakage, deformation, fading and loosening of tiles.

Path of Travel

The Contractor shall provide a smooth path of travel for pedestrians at all times.

USA Marking Removal

The Contractor shall remove all USA markings, Engineer markings, and Surveyor markings (created for the purpose of the work being done) when work in a particular area is complete by water blasting or other non-destructive method as approved by the Engineer. Sandblasting or grinding to remove markings will not be allowed.

Payment for removing USA painted markings shall be considered as included in the cost of the various items of work shown on the Bid Proposal and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor.

17-04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

The Contractor is referred to Special Provisions Section 12, "Bid Item Descriptions" for measurement and payment.

SECTION 18 - COLD PLANING

(SECTION 42)

18-01 GENERAL

Cold planing shall include all work necessary to remove existing asphalt and/or concrete pavement to a predetermined depth as indicated on the drawings. The work includes, but is not limited to, removal of the existing pavement adjacent to or on top of gutters, cross gutters, ends of overlays, equipment crossings, railroad crossings, and bridge approaches.

Existing pavement surface on roadways to be milled prior to pavement inlay shall be cold planed as specified herein.

18-02 EQUIPMENT

The machine used for planing shall have performed satisfactorily on similar work and shall meet the following requirements:

The planing machine shall be specifically designed and built for the planing of bituminous pavements without the addition of heat. It shall have the ability to plane portland cement concrete patches in the bituminous pavement, or portland cement concrete pavements. The cutting drum shall be a minimum of sixty inches wide and shall be equipped with carbide tipped cutting teeth placed in a variable lacing pattern to produce the desired finish.

The machine shall be capable of being operated at speeds of zero to forty feet per minute, it shall be self-propelled, and have the capability of spraying water at the cutting drum to minimize dust. The machine shall be operated in such a way so that no fumes or smoke will be produced. The machine shall be capable of removing the paving material next to curbs or gutters and be designed such that the operator thereof can at all times observe the planing operation without leaving the controls. The machine shall be adjustable for slope and depth and shall be equipped with sonic sensing devices for controlling depth.

18-03 CONSTRUCTION

18-03A General

Limits of cold planing will be marked in the field by the Engineer prior to construction. The depths and dimensions of the cold planing are designated on the plans. Cold planing may be used for removal of existing pavement under bid items for "Remove & Replace".

Cold planing may require removal of existing asphalt concrete above gutter lips, in addition to the required depth below the gutter lip, due to prior overlays. Such work, if necessary, will be paid by change order.

Pavement conform grinds and wedge grinds shall not be allowed more than 5 working days prior to schedule overlay operations without written authorization from the Engineer.

Pavement to be cold planed may contain pavement fabric. For bidding purposes, it should be assumed that all existing roadway sections to be repaired contain road paving fabric. All costs associated with grinding, removing, and disposing of AC with road paving fabric shall be borne by the Contractor.

Cold planing operation will not commence until a sweeper is on site.

Pavement, base and/or native material removal associated with "Remove & Replace HMA" shall be replaced the same day as the removal.

18-03B Lowering Utility Covers

Prior to cold planing on streets to have a uniform depth of the existing surface removed, all utility covers shall be lowered such that the cutting teeth of the planing machine passes over the adjusted lid without causing damage to the lid or frame. Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining any temporary asphalt fill material over these facilities until the final paving surface is installed.

Work by the Contractor shall include locating, referencing, and setting sufficient marks prior to adjusting facilities to enable their subsequent location and adjustment by the Contractor.

18-03C Pavement Removal

All pavement areas called out for removal and replacement shall be cold planed to the dimensions indicated on the plans, or as directed by the Engineer. Pavement against curb faces shall be removed to the full depth designated for that particular section of roadway. If pavement against curb faces cannot be removed by the planing machine, the Contractor shall use other means to remove this material. All pavement areas removed shall be restored within five (5) working days of removal. This includes pavement removal for Keycuts. Pavement removal associated with Remove & Replace HMA of the various depths shall be replaced the same day.

18-03D Temporary Striping

Streets to be milled shall be temporarily striped after completion of cold planing prior to pavement resurfacing work. Temporary striping shall consist of paint or reflective traffic striping tape by 3M (or equal) and shall be continuously maintained by the Contractor until resurfacing work is performed. Temporary striping will be placed to delineate lane lines, center lines, crosswalks, and other traffic striping legends. "Floppies" or other devices secured via adhesive will not be allowed, as the grooves of the milled roadway do not provide an adequate surface for adhesion.

18-03E Tolerances

The pavement surface after cold planing shall be uniformly rough. The grade shall not deviate from a suitable straight edge more than 1/4 inch at any point. When multiple passes are required to create the cold planed surface, the maximum variation from a stringline or straight edge shall be 1/4 inch high to 1/2 inch low. High points out of tolerance shall be replaned to fall within tolerance. Low areas shall be filled with asphalt concrete as specified herein to meet tolerances. The cost of such correction of low areas shall be entirely borne by the Contractor.

18-03F Removal and Disposal of Material

During the cold planing operation, the Contractor shall sweep the roadway with mechanical equipment and remove all loosened material from the project site until completion of the removal work.

The Town wishes to use the grindings from the dig out operations as shoulder backing. Contractor shall deliver and dump grindings to the designated location for Town crews to spread.

In addition to removing the cold planed asphalt concrete, the Contractor shall remove any asphalt concrete which is adhered to the top of the adjacent gutter, cross gutter, or apron.

18-03G Air Pollution Control

The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to avoid the dispersion of dust. Attention is directed to Subsection 14-9.02 of the Standard Specifications.

18-03H Temporary Transitions

The Contractor shall construct temporary pavement transitions prior to allowing traffic onto cold planed pavement areas. Such transitions shall have a maximum slope of 20:1 and be constructed on kraft paper or other suitable bond breaker such that upon removal of the transition a clean notch remains. Temporary transitions are required along all planed edges at existing or new handicap access ramps. Temporary transitions shall also be provided along all planed edges with a drop off greater than 2" in depth at all paving conforms, cross gutters, and commercial and residential driveways.

18-03l Correction of Tear Out Areas

If tear-out to the remaining, underlying layers occurs during the cold planing operation, the Contractor shall adjust his operation to minimize tear-out. Corrections shall include changing operation speed and replacing cutting teeth. Changes in cold planing depth shall only be made with approval of the Engineer.

Areas torn out by lack of diligence on the Contractors part shall be corrected by placement of asphalt concrete conforming to the requirements of these Technical Provisions. Areas torn out due to pre-existing adhesion problems in the existing asphalt concrete shall be corrected at the Town's expense as directed by the Engineer.

18-04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

The Contractor is referred to Special Provisions Section 12, "Bid Item Descriptions" for measurement and payment.

SECTION SP-19 LOOP DETECTORS

(SECTION 86)

19-01 GENERAL

Work covered by this section includes replacement of loop detectors and home runs damaged by construction and connecting them to the pull box as shown on the plans and as described in these specifications. Loop Detectors and conduit shall conform to Section 86 of the Revised Standard Specifications, and these Special Provisions.

Loop Detectors shall be installed below the final lift of Type A Hot Mix Asphalt.

19-02 MATERIAL

Loop detectors shall match the existing detectors and conduit (1" - 2") shall conform to the provisions in Section 86 "General" of the Revised Standard Specifications and the details shown in the Standard Plan Nos. RSP ES-5A, RSP ES-5B, and RSP ES-5D (Type A "Curb Termination Detail"), included in the Appendix of the State Standard Plans.

Conduit:

All conduit to be installed underground shall be the rigid steel or non-metallic type.

A pull rope shall be installed in all new conduits. The pull ropes shall be nylon or polypropylene with a minimum tensile strength of 2225N. At least 2 feet of pull rope shall be double backed into the conduit at each termination.

Insulated bonding bushings will be required on metal conduit.

After conductors have been installed, the ends of conduits terminating in pull boxes shall be sealed with an approved type of sealing compound.

86-1.02F(2)(c)(iii) Inductive Loop Conductors

An inductive loop conductor must comply with the requirements shown below.

Type 1 Loop Wire - Type RHW-USE neoprene-jacketed or Type USE cross-linked polyethylene, insulated, no. 12, stranded copper wire with a minimum 40-mils insulation thickness at any point.

Type 2 Loop Wire - Type THWN or Type XHHW, no. 14, stranded copper wire in a plastic tubing. The plastic tubing must be polyethylene or vinyl rated for use at 105 degrees C and resistant to oil and gasoline. The outside diameter of the tubing must be at most 0.27 inch with a wall thickness of at least 0.028 inch.

86-1.02F(3)(d)(iii) Detector Lead-in Cables

Conductors for a loop detector lead-in cable must be two no. 16, 19-by-29, stranded, tinned copper wires with calculated cross-sectional areas complying with ASTM B286, Table 1 and the requirements shown below.

Type B Lead-in Cable - Insulated with 20 mils of high-density polyethylene. Conductors must be twisted together with at least 2 turns per foot, and the twisted pair must be protected with a copper or aluminum polyester shield. A minimum no. 20 copper drain wire must be connected to the equipment ground within the cabinet. Cable must have a high-density polyethylene or high-density polypropylene outer jacket with a nominal thickness of 32 mils. Include an amorphous, interior, moisture penetration barrier of nonhydroscopic polyethylene or polypropylene fillers.

Type C Lead-in Cable - Comply with International Municipal Signal Association Specification no. 50-2. A minimum no. 20 copper drain wire must be connected to the equipment ground within the cabinet.

86-1.02W Loop Detector Sealants

86-1.02W(1) General

Sealant for filling loop detector slots must be one of the following:

- 1. Asphaltic emulsion
- 2. Elastomeric sealant
- 3. Epoxy sealant for inductive loops
- 4. Hot-melt rubberized asphalt

86-1.02W(2) Asphaltic Emulsion Sealant

Asphaltic emulsion sealant must comply with the State Specification 8040-41A-15.

86-1.02W(3) Elastomeric Sealant

Elastomeric sealant must be a polyurethane material that cures only in the presence of moisture if used within the stated shelf life. The sealant must be suitable for use in both asphalt concrete and concrete pavement.

The cured elastomeric sealant must comply with the requirements shown in the following table:

Cured Elastomeric Sealant Requirements

Quality characteristic	Test method	Requirement
Hardness	ASTM D2240a	65–85
Tensile strength (min, MPa)	ASTM D412 ^b	3.45
Elongation (min, %)	ASTM D412	400
Flex at -40 °Cc		No cracks
Weathering resistance	ASTM D822 ^d	Slight chalking
Salt spray resistance:		
Tensile strength (min, MPa)	ASTM B117 ^e	3.45
Elongation (min, %)		400
Dielectric constant (%)	ASTM D150 ^f	<25

^aIndentation at 25 °C and 50% relative humidity (Rex. Type A, Model 1700 only)

86-1.02W(4) Hot-Melt Rubberized Asphalt Sealant

Hot-melt rubberized asphalt sealant must:

- 1. Be in solid form at room temperature and fluid at an application temperature range of 190 to 205 °C
- 2. Not produce toxic fumes
- 3. Be suitable for use in both asphalt concrete and concrete pavement
- 4. Be packaged in containers clearly marked *Detector Loop Sealant* with the manufacturer's batch and lot number.

The cured hot-melt rubberized asphalt sealant must comply with the requirements shown in the following table:

^bDie C pulled at 508 mm/minute

^{°0.6-}mm free film bend (180°) over 13-mm mandrel

^dWeatherometer 350 h, cured 7 days at 25 °C and 50% relative humidity

e28 days at 38 °C with 5% NaCl, Die C, and pulled at 508 mm/minute)

^fChange over a temperature range from -30 to 50 °C

Cured Hot-Melt Rubberized Asphalt Sealant Requirements

Quality characteristic	Test method	Requirement
Cone penetration (max, 1/10 mm)	ASTM D5329, sec. 6 ^a	35
Flow (max, mm)	ASTM D5329, sec. 8 ^b	5
Resilience (min, %)	ASTM D5329, sec. 12 ^c	25
Softening point (min, °C)	ASTM D36	82
Ductility (min, em)	ASTM D113 ^d	30
Flash point, Cleveland Open Cup (min, °C)	ASTM D92	288
Viscosity (Pa·s)	ASTM D4402 ^e	2.5-3.5

^aAt 25 °C, 150 g, 5 s

87-1.03F(2)(c)(ii) Detector Lead-in Cables

Install a Type B or C detector lead-in cable in conduit.

Waterproof the ends of the lead-in cable before installing it in the conduit to prevent moisture from entering the cable.

Splice loop conductors for each direction of travel for the same phase, terminating in the same pull box, to a separate lead-in cable running from the pull box adjacent to the loop detector to a sensor unit mounted in the controller cabinet. Install the lead-in cable without splices except at the pull box when connecting to loop wire.

Verify in the presence of the Engineer that the loops are operational before making the final splices between loop conductors and the lead-in cable.

Identify and tag each lead-in cable with the detector designation at the cabinet and pull box adjacent to the loops.

87-1.03F(3)(c)(ii) Inductive Loop Conductors

Install a Type 1 or 2 inductive loop conductor except use Type 2 for Type E loop detectors.

Install the conductor without splices except at the pull box.

19-03 CONSTRUCTION

Install loop conductors before placing the uppermost layer of HMA. Install conductors in a compacted layer of HMA immediately below the uppermost layer. Install conductors as shown, and fill the slot with a sealant flush to the layer surface. Loop detectors must be connected to the pull boxes.

Loop detector replacement construction shall be coordinated such that the amount of time when there are no active loops is as short as possible. The Contractor shall restore Traffic Signal loop detectors within four (4) days after initial cut with pavement milling operation.

87-1.03V Detectors

87-1.03V(1) General

Installing a detector includes installing inductive loop conductors, sealant, conduit, and pull boxes.

Center the detectors in the traffic lanes.

Do not splice the detector conductor.

87-1.03V(2) Inductive Loop Detectors

bAt 60 °C

cAt 25 °C

^dAt 25 °C, 5 cm/minute

^eBrookfield Thermosel, no. 27 spindle, 20 rpm, 190 °C

Mark the location of the inductive loop detectors such that the distance between the side of the loop and a lead-in saw cut from an adjacent detector is at least 2 feet. The distance between lead-in saw cuts must be at least 6 inches.

Saw cut the slots under section 13-4.03E(7). The bottoms of the slots must be smooth with no sharp edges. For Type E detector loops, saw the slots such that the sides are vertical.

Wash the slots clean using water and blow dry them with compressed air to remove all moisture and debris.

Identify the start of the conductor.

Waterproof the ends of a Type 2 loop conductor before installing it in the conduit to prevent moisture from entering the cable.

Install the loop conductor in the slots and lead-in saw cuts using a 3/16- to 1/4-inch-thick wood paddle. Hold the conductors in place at the bottom of the slot with wood paddles during placement of the sealant.

Wind adjacent loops on the same sensor unit channel in opposite directions.

Twist the conductors for each loop into a pair consisting of a minimum of 2 turns per foot before placing them in the lead-in saw cut and the conduit leading to the pull box. Do not install more than 2 twisted pairs of conductors per lead-in saw cut.

Provide 5 feet of slack in the pull box.

Test each loop for continuity, circuit resistance, and insulation resistance before filling the slots with sealant.

Remove excess sealant from the adjacent road surface before it sets. Do not use solvents to remove the excess.

Identify the loop conductor pair in the pull box, marking the start with the letter *S* and the end with the letter *F*. Band conductors in pairs by lane in the pull box adjacent to the loops and in the cabinet. Identify each pair with the detector designation and loop number.

Install the conductors in a compacted layer of HMA immediately below the uppermost layer if more than one layer will be placed. Install the loop conductors before placing the uppermost layer of HMA. Fill the slot with a sealant flush to the surface.

Install the conductors in the existing pavement if one layer of HMA is to be placed. Install the loop conductors before placing the layer of HMA. Fill the slot with a sealant flush to the surface.

87-1.03V(3) Preformed Inductive Loop Detectors

Install a preformed inductive loop detector consisting of 4 turns in the loop and a lead-in conductor pair twisted at least 2 turns per foot all encased in conduit and sealed to prevent water penetration. The detector must be 6-foot square unless shown otherwise.

Construct the loop detector using a minimum 3/8-inch Schedule 40 or Schedule 80 PVC or polypropylene conduit and no. 16 or larger conductor with Type THWN insulation.

In new roadways, place the detector in the base course with the top of the conduit flush with the top of the base. Cover with HMA or concrete pavement. Protect the detector from damage before and during pavement placement.

In new reinforced concrete bridge decks, secure the detector to the top of the uppermost layer of reinforcing steel using nylon wire ties. Hold the detector parallel to the bridge deck using PVC or

polypropylene spacers where necessary. Place conduit for lead-in conductors between the uppermost 2 layers of reinforcing steel.

Do not install detectors in existing bridge decks unless authorized.

Install a detector in existing pavement before placement of concrete or HMA as follows:

- 1. Saw cut slots at least 1-1/4 inches wide into the pavement.
- 2. Place the detector in the slots. The top of the conduit must be at least 2 inches below the top of the pavement.
- 3. Test each loop circuit for continuity, circuit resistance, and insulation resistance.
- 4. Fill saw cuts with elastomeric or hot melt rubberized asphalt sealant for asphalt concrete pavement and with epoxy sealant or hot melt rubberized asphalt sealant for concrete pavement.

87-1.03W Sealants

87-1.03W(2) Elastomeric Sealant

Apply an elastomeric sealant with a pressure feed applicator.

87-1.03W(3) Asphaltic Emulsion Sealant

Asphaltic emulsion sealant must:

- 1. Be used for filling slots in asphalt concrete pavement of a maximum width of 5/8 inch
- 2. Not be used on concrete pavement or where the slope causes the material to run from the slot
- 3. Be thinned under the manufacturer's instructions
- 4. Be placed when the air temperature is at least 45 degrees F

87-1.03W(4) Hot-Melt Rubberized Asphalt Sealant

Melt the sealant in a jacketed, double-boiler-type, melting unit. The temperature of the heat transfer medium must not exceed 475 degrees F.

Apply the sealant with a pressure feed applicator or a pour pot when the surface temperature of the pavement is greater than 40 degrees F.

19-05 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

SECTION 20 - HOT MIX ASPHALT (HMA)

(SECTION 39)

20-01 GENERAL

The provisions of Section 39, "Asphalt Concrete", of the Standard Specifications shall apply in their entirety unless modified or supplemented herein.

20-01A Summary

This work includes furnishing and placing hot mix asphalt (HMA) as a top surface lift, and restoration of asphalt in the form of a deep-lift plug adjacent to the lip of gutter.

20-01B Submittals

Submit mix design for specified asphalt, verified within the last 12-months.

At least forty-eight (48) hours prior to starting any paving operations, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a plan outlining his/her proposed sequencing of paving the roadway. The Contractor shall not commence paving operations until approved to do so by the Engineer.

20-02 MATERIALS

20-02A Asphalt Concrete

Asphalt Concrete placed in the roadway section shall be Type A Asphalt Concrete.

20-02B Asphalt Binder

The grade of asphalt binder mixed with aggregate for all HMA shall be PG 64-10.

20-02C Aggregate

The hot mix asphalt to be used will be 1/2-inch, Type A, unless modified by the Engineer, with the following additional characteristics.

Mix voids shall be targeted at 4.0%.

The allowable production range for mix voids shall be 2.5% to 5.5%.

The mix shall include 0.5% of liquid anti-strip.

No Warm Mix Additive shall be allowed.

20-02D Asphaltic Emulsion (Paint Binder/Tack Coat)

Asphaltic Emulsion shall be slow setting Grade RS-1, RS-1h, SS-1, or SS-1h. At joints between concrete pavement and HMA, apply tack coat between the concrete pavement and HMA and in accordance with Section 39-2.01C(3)(f) "Tack Coat."

20-03 CONSTRUCTION

20-03A Surface Preparation

The work shall consist of preparing the existing street surfaces prior to the commencement of paving. Such work shall include removing raised pavement markers, removing thermoplastic traffic markings and legends, controlling nuisance water, sweeping, watering, removing loose and broken pavement and foreign material, and sealing all cracks greater than 3/8-inch if called for, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Technical Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

All vertical edges to be paved shall be tack coated. These include, but are not limited to, curb faces, gutter lips, swale edges, cross gutter edges, and pavement edges.

A tack coat between layers of hot mix asphalt shall be required if not paved on the same day or if the surface has been contaminated or soiled. Any contamination or soiling shall be thoroughly cleaned and a tack coat placed between layers immediately prior to paving.

Existing concrete shall be protected against discoloration from the asphalt. Residue of the material shall be removed to the extent required by the Engineer.

20-03B Cold Joints

All cold joints, both longitudinal and transverse, shall be heated with a torch immediately prior to paving. Cold joints include previous passes placed more than three hours prior. All cold joints shall be tack coated.

20-03C Rolling

Rolling shall be performed as indicated in the referenced Caltrans specifications. The roller water shall contain a soap type compound to prevent sticking of the HMA material to the rollers.

20-03D Sampling

The Engineer may sample the hot mix asphalt from truck beds at the plant, from the hopper of the spreading machine, or from the completed mat at the discretion of the Engineer. The Contractor shall facilitate the sampling process

20-03E Construction Sequencing

Pavement replacement associated with "Remove & Replace HMA" of the various depths called for on the plans shall be replaced the same day as the removal.

20-03F Placement

Attention is directed to Section 39-2.01C(2), "Spreading and Compacting Equipment", of the Standard Specifications. Asphalt concrete shall be spread and compacted at the locations, and grades shown on the plans and as directed by the Engineer.

Asphalt Concrete (Type A) shall be compacted to 95% Relative Compaction. Relative compaction will be determined by California Test 375. Laboratory specimens will be compacted in conformance with California Test 304. Lots will be established for asphalt concrete areas to be tested, as specified in California Test 375.

If the finished surface of the final asphalt concrete layer does not meet the required surface tolerance, it shall be brought within tolerance by either (1) abrasive grinding with equipment utilizing diamond blades (with fog seal coat on the areas which have been ground), (2) removal and replacement, or (3) placing an overlay of asphalt concrete. The method will be selected by the Engineer. The corrective work shall be at the Contractors expense.

The Contractor shall not perform paving operations when the weather is rainy or foggy. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility, based on weather predictions, to schedule his/her paving operations to avoid paving in the rain or fog. If the day's operations are canceled because of predicted rain or fog, a non-working day will be allowed regardless of actual working conditions. Asphalt concrete shall not be placed on any surface which contains ponded water or excessive moisture in the opinion of the Town Engineer. If paving operations are in progress and rain or fog forces a shutdown, loaded trucks in transit shall return to the plant and no compensation will be allowed therefore.

24-03G Deep Lift Plugs Adjacent to Lip of Gutter

Asphalt concrete placed as a deep lift plug between the existing roadway and new concrete curb and gutter shall have a minimum thickness of 6-inch.

Before removing asphalt concrete, outline the replacement area and cut neat lines with a saw or grind to full depth of the existing asphalt concrete. Do not damage asphalt concrete and base remaining in place.

The subgrade shall be compacted to minimum 95 percent relative compaction. The excavation shall be squared off, thoroughly cleaned out and primed with asphalt emulsion. Base rock may be placed and compacted to within 6-inches of the final surface, or the entire depth may be placed with asphalt. No lift of asphalt shall exceed 3.5-inches in thickness.

The repaired areas shall conform to the level of the surrounding pavement so that no elevation variation

is evident. Any resulting variations shall be corrected to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

20-03H Engineer's Acceptance

Modify 39-3.02A Testing by adding the following footnotes:

- h. Contractor can perform independent quality control testing continuously during paving using nuclear or non-nuclear methods.
- i. Engineer will monitor the contractor's work for conformance to the Method Process. In addition, the Engineer will collect HMA samples and verify the mix.

20-04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

SECTION 21 - ADJUST UTILITY FRAMES, COVERS AND GRATES

21-01 GENERAL

Frames and covers of existing water valves and meter boxes, or other facilities shall be adjusted to grade in accordance with the provisions in Section 15-2.10B, "Adjust Frames, Covers, Grates and Manholes," of the Standard Specifications.

If existing materials are in good condition, they may be reused subject to the Engineer's approval.

Debris protection shall be provided by installing cover plates or other acceptable methods approved by the Engineer, for keeping debris or foreign material from entering the system.

If any debris or foreign materials enter the system due to the Contractor's operations, the Contractor shall remove all the debris and foreign materials to the satisfaction of the Engineer. If the Contractor fails to do so, the Town Maintenance Staff will clean the system and charge the Contractor for the cost incurred.

21-02 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

SECTION 22 - TRAFFIC STRIPING, MARKINGS AND MARKERS

(SECTIONS 82 and 84)

22-01 GENERAL

Work under this section shall include traffic striping, markings, raised pavement markers, and surface mounted rubber curb.

Unless otherwise called out on the plans, all striping shall be completed with thermoplastic.

Thermoplastic traffic stripes (traffic lines) shall conform to the provisions in Sections 84-1, "General" and 84-2, "Thermoplastic Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings", of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. Delineators shall conform to Section 82, "Markers and Delineators".

22-02 MATERIALS

22-02A Thermoplastic

Shall be 3M All Weather Thermo Extruded Thermoplastic no spray.

Section 84-2.02, "Materials" of the Standard Specifications is deleted.

The thermoplastic material shall conform to State Specifications 8010-41G-21. Glass beads to be applied to the surface of the molten thermoplastic material shall conform to the requirements of State Specification 8010-22L-22 (Type II), or AASJTP Designation: M 247 (Type 1).

State Specifications for thermoplastic material and glass beads may be obtained from the Transportation Laboratory, P.O. Box 19128, Sacramento, CA. 95819, (916) 739-2400.

Thermoplastic material for traffic stripes shall be applied at a minimum thickness of 0.125-inch.

A primer of the type recommended by the manufacturer of the thermoplastic material shall be applied over concrete surfaces and all existing painted stripes and pavement legends to be covered with thermoplastic material as shown on the plans.

22-03 CONSTRUCTION

All construction shall conform to the respective provisions of the Standard Specifications, manufacturer's installation requirements, and the Special Provisions.

22-03A Existing Striping Removal:

Pavement marker, markings and striping removal shall conform to Section 84-3.05B, "Removal of Existing Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings" of the CCSS, the plans and these special provisions.

Existing thermoplastic pavement markings and striping, and paint markings and striping shall be removed by grinding prior to placement of the new surface. The grinder shall be specifically designed for the purpose of removing existing traffic stripes and markings and shall conform to the provisions of Section 15-2.02 B of the SS. Immediately upon removal of the markings and striping, temporary marking and striping shall be placed. Grinding shall be conducted to keep all removed pavement material from entering the storm drain system. The operation shall be controlled and contained so as not to impair the safe passage of traffic adjacent to the work site. Existing pavement markers shall be removed prior to resurfacing.

The location of all striping, markings, and markers shall be marked out on the adjacent gutter or top of

curb and documented by the Contractor prior to removal of any striping, markers, and/or thermoplastic material and before resurfacing. This information shall be given to the Engineer for review and approval prior to any striping removal.

All traffic striping and pavement markings (legends) covered by or removed prior to the surfacing or otherwise damaged by the Contractor's operations shall be replaced in kind in the same location and count.

Existing pavement striping, markings, and markers which are outside the work area are not to be removed and shall be protected by the Contractor. Any striping, markings, or markers which are to remain, which are damaged or rendered useless by the Contractor's operations, shall be restored by the Contractor to the Engineer's satisfaction and at the Contractor's sole expense.

22-03B Layout for Temporary and Permanent Striping

The alignment and layout of traffic stripes shall conform to Subsection 84-1.02, "Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings", of the Standard Specifications.

All alignments and layout measurements, and other work necessary to locate and replace traffic stripes and pavement markings shall be performed by the Contractor.

The Town will not provide any assistance, information, or materials to the Contractor. It will be entirely the responsibility of the Contractor to perform all necessary pre-construction and construction layout work, obtain all necessary measurements and information, and prepare all plans for performing the striping and marking work as specified. All traffic control systems necessary for performing striping and marking shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide.

The Contractor shall physically tie down the location of the beginning and ending of each paint or thermoplastic marking type in the adjacent curb top. The marking location shall not exceed 50 square inches each. Any locations exceeding this limit shall be removed by the Contractor prior to acceptance of the work. The Contractor shall contact the Town Engineer for review of tie downs.

The Contractor shall be responsible for accurately referencing out and replacing the lines and positions of all traffic lines, directional lines, arrows, and other markings in accordance with the plans and Town standard markings by cat tracking with painted marks. This shall occur no later than 2 hours behind the final surface course paving operation.

Cat tracking shall consist of stretching a rope on a straight line between control points on tangent alignment and on a true arc through control points on curved alignment and placing spots of paint along the rope. Temporary tab markers shall be placed not more than 12' apart on curves nor more than 24' apart on straight segments.

Temporary tab markers shall be the same color as the traffic stripe that they are replacing, shall measure 2" tall by 3-1/2" wide, and have a reflective lens across the width of the marker.

Prior to application of permanent striping and markers, the Contractor shall call for review and approval of the proposed striping by the Town's Traffic Engineer or agent. The Town shall have the right to make changes in the location and alignment of line stripes. Striping and traffic markings shall not be applied until after approval is granted by the Traffic Engineer. The Contractor shall allow a minimum of 3 working days for review of the layout by the Town.

22-03C Schedule

Raised pavement markers (RPM's) shall be placed as specified in Subsection 85-1.02, "Retroreflective Pavement Markers", of the Standard Specifications. When utilizing hot melt bituminous adhesive, RPM's shall be placed after the surface has been open to traffic for at least 7 days. When utilizing epoxy

adhesive, RPM's shall be placed after the surface has been open to traffic for at least 14 days. Regardless of which adhesive is utilized, the RPM's shall not be placed more than 21 days after paving or surfacing.

Permanent traffic striping and markings including legends and arrows shall be placed within 21 days after paving or surfacing, unless otherwise directed by the Engineer.

Temporary yellow marking tape denoting school crosswalks shall be placed the same day that the pavement surfacing is placed.

Failure to comply with these requirements shall result in a liquidated damage of \$1,900 per day for each street that has not received permanent installation of the required raised pavement markers, traffic striping, and markings.

22-03D Pavement Stencils

The Contractor shall use stencils that conform to Caltrans Standard Plans and Details.

22-03E Reflective and Raised Pavement Markers Ceramic Non-Reflective Pavement Markers No Plastic

Installation of both reflective and raised pavement markers shall conform to the provisions of Section 85 of the Standard Specifications. Pavement markers shall be placed in the same pattern and locations as they were previously, except as shown on the plans or modified herein.

22-03F Pavement Delineation - Extruded Thermoplastic No Spray

Pavement temperature shall be measured at the beginning of the shift on each working day and this information shall be provided to the Traffic Engineer.

No primer or thermoplastic shall be installed within 48 hours from the last measurable rain report as provided by the Town.

Thermoplastic traffic striping, legends, and arrows shall conform to the provisions of Section 84-1, "General"; Section 84-2, "Thermoplastic Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings"; and refer to Section 85, "Pavement Markers"; and the Special Provisions Appendix C per Specification for 3M All Weather Thermoplastic Pavement Markings Optimized for Dry Weather Performance.

22-03G Pavement Markers Ceramic Non-Reflective Pavement Markers No Plastic

Pavement markers shall be placed to the line established by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer, which will consist of temporary painted line or new or existing stripes one for each line of markers.

All additional work necessary to establish satisfactory lines for markers shall be performed by the Contractor.

The adjustment provisions in Section 9-1.06B, "Increases of More than 25 Percent," and in Section 9-1.06C, "Decreases of More than 25 Percent," shall not apply to any contract item involving traffic striping, markings and raised pavement markers.

At the option of the Contractor, a hot melt bituminous adhesive may be used to cement the markers to the pavement instead of the Rapid Set Type or Standard Set Type epoxy adhesive specified in 95-2.04, "Rapid Set Epoxy Adhesive for Placement Markers," of the Standard Specifications. Bituminous adhesive material shall conform to the following:

Flash Point, COC, °F, ASTM D 92, 550 Min.
Softening Point, °F, ASTM D 36, 200 Min.
Brookfield Thermosel, ASTM D 4402, 3,000-6,000
Viscosity, Centipoise, No. 27 Spindle, 20 RPM, 400°F
Penetration dmm, 100g, 55 seconds, 77°F, ASTM D 5, 10 - 20
Filler Cement, percent by weight (Insoluble in1,1,1 Trichloroethane), ASTM D 2371, 65 - 75

Filler material used in bituminous adhesive shall be Type PC, Grade III, calcium carbonate conforming to ASTM D1199, and shall conform to the following gradation:

Sieve Size	Percent Passing
No. 100	100
No. 200	95
No. 325	75

Bituminous adhesive shall be heated indirectly in an applicator with continuous agitation or recirculation. Bituminous adhesive shall not be heated above the maximum safe heating temperature recommended by the manufacturer and shall not be applied at temperatures greater than 425°F. nor less than 375°F.

Immediately after application of the adhesive, pavement markers shall be placed in position and pressure applied until firm contact is made with the pavement.

Placement of pavement markers using bituminous adhesive shall conform to the requirements of the third, fourth, ninth and tenth paragraphs in said Section 85-1.03B, "Hot Melt Bituminous Adhesive" of the Standard Specifications, except as follows:

- 1. Markers shall not be placed when the pavement or air temperature is 50°F or less.
- 2. Blast cleaning shall be required.

22-03H CLEAN UP

Upon completion of Striping, Markings and Raised Pavement Markers installation, the Contractor shall thoroughly clean the work site of all waste, rubbish, construction debris, drips, over sprays, improper markings, and the tracked thermoplastic materials; all of which shall be removed immediately from the pavement surface by methods approved by the Engineer.

22-04 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

SECTION 23 - ROADWAY SIGNS

(SECTION 82)

23-01 DESCRIPTION

Install New Roadway Sign and Post and Relocate Existing Sign shall consist of installing roadside signs as shown on the Plans and in conformance with these Special Provisions, the State Standard Specifications, and as directed by the Engineer.

The proposed location for each sign shall be determined in the field and approved by Town staff prior to installation.

The various materials and fabrication thereof shall conform to the provisions of Section 82-3.02 "Materials" of the State Standard Specifications.

Construction and installation methods shall conform to the provisions of Sections 82-3.03 "Construction" of the State Standard Specifications.

All posts shall be breakaway style, per the project detail, installed such that there is a minimum clearance of 7-feet from the surrounding finished improvement elevation and the bottom of the sign.

All signs shall use "Diamond Grade - DG3" sign sheeting or approved equivalent.

23-02 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

APPENDIX

Plan Sheets and Details (9 pages)

- Taylor Road at Horseshoe Bar Road, Demolition Plans
- Taylor Road at Horseshoe Bar Road, Improvement Plans
- Taylor Road at Webb Street, Demolition Plans
- Taylor Road at Webb Street, Improvement Plans
- Laird Road at Horseshoe Bar Road Demolition and New Construction Plan
- Striping Plan
- Location Exhibit and Scope of Work for Miscellaneous Concrete Repairs
- Details